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Chairman’s Statement

| am pleased to present to shareholders of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“Company”) the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year 2011. The performance of the Group this year
has been pleasing as all of the Group’s core operating divisions continued to deliver solid performances.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011, the Group’s revenue from continuing operations was HK$4,047.9
million (2010: HK$3,493.6 million). Profit attributable to the owners of the Company (including continuing and
discontinued operations) was HK$1,888.3 million in 2011 (2010: HK$3,003.1 million), the decrease from 2010
being mainly due to the lack of exceptional profits in 2011. The earnings per share (including continuing and
discontinued operations) amounted to HK26.26 cents, as compared to HK45.11 cents in 2010.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK1.5 cents per share for the year ended 31st December, 2011
(2010: HK3 cents per share) payable to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 15th June, 2012.

It should be noted that the Company undertook share repurchases for cancellation in January 2012 at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$220 million. Accordingly, both net asset value per share and earnings per
share have been enhanced. The Board will give consideration to further repurchases of shares for cancellation
when opportunities arise.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS OF MEMBERS AND WARRANT HOLDERS

(1) For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (“2012 AGM”)

The 2012 AGM is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 31st May, 2012. For determining the entitlement to
attend and vote at the 2012 AGM, the register of members and the register of warrant holders of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 29th May, 2012 to Thursday, 31st May, 2012 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares and warrants of the Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder
to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2012 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates or in the case of warrant holders, all subscription forms accompanied by the relevant warrant
certificates and exercise money, must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited of Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 28th May, 2012.

(2) For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the 2012 AGM. For
determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2011, the
register of members and the register of warrant holders of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
13th June, 2012 to Friday, 15th June, 2012 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
and warrants of the Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates or in the case of warrant holders,
all subscription forms accompanied by the relevant warrant certificates and exercise money, must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited of Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 12th June, 2012. Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2012 AGM,
dividend warrants are expected to be despatched to the Shareholders by post on or around Tuesday, 17th
July, 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement (Cont'd)

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The “Review of Operations” by the Chief Executive, which immediately follows this statement, incorporates the
Group’s business outlook for the future.

APPRECIATION

We have maintained our momentum in 2011. The Group expects there will be various economic challenges
ahead in 2012. We believe that with its prudent strategy, and the dedication, loyalty, professionalism of its staff,
the Group is well prepared to meet these challenges in 2012. | would like to express the Group’s appreciation for
the efforts of our staff and look forward to their continued support. | would also like to thank my fellow Directors,
our professional advisors and our Shareholders for their support during the year.

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March, 2012
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Review of Operations

INTRODUCTION

The core businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries and associates consist of property investment, property
development, hospitality related activities and financial services. The Company is a subsidiary of Allied Group
Limited (“Allied Group”). The Company’s interests in property investment and development and hospitality related
activities in Hong Kong are mainly held through its wholly owned subsidiaries or the 50% owned Allied Kajima
Limited (“Allied Kajima”), and in respect of property investment and development and hospitality related activities
in The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), through Tian An China Investments Company Limited (“Tian An”),
being an associate held by the Company. The Company’s financial services business is mainly conducted through
the Company’s 53.51% holding in Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“Sun Hung Kai”) as well as Sun Hung Kai’s
effective 58.18% holding in United Asia Finance Limited (“UAF”). Allied Overseas Limited (“AOL"), a 72.07%
subsidiary of the Company, is engaged in the business of provision of elderly care services and medical and
aesthetic equipment distribution.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Results

The revenue of the Group for 2011 from continuing operations was HK$4,047.9 million, an increase of HK$554.3
million when compared with the year 2010. The increase in revenue mainly resulted from the increased revenue
of the consumer finance business.

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company (including continuing and discontinued operations) was
HK$1,888.3 million, as compared to HK$3,003.1 million in 2010. The earnings per share (including continuing
and discontinued operations) amounted to HK26.26 cents (2010: HK45.11 cents).

The decrease in profit attributable to the owners of the Company was largely due to:

1. Lack of exceptional items for both AOL and Tian An, which contributed significantly to the 2010 results;

2. Slower disposals of non-core assets at Tian An; and

3. Lower contributions from Sun Hung Kai.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Material Acquisitions and Disposals

On 14th September, 2011, China Elite Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, made
a voluntary conditional partial share exchange offer (“Partial Share Exchange Offer”) to acquire from the
independent shareholders of Tian An for 103,180,000 shares of Tian An, representing approximately 6.85% of
the existing issued share capital of Tian An. The Partial Share Exchange Offer was completed on 23rd December,
2011. Upon completion, the Group’s beneficial interest in Tian An increased to approximately 46.85%. A total
number of 412,720,000 shares were issued and allotted as consideration to the independent Tian An shareholders
who accepted the Partial Share Exchange Offer.

Details regarding the Partial Share Exchange Offer are contained in the joint announcement dated 14th September,
2011 jointly issued by the Company, Allied Group and Tian An and the joint announcement dated
23rd December, 2011 and composite offer document dated 18th November, 2011 jointly issued by the Company
and Tian An.

Apart from the above, there were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies or
jointly controlled entities during the period.

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Capital Structure

At the end of the reporting period, the current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) of the Group was 2.9 times,
which was same as the 2.9 times applicable at the end of the preceding year.

During the year, UAF, the consumer finance subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai issued Renminbi denominated bonds
to third parties with maturity period of 3-year and carrying value of HK$555.8 million at the end of the reporting
period. At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s net borrowings amounted to HK$4,315.1 million (2010:
HK$2,546.3 million), representing bank and other borrowings, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, financial
liabilities portion of mandatory convertible notes (“MCN”) being the accrued effective interest and bonds totalling
HK$8,314.8 million (2010: HK$6,900.8 million) less bank deposits, bank balances, treasury bills and cash of
HK$3,999.7 million (2010: HK$4,354.5 million) and the Group had equity attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$19,640.1 million (2010: HK$17,359.5 million). Accordingly, the Group’s gearing ratio of net borrowings to
equity attributable to owners of the Company was 22.0% (2010: 14.7%).

A bonus issue of warrants on the basis of one warrant for every five shares held was proposed by the Board on
7th April, 2011. 1,390,623,317 warrants were issued on 13th June, 2011. The warrant holders are entitled
to subscribe in cash for one fully paid share at an initial subscription price of HK$2.00 per share, subject to
adjustments, at any time from 13th June, 2011 to 13th June, 2016 (both days inclusive).

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, 1,783 warrants were converted into 1,783 ordinary shares at a
subscription price of HK$2.00 per share. Accordingly 1,390,621,534 warrants were outstanding at 31st December,
2011. Exercise in full of the outstanding warrants would result in the issue of 1,390,621,534 additional shares with
an aggregate subscription value of approximately HK$2,781.2 million.

During the year, a total number of 412,720,000 shares were issued and allotted as consideration to the
independent Tian An shareholders who accepted the Partial Share Exchange Offer. Immediately upon the
completion of the Partial Share Exchange Offer, the number of issued shares increased to 7,365,838,368 shares.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Capital Structure (Cont'd)

Subsequent to the year end, the Company has repurchased 191,383,428 own shares at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$220 million and 240 warrants were converted into 240 shares and accordingly the total

number of issued shares decreased to 7,174,455,180 shares.

2011 2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million

Bank loans and overdrafts are repayable as follows:

On demand or within one year 2,128.1 1,625.4
More than one year but not exceeding two years 2,474.9 522.6
More than two years but not exceeding five years 930.5 2,167.8
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are repayable as follows:
Within one year 588.6 851.3
More than one year but not exceeding two years 35.2 41.8
More than two years but not exceeding five years 314.7 180.5
6,472.0 5,389.4
Other borrowings repayable on demand or within one year 8.6 8.3
Other borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are repayable as follows:
Within one year 23.1 143.9
More than one year but not exceeding two years - 23.6
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 1,255.3 757.1
Bonds held by a fellow subsidiary repayable within five years - 500.0
Renminbi denominated bonds repayable within five years 555.8 -
1,842.8 1,432.9
8,314.8 6,822.3

The banking facilities of the Group are reviewed from time to time and new banking facilities will be obtained or
renewed to meet the funding requirements for capital commitments, investments and operations of the Group.

Financial liabilities portion of MCN being the accrued effective interest at the end of the reporting period:

2011 2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million

Current portion - 32.6
Non-current portion - 45.9
- 78.5

Other than the MCN and Renminbi denominated bonds, most of the bank and other borrowings of the Group, the
amount due to a fellow subsidiary and the bonds held by a fellow subsidiary are charged at floating interest rates.
There are no known seasonal factors in the Group’s borrowing profile.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)

Risk of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

The Group is required to maintain foreign currency exposure to cater for its recurring operating activities and
present and potential investment activities, meaning it will be subject to reasonable exchange rate exposure.
However, the Group will closely monitor this risk exposure as required.

Contingent Liabilities

Details of contingent liabilities are set out in note 50 to the consolidated financial statements.

Material Litigation Update

(a)

On 14th October, 2008, a writ of summons was issued by Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited (“SHKIS”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai, in the High Court of Hong Kong against Quality Prince Limited,
Allglobe Holdings Limited, the Personal Representative of the Estate of Lam Sai Wing, Chan Yam Fai Jane
(“Ms. Chan”) and Ng Yee Mei (“Ms. Ng”), seeking recovery of (a) the sum of HK$50,932,876.64; (b) interest;
(c) legal costs; and (d) further and/or other relief. Having sold collateral for the partial recovery of the amounts
owing, SHKIS filed a Statement of Claim in the High Court of Hong Kong on 24th October, 2008 claiming
(a) the sum of HK$36,030,376.64; (b) interest; (c) legal costs; and (d) further and/or other relief. Summary
judgment against all the defendants was granted by Master C Chan on 25th May, 2009, but judgment with
respect to Ms. Chan and Ms. Ng only was overturned on appeal by the judgment of Suffiad ] dated 7th
August, 2009. SHKIS’ appeal of that judgment to the Court of Appeal was heard on 6th May, 2010, and was
dismissed. The trial will be heard on a date to be fixed.

Details of proceedings relating to Chang Zhou Power Development Company Limited, a mainland PRC
joint venture, are set out in paragraph (b) of note 50 to the consolidated financial statements on “Contingent
Liabilities”.

Pledge of Assets

Details regarding pledge of assets are set out in note 54 to the consolidated financial statements.

Event after the Reporting Period

Details regarding event after the reporting period are set out in note 57 to the consolidated financial statements.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Properties

Hong Kong

The Group’s rental income from its Hong Kong property portfolio remained steady.
The Group’s Ibis North Point, a 275-room budget hotel, enjoyed a record year in revenue and profit.

The net gain in value of the Group’s property portfolio, including investment properties owned by Sun Hung
Kai, was HK$912.7 million for the full year, as compared to HK$871.3 million in 2010.

Allied Kajima, 50% indirectly owned by the Group and holding various properties including Allied Kajima
Building, Novotel Century Hong Kong hotel (“Novotel Century”) and Sofitel Philippine Plaza Hotel (“SPPH”"),
contributed a profit increase of 22% compared to 2010. While Allied Kajima reported a higher revaluation
gain of its investment properties and a record performance by Novotel Century, the results of SPPH were
affected by a powerful typhoon in September 2011, which led to the evacuation of existing hotel guests and
caused flooding to the lower ground floor of the hotel and damaging some food and beverage outlets and
other facilities.

Mainland PRC

The profit attributable to owners of Tian An was HK$868.9 million (2010: HK$1,432.5 million), a decrease of
39% over 2010.

Although the mainland property market remained weak, Tian An enjoyed increased contributions from
its cyberpark units. Its southern cyberparks have been progressing well. The projects in Shenzhen, Panyu,
Longgang and Foshan all performed in line with Tian An’s expectations. As far as its eastern and northern
cyberparks are concerned, Tian An expects completion of construction works for its Nanjing Tian An Cyber
Park (Phase 1) and Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1 Parts 3 & 4) in 2012. Construction works for
Wauxi Tian An Intelligent Park, Nantong Tian An Cyberpark, Jiangyin Tian An Cyber Park, Chongging Tian
An Cyber Park and Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park (in Xiging District) have commenced and are progressing as
planned.

Tian An has also taken advantage of the central and local governments’ in mainland China push for urban
renewal to launch its first such project in Huawei New City Area, Longgang district, Shenzhen. This 50/50
joint venture will be a 2.8 million m2 business, commercial, and residential development close to the centre
of Shenzhen. Phase 1 of about 400,000 m? will commence in the second quarter of 2012.

The spin-off of the cement division previously announced by Tian An and the separate listing on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) under Allied Cement Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1312) was accomplished on 18th January, 2012, raising gross proceeds of HK$165
million. Tian An believes that the listing of the division as a separate unit will better reflect its value.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (CONT’D)

Financial Services

Broking and finance

Sun Hung Kai, the Group’s broking and finance arm, recorded a profit attributable to its owners of
HK$1,032.4 million (2010: HK$1,087.0 million).

Sun Hung Kai’s balanced and diversified mix of businesses and clientele enabled it to deal with the volatility
of the global market and deliver a commendable set of results in 2011.

The Wealth Management and Brokerage operation in 2011 performed above expectations. The growth in the
margin lending business offset a drop in commission income. Sun Hung Kai has also invested in infrastructure
and product platforms including SHK Private and SHK Master Choice Discretionary Portfolio Management
Services serving high net worth customers, and “SHKF eMO!”, an award winning mobile platform for clients
who prefer to invest on a self-directed basis.

The Capital Markets division continued to produce good results in 2011. The division made significant
progress in tapping the small and medium corporate segments in Hong Kong and mainland China, despite a
more subdued fund raising environment in the market.

Sun Hung Kai has also strengthened its senior management team and collected several awards, including
the Sing Tao Excellent Services Brand Award 2011 — Securities Firm, Capital Magazine’s The 12th CAPITAL
Outstanding Enterprise Award and CAPITAL Merits of Achievements in Banking and Finance.

Consumer Finance

UAF performed well in 2011 as it benefited from the strong growth in its China loans business and healthy
growth of local Hong Kong business due to increased consumption spending and lower unemployment.

The loan balance at year end increased significantly by 34% to approximately HK$7.9 billion. This was
driven by a 24% increase in Hong Kong and a doubling of the loan balance in mainland China.

The size of UAF’s mainland China branch network has surpassed that of Hong Kong. Total branch network
stood at 99 outlets at the end of 2011, consisting of 54 in mainland China and 45 in Hong Kong.

The mortgage business, under the “SHK Finance” brand, performed above expectations taking advantage of
increased demand in a tightened mortgage lending environment available from banks.

In 2012, UAF will continue to expand its mainland China business by increasing its network coverage
in existing cities and provinces in which it now operates and will also continue to apply for new lending
licences in cities and provinces where it believes there are significant growth prospects. In Hong Kong, UAF
will continue to launch more loan programmes and advertising campaigns in order to maintain its loan
growth momentum.

Included in the results for the year was an amortisation charge in respect of intangible assets in the amount of
HK$174 million incurred from Sun Hung Kai’s acquisition of its interest in UAF in 2006. At the end of 2011,
the balance of this amortisable intangible asset was reduced to HK$39 million. Accordingly, it will be a much
reduced cost item to the Group after 2011.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Investments
AOL

e The profit for the year from continuing operations attributable to the owners of AOL increased from HK$12.7
million in 2010 to HK$14.7 million in 2011, an increase of 16%.

e AOL’s existing businesses include the business of elderly homes and a new medical and aesthetic equipment
distribution business.

e The proposed acquisition of approximately 27.71% equity interest in APAC Resources Limited lapsed as one
of the conditions precedent was not fulfilled by the long stop date.

e AOL currently has a significant amount of cash and liquid assets including listed bonds and will seek
investment opportunities with significant prospects as opportunities are identified.

EMPLOYEES

The total number of staff of the Group as at 31st December, 2011 was 4,726 (2010: 4,009). Total staff costs
(including continuing operations and discontinued operations), including Directors’” emoluments, amounted
to HK$756.5 million (2010: HK$983.7 million). The Group reviews remuneration packages from time to time.
In addition to salary payments, other staff benefits include contributions to employee provident funds, medical
subsidies and a discretionary bonus scheme.

MANAGEMENT OF RISKS
Financial Services Business
Policies and Procedures

The Group adopts a comprehensive risk management framework. Risk management policies and procedures are
regularly reviewed and updated to react to changes of market conditions and the Group’s business strategy. The
risk management committee is a standing committee reporting to the respective board of directors. It supervises
and scrutinises risk-related policies necessary for monitoring and controlling of the major risks arising from the
Group’s business activities, external changing risks and regulatory environment.

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s financial risk management covers the areas of market risk defined as risk that affects the value of the
Group’s portfolio (and comprises of equity, interest rate and foreign exchange risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
These are further discussed and outlined in note 48c to the consolidated financial statements.

Operational Risk Management

Operational risk is defined as the risk of losses resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people,
systems or from external events. The Group extends operational risk to cover potential losses arising from legal
and compliance breaches. Operational risk is reduced and controlled through establishing robust internal
controls, clear lines of responsibility, proper segregation of duties and effective internal reporting and contingency
planning. It is the Group’s corporate culture that the business and operating line management are fully aware of
and responsible for managing operational risks related to their business units on a day-to-day basis. There are
monitoring and reviews conducted by respective compliance and internal audit teams which act independently
and report regularly to the respective senior management and, as appropriate, respective audit committees.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

MANAGEMENT OF RISKS (CONT’D)
Financial Services Business (Cont’d)
Reputational Risk Management

Reputational risk is the risk related to the trustworthiness of a business. Loss of trust can result in declines in the
customer base, revenue erosion, costly litigation and destruction of shareholder value and damage to the Group’s
reputation as a whole. The Group manages reputational risks through sound corporate governance practices.
Group employees and sales personnel are provided with comprehensive training. Operating procedures manuals
are regularly updated. The responsibilities and duties are properly segregated. The internal control functions report
directly to the respective senior management and audit committees.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The world economy continues to remain uncertain. The economic recovery of the United States remains slow
and the Euro Zone debt problems are still a looming threat to economic stability. The Group will closely monitor
market fluctuations and risk management so as to minimise any adverse impact on the Group’s financial services
businesses.

In both Hong Kong and mainland China, various measures to control the residential property prices are still in
effect, but the Group remains confident of the longer term prospects for the property markets in both Hong Kong

and on the mainland.

The Board will continue to prudently implement its stated strategies for the benefit of the Group and all its
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to thank all the staff for their efforts and contributions in 2011, and would like to express
appreciation to the shareholders for their continued support.

(16§ englling

Lee Seng Hui
Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 29th March, 2012

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ARTHUR GEORGE DEW

Mr. Arthur George Dew, aged 70, was appointed the Chairman and a Non-Executive Director of the Company
in January 2007. He graduated from the Law School of the University of Sydney, Australia, and was admitted as
a solicitor and later as a barrister of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia. He is currently a non-
practising barrister. He has a broad range of corporate and business experience and has served as a director, and
in some instances chairman of the board of directors, of a number of public companies listed in Australia, Hong
Kong and elsewhere. He is also the chairman and a non-executive director of each of Allied Group Limited (“AGL")
and Allied Overseas Limited (“AOL”) and a non-executive director of SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited (“SHK
HK IND”). Mr. Dew was appointed a director and non-executive chairman of Tanami Gold NL (“Tanami Gold”),
a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, in December 2011.

LEE SENG HUI

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, aged 43, was appointed the Chief Executive and an Executive Director of the Company in June
2010. Mr. Lee is also director of a subsidiary of the Company. He graduated from the Law School of the University
of Sydney with Honours. Previously, he worked with Baker & McKenzie and N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong)
Limited. Mr. Lee is the chief executive and an executive director of AGL and the chairman and a non-executive
director of Tian An China Investments Company Limited (“TACI”). He is a non-executive director of each of APAC
Resources Limited (“APAC Resources”), Mount Gibson Iron Limited (“Mount Gibson”) and Tanami Gold, the
shares of Mount Gibson and Tanami Gold being listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

LI CHI KONG

Mr. Li Chi Kong, aged 58, was appointed the Financial Controller and an Executive Director of the Company in
August 1997 and October 1999 respectively. He resigned as the Company Secretary of the Company in March
2012. Mr. Li is also director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from the University of
Edinburgh in Scotland with a Bachelor's Degree of Science and obtained a Post-graduate Diploma in Accounting
from Heriot-Watt University in Edinburgh. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has broad experience in the finance
and accounting field, having worked in two major audit firms and as group financial controller for several sizeable
listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also the group financial controller of AGL and was appointed a director of
Allied Cement Holdings Limited (“ACHL”) in March 2011 and re-designated as an executive director of ACHL in
December 2011. He was previously an executive director of TACI.

MARK WONG TAI CHUN

Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun, aged 47, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in June 2010. Mr. Wong is
also director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He has a Master's Degree in Business Administration and
is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Wong was the financial controller of other listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also an
executive director and the chief executive officer of AOL and resigned as the company secretary of AOL in March
2012. He is also an executive director of SHK HK IND and the director of investment of AGL. Mr. Wong was
appointed an alternate director to Mr. Arthur George Dew in Tanami Gold, a company listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange, in December 2011.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (Cont'd)

STEVEN SAMUEL ZOELLNER

Mr. Steven Samuel Zoellner, aged 42, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in
September 2004. He graduated from the Scots College in Sydney, Australia and completed a real estate licensing
course. Mr. Zoellner has been a real estate agent since 1987 and has extensive experience in the industry.
Mr. Zoellner has been involved in some of the more prominent upper end residential sales and development
sites in Australia. He has previously owned Elders Double Bay for the provision of a variety of real estate services
which he sold in the year 2000. Since 2002, he has been the principal of Laing & Simmons Double Bay which
consistently sells the most exclusive real estate in Australia.

ALAN STEPHEN JONES

Mr. Alan Stephen Jones, aged 69, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in
January 2006. Mr. Jones, a chartered accountant, has extensive experience in management, administration,
accounting, property development, carpark management, finance and trading, and has been involved in
successful mergers and acquisitions of a number of public companies in Australia and internationally. Mr. Jones
is an independent non-executive director of each of AGL and Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK”). He is also a
non-executive director of each of Mount Gibson and Mulpha Australia Limited and is the chairman and a non-
executive director of Air Change International Limited (“Air Change”, formerly known as IFC Capital Limited), the
shares of Mount Gibson and Air Change being listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. He was previously an
independent non-executive director of APAC Resources.

DAVID CRAIG BARTLETT

Mr. David Craig Bartlett, aged 46, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in
August 2011. He graduated with honours in law from Exeter University in the United Kingdom in 1988 and
subsequently qualified as a solicitor in England & Wales, The Republic of Ireland and the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. A former partner of the international law firm Clyde & Co., he regularly acted for and
advised AGL and AGL's subsidiaries before leaving private practice for a career in industry. Now based primarily
in Europe, Mr. Bartlett is also an independent non-executive director of each of AGL and SHK.

WU KWAN YET

Mr. Wu Kwan Yet, aged 47, joined the Company in 1998 and is a qualified accountant of the Company. He
obtained a Master Degree in Professional Accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001 and
is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

LAU TUNG NI

Ms. Lau Tung Ni, aged 30, was appointed the Company Secretary of the Company on 29th March, 2012. She is
an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance within a sensible framework
with an emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability and independence. The board of directors of
the Company (“Board”) believes that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the Company and
the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the light of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), the Board
has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the Company with the adoption of the various enhanced
procedures which are detailed in this report. The Company has applied the principles of, and complied with,
the applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31st December, 2011, except for certain
deviations as specified with considered reasons for such deviations as explained below. The Board will review the
current practices at least annually, and make appropriate changes if considered necessary.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises seven directors (“Directors”) in total, with three Executive Directors, one
Non-Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The composition of the Board
during the year and up to the date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors: Lee Seng Hui (Chief Executive)
Li Chi Kong
Mark Wong Tai Chun
Non-Executive Director: Arthur George Dew (Chairman)
INEDs: Steven Samuel Zoellner

Alan Stephen Jones
David Craig Bartlett

(appointed on 4th August, 2011)
John Douglas Mackie

(resigned on 30th May, 2011)

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the Profile of Directors and Senior Management on
pages 14 and 15.

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors (a majority of whom are independent) provided the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their active participation
in the Board and committee meetings brought independent judgment on issues relating to the Group's strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the interests of all shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”).

Save as disclosed herein, during the year and up to the date of this report, the Company had three INEDs
representing not less than one-third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The
Board has received from each INED an annual confirmation of his independence and considers that all the INEDs
are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Upon the resignation of Mr. John Douglas Mackie as an INED on 30th May, 2011, the Company had only two
INEDs which fell below the minimum number of independent non-executive directors required under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. On 4th August, 2011, the Company appointed Mr. David Craig Bartlett as an INED to
fill the casual vacancy. Hence, the Company has complied with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules since then and
within the time allowed under Rule 3.11 of the Listing Rules. The details of Mr. David Craig Bartlett as required
to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
4th August, 2011.
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THE BOARD (CONT’D)

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and interim results. During the year, five Board
meetings were held and attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is set out in the section headed “Board
Committees” of this report.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy,
annual operating budget, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment or
re-appointment, material contracts and transactions as well as other significant policy and financial matters. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the executive management under the instruction/supervision
of the Executive Committee which has its specific written terms of reference. The respective functions of the Board
and management of the Company have been formalised and set out in writing and will be reviewed by the Board
from time to time to ensure that they are consistent with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors.
At least 14 days’ notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given an opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a regular
Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting are
circulated to all Directors for their comment before being tabled at the following Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt
with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The articles of association of the Company (“Articles of
Association”) also stipulate that save for the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain from voting
and not be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving any contract or arrangement in which such Director
or any of his associates have a material interest.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials and has access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and independent access to
the Company’s senior management. Directors will be continuously updated on the major development of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practices. In addition, a written procedure was established in June 2005 to enable the Directors, in
discharge of their duties, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a reasonable
cost to be borne by the Company.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”)
shall be separate and shall not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Arthur George Dew, being the Chairman
of the Company, is primarily responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring that (i) all significant policy issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner; (ii) all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings; and (iii) the Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information. The functions
of the CEO are performed by Mr. Lee Seng Hui, the Chief Executive of the Company, who is responsible for the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business. Their responsibilities are clearly segregated and have been set
out in writing and approved by the Board in June 2005.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In June 2005, the Board established and adopted a written nomination procedure (“Nomination Procedure”)
specifying the process and criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company. The Executive Committee shall, based on those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure (such
as appropriate experience, personal skills and time commitment, etc.), identify and recommend the proposed
candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment. The existing Nomination Procedure has been included
in the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee with effect from the establishment of the Nomination
Committee on 29th March, 2012.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from the Company Secretary on the first
occasion of his appointment. This induction package is a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the
responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed by a director pursuant to the Companies Ordinance,
Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance. In addition, this induction package includes materials briefly
describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest published financial reports of the Company and
the documentation for the corporate governance practices adopted by the Board. Directors will be continuously
updated on any major developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

All Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) of the Company were appointed for a specific term, but subject
to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors
shall vacate or retire from their office but eligible for re-election. The term of appointment of the Non-Executive
Directors (including INEDs) has been renewed for further two years commencing from Tst January, 2011.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”), one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Further, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the Company whilst for those appointed as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the next following AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then
be eligible for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a Nomination Committee (established on
29th March, 2012), a Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and an Executive Committee, each of which
has its specific written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the committees,
which are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members and the committees are required
to report back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where appropriate. The procedures and
arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in the section headed “The Board” of this report, have been
adopted for the committee meetings so far as practicable.

The individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee during the year ended 31st December, 2011 are set out below:

Number of meetings attended / held

Remuneration Audit
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee
Executive Directors:
Lee Seng Hui (Chief Executive) 4/5
Li Chi Kong 5/5
Mark Wong Tai Chun 5/5
Non-Executive Director:
Arthur George Dew (Chairman) 5/5 11 2/2
INEDs:
Steven Samuel Zoellner 5/5 11 2/2
Alan Stephen Jones 4/5 11 2/2
David Craig Bartlett (appointed on 4th August, 2011) 2/3 - 11
John Douglas Mackie (resigned on 30th May, 2011) 171 1/1 1/1
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, has been established on 29th March, 2012, is chaired by the Chairman of the Board
and comprises a majority of INEDs. Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of three members, including
Messrs. Arthur George Dew (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Steven Samuel Zoellner and David Craig
Bartlett. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:
(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate

strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) to assess the independence of INEDs; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in accordance with its terms of reference and may
also deal with matters by way of circulation.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since December 1993 and currently consists of four members,

including Messrs. Alan Stephen Jones (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Steven Samuel Zoellner

and David Craig Bartlett, all being the INEDs, and Mr. Arthur George Dew being the Non-Executive Director.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to

independent professional advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(i) to review and recommend to the Board the remuneration policy and packages of the Directors and, where
appropriate, to consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive about the Remuneration Committee’s

proposals relating to the remuneration of other Executive Directors;

(ii) to review and recommend performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives
approved by the Board from time to time;

(iii) to review and recommend the compensation payable to Executive Directors relating to any loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

(iv) to review and recommend compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct; and

(v) to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee of the Company are in line with the code provision B.1.3
of the CG Code, but with a deviation from the code provision of the remuneration committee’s responsibilities
to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior management of a listed
company. The Board considers that the Remuneration Committee of the Company shall review (as opposed to
determine) and make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of Executive Directors only
and not senior management for the following reasons:

(i) the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not properly in a position to evaluate the performance
of senior management and that this evaluation process is more effectively carried out by the Executive
Directors;

(i) a majority of the Remuneration Committee members are INEDs who may not be industry skilled and come
from differing professions and backgrounds and they are not involved in the daily operation of the Company.
They may have little direct knowledge of industry practice and standard compensation packages. The
Remuneration Committee is thus not in a position to properly determine the remuneration of the Executive
Directors;

(i) the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and control senior management and thus must be
able to control their compensation; and

(iv) there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior management more than industry standards and thus
Shareholders will benefit by reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation packages.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the website of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in accordance with its terms of reference. One
Committee meeting was held in 2011 and the attendance of each member is set out in the section headed “Board
Committees” of this report.

In addition to the Committee meeting, the Remuneration Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation
during 2011. In 2011 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee performed the works as
summarised below:

(i) reviewed the existing policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors;
(i) reviewed the existing remuneration packages of the Executive Directors;
(iii) reviewed the existing remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors (including the INEDs);

(iv) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the bonus for the year ended 31st December, 2010
and the increment in the remuneration for the year 2011 of the Executive Directors and the Non-Executive
Director; and

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the revised terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee to align with the amendments to the revised CG Code effective on 1st April, 2012.

The remuneration payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms under their employment
contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements whereas
detailed changes in the emoluments of certain Directors during the interim period and up to the date of the
Interim Report were also disclosed in the Interim Report of the Company dated 26th August, 2011. Details of the
emolument policy of the Group are also set out in the “Emolument Policy” section contained in the Directors’
Report on page 31.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since December 1993 and currently consists of four Non-Executive

Directors, three of whom are INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity, the Audit Committee is chaired by

an INED with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The current members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Alan Stephen Jones (Chairman of the Audit Committee),

Arthur George Dew, Steven Samuel Zoellner and David Craig Bartlett. The Audit Committee is provided with

sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent professional advice according to the

Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(i) to consider and recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of the external auditor;

(ii) to consider and discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of each year’s audit;

(i) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity;

(iv) to review the interim and annual consolidated financial statements before submission to the Board;

(v) to discuss any problems and reservations arising from the interim review and final audit, and any matters the
external auditor may wish to discuss;

(vi) to review the external auditor’'s management letters and management’s response;

=

(vii) to review the Group's financial controls, internal control and risk management systems;

(viii) to review the internal audit plan, promote co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
check whether the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Group; and

(ix) to consider any findings of the major investigations of internal control matters and management’s response.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the Company are revised from time to time to comply with

the code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, but with deviations from the code provision of the audit committee’s

responsibility to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services;

(ii) ensure the management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system; and

(iii) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the listed company.

The Board considers that the Audit Committee of the Company shall recommend (as opposed to implement) the
policy on the engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services for the following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its committees to develop policy and make appropriate
recommendations;

(ii) the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of such policy and recommendations is through
the Executive Directors and management; and

(iiiy INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and follow up the same on a day-to-day basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Audit Committee (Cont’d)

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee of the Company only possesses the effective ability to
scrutinise (as opposed to ensure) whether management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal control
system. The Audit Committee is not equipped to ensure that the same is in place as this would involve day-to-day
supervision and the employment of permanent experts. The Audit Committee is not in a position either to ensure
co-ordination between the internal and external auditors but it can promote the same. Similarly, the Audit
Committee is not in a position to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced but it can check
whether it is adequately resourced.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the website of the Company.
The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance with its terms of reference. Two Committee
meetings were held in 2011 and the attendance of each member is set out in the section headed “Board

Committees” of this report.

In addition to the Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during
2011.1n 2011 and up to the date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board/Executive Committee’s approval the audit scope and fees proposed
by the external auditor in respect of the final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2010 (“2010 Final
Audit”), the interim results review for the six months ended 30th June, 2011 (“2011 Interim Review”) and the
final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2011 (“2011 Final Audit”) of the Group;

(i) reviewed the reports of findings/independent review report from the external auditor and the management’s
response in relation to the 2010 Final Audit, 2011 Interim Review and 2011 Final Audit;

(iii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the financial reports for the year ended
31st December, 2010, for the six months ended 30th June, 2011 and for the year ended 31st December, 2011

together with the relevant management representation letters and announcements;

(iv) reviewed the Internal Audit Follow-up Reports (“IA Reports”) prepared by the Group Internal Audit
Department (“IAD”);

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual review the Whistle Blower Policy;

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual review the Manual of Company Management Authority;
(vii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual review the Price-Sensitive Information Guideline;

(viii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual review the Connected Transaction Policies;

(ix) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the modified Related Party Transaction Policies and
Procedures to align with the amendments of the relevant Hong Kong Accounting Standards;

(x) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the report on substantiation of the resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their

training programmes and budget; and

(xi) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
to align with the amendments to the revised CG Code effective on 1st April, 2012.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since January 1993 and currently consists of three
Executive Directors, being Messrs. Lee Seng Hui (Chairman of the Executive Committee), Li Chi Kong and
Mark Wong Tai Chun. The Executive Committee is vested with all the general powers of management and
control of the activities of the Group as are vested in the Board, save for those matters which are reserved for the
Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of the Executive Committee. The terms
of reference of the Executive Committee were revised in November 2007 following the adoption of the Whistle
Blower Policy by the Company.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss the operating affairs of the Group and may
also deal with matters by way of circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible for undertaking and
supervising the day-to-day management and is empowered:

(i) to formulate and implement policies for the business activities, internal control and administration of the
Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business activities of the Group within the overall
strategy of the Group as determined by the Board.

CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to
regulate dealings in securities of the Company by certain employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
the holding companies who are considered to be likely in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Company or its securities.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the support from the Accounts Department,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2011, the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance were complied with. The Directors believe that they have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, and made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and ensure the consolidated financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 63 and 64.

Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to review annually the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems and
ensure that the controls are sound and effective to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and the Group's assets
at all times. In 2011, the Board, through the Audit Committee and IAD, had reviewed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONT’D)
Internal Control (Cont’d)

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of system failure; and to assist in the
achievement of the Group’s agreed objectives and goals. It has a key role in the management of risks that are
significant to the fulfilment of business objectives. In addition to safeguarding the Group'’s assets, it should provide
a basis for the maintenance of proper accounting records and assist in the compliance with relevant laws and
regulations.

The Company’s principal subsidiaries are managed under independent systems of internal controls. These
subsidiaries have provided appropriate assurance to the Company on their compliance with the CG Code
regarding internal control systems in general to the Company.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Manager reports to the Chairman and the Audit Committee. The IAD plays an important
role in providing assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated by
the management. This is part of the Board’s plan to enhance the standards of the Group’s overall corporate
governance and comply with the code provision C.2 of the CG Code.

The Group Overall Risk Profile Analysis Report, and the Group Internal Audit Plan and Strategy Report were
prepared by the IAD and issued to the Audit Committee and the Board for review. A discussion of the policies
and procedures on the management of each of the major types of risk which the Group is facing is included in
note 48c to the consolidated financial statements and under the “Management of Risks” section contained in the
Review of Operations on pages 12 and 13.

The IAD prepared the IA Reports of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2011. The IA Reports were
distributed to the Audit Committee and the Board for their review. The issues raised in the IA Reports were
addressed and managed properly by the management.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Group’s external auditors is set out as follows:

Services rendered for the Group HK$ Million
Audit services 7.9
Non-audit services
— Taxation services 0.9
— Other professional services 3.2
Total 12.0
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with Shareholders. Information in relation to the
Group is disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels, which include
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars. Such published documents together with the latest
corporate information and news are also made available on the website of the Company.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly with the Shareholders. The
Chairman actively participates at the AGM and personally chairs the meeting to answer any questions from the
Shareholders. The chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee or
in their absence, another member of the respective committees or failing that their respective duly appointed
delegate, are also available to answer questions at the AGM. The chairman of any independent board committee
formed as necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is appointed, at least a member
of the independent board committee) will also be available to answer questions at any general meeting of
the Shareholders to approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for each substantial issue, including the re-election of
retiring Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting
and to be sent at least 10 clear business days in case of all other general meetings. An explanation of the detailed
procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders at the commencement of the meeting. The
Chairman answers questions from Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll. The poll results are published in
the manner prescribed under the requirements of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with the CG Code of the Stock
Exchange but also about promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to
review and, where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes

and developments. Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and improve our transparency
are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March, 2012
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Directors’ Report

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents its annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities at 31st December, 2011 are set out in notes 58, 59 and 60 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company are set out in the consolidated income statement on
pages 65 and 66 and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK1.5 cents per share for the year ended 31st December, 2011
(2010: HK3 cents per share) payable to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 15th June, 2012. Since no interim dividend was paid for both
years, the total dividend for the year is HK1.5 cents per share (2010: HK3 cents per share). Details are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group spent HK$0.9 million on investment properties. Certain of the Group’s properties
previously included in prepaid land lease payments and property, plant and equipment with aggregated carrying
value of HK$255.1 million were transferred to investment properties. In addition, certain of the Group’s properties
previously included in investment properties with a carrying value of HK$51.9 million were transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31st December, 2011 at HK$6,192.2 million. The net
increase in fair value of HK$889.0 million attributable to investment properties held at 31st December, 2011 has
been credited to the consolidated income statement.

Details of these and other movements in the investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent HK$97.4 million on property, plant and equipment. The Group also disposed
of certain of its property, plant and equipment with a carrying value of HK$12.4 million. In addition, certain of
the Group’s properties previously included in investment properties with carrying values of HK$51.9 million were
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set
out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES
Particulars of major properties of the Group at 31st December, 2011 are set out on pages 210 to 212.
SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Details of movement in the share capital and outstanding warrants of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 37 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

A bonus issue of 2016 warrants (warrant code: 1183) was made on the basis of one warrant for every five ordinary
shares were approved by the Shareholders on 1st June, 2011. The warrant holders were entitled to subscribe in
cash for one fully paid share at an initial subscription price of HK$2.00 per share, subject to adjustments, at any
time from 13th June, 2011 to 13th June, 2016 (both days inclusive).
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 71 and 72 and note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Lee Seng Hui

Li Chi Kong

Mark Wong Tai Chun

Non-Executive Director:
Arthur George Dew

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Steven Samuel Zoellner

Alan Stephen Jones

David Craig Bartlett (appointed on 4th August, 2011)
John Douglas Mackie (resigned on 30th May, 2011)

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the articles of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”),
Messrs. Li Chi Kong and Alan Stephen Jones shall retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

In accordance with Article 96 of the Articles of Association, Mr. David Craig Bartlett shall hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service contract with
the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed below, all the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors
(“INEDs")) were appointed for a specific term of two years which shall continue until 31st December, 2012 but
subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors
shall vacate or retire from their office.

For Mr. David Craig Bartlett, an INED, his term of appointment commenced from 4th August, 2011 and shall

continue until 31st December, 2012, subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby a Director shall vacate or retire from his office.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31st December, 2011, Messrs. Lee Seng Hui, Mark Wong Tai Chun and Steven Samuel Zoellner, Directors, had
the following interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations, within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO:

Number of shares Approximate %
and underlying of the relevant
Name of Directors Name of Companies shares held issued share capital ~ Nature of interests
Lee Seng Hui the Company 6,036,371,254 81.95%  Other interests
(Note 1)
Mark Wong Tai Chun Allied Overseas Limited 143,043 0.06%  Personal interests
(“AOL") (Note 2) (Note 3) (held as beneficial owner)
Steven Samuel Zoellner the Company 77,282 0.00%  Personal interests
(Note 4) (held as beneficial owner)
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited 49,200 0.00%  Personal interests
(“SHK") (Note 2) (Note 5) (held as beneficial owner)
AOL (Note 2) 223,200 0.10%  Personal interests
(Note 6) (held as beneficial owner)

Notes :

1. The interests includes the holding of (i) 5,030,365,045 shares and (ii) 1,006,006,209 units of warrants of the Company (“Warrants”)
giving rise to an interest in 1,006,006,209 underlying shares of the Company. The Warrants entitle the holders thereof to subscribe at any
time during the period from 13th June, 2011 to 13th June, 2016 (both days inclusive) for fully paid shares of the Company at an initial
subscription price of HK$2.00 per share (subject to adjustments). Mr. Lee Seng Hui together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng
Huang are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. They together owned approximately 56.76% interests in the issued
share capital of Allied Group Limited (“AGL") (inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui’s personal interests) and were therefore deemed to have an
interest in 5,030,365,045 shares of the Company and 1,006,006,209 units of Warrants in which AGL were interested.

2. Both SHK and AOL are the indirect non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Therefore, SHK and AOL are associated corporations
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

3. This represents an interest in 119,203 shares and 23,840 units of warrants of AOL.
4. This represents an interest in 64,402 shares and 12,880 units of Warrants.

5. This represents an interest in 49,200 shares of SHK.

6. This represents an interest in 186,000 shares and 37,200 units of warrants of AOL.

7. Allinterests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st December, 2011, none of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following Directors (not being the INEDs) are considered to
have interests in the businesses listed below which compete or are likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group pursuant to the Listing Rules as set out below:

(i) Messrs. Arthur George Dew and Lee Seng Hui are directors of Allied Group Limited (“AGL”) which, through
a subsidiary, is partly engaged in the business of money lending and through certain of its subsidiaries and
associates, is partly involved in the investment and trading in listed securities in the resources and related
industries;

(i) Mr. Lee Seng Hui is a director of Tian An China Investments Company Limited (“TACI”) and one of the
trustees of Lee and Lee Trust which is a deemed substantial shareholder of each of AGL, Sun Hung Kai & Co.
Limited (“SHK"”) and TACI which, through their subsidiaries, are partly engaged in the businesses as follows:

-~ AGL, through a subsidiary, is partly engaged in the business of money lending;

- SHK, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of money lending and
property investment; and

—  TACI, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of money lending, property
development and investment;

(iii) Messrs. Lee Seng Hui, Li Chi Kong and Mark Wong Tai Chun are directors of Allied Kajima Limited which,
through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of property rental and hospitality related
activities;

(iv) Mr. Li Chi Kong is a director of AG Capital Limited, a subsidiary of AGL which is partly engaged in the
business of money lending;

(v) Mr. Lee Seng Hui is a director of each of APAC Resources Limited, Mount Gibson Iron Limited and Tanami
Gold NL (“Tanami Gold”) which, through certain of their respective subsidiaries, are partly involved in the
investment and trading in listed securities in the resources and related industries; and

(vi) Mr. Arthur George Dew is a director and Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun is an alternate director to Mr. Arthur
George Dew in Tanami Gold which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly involved in the investment
and trading in listed securities in the resources and related industries.

Although the above-mentioned Directors have competing interests in other companies by virtue of their respective
common directorship, they will fulfil their fiduciary duties in order to ensure that they will act in the best interest
of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable of carrying on its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the warrants holdings disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate with
the exception of granting of share options to subscribe for shares in the Company’s ultimate holding company,
AGL, under its share option scheme.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’” AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

At 31st December, 2011, the following Shareholders had interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate %

Number of shares and of the relevant
Name of Shareholders underlying shares held issued share capital Notes
Allied Group Limited (“AGL") 6,036,371,254 81.95% 1
Lee and Lee Trust 6,036,371,254 81.95% 2,3
Penta Investment Advisers Limited 1,073,311,047 14.57% 4

Notes :

1.

The interests includes the holding of: (i) an interest in 1,973,216,190 shares and 394,643,238 units of Warrants held by Capscore Limited
(“Capscore”); (i) an interest in 45,903,120 shares and 9,180,624 units of Warrants held by Citiwealth Investment Limited (“Citiwealth”);
(i) an interest in 2,042,890,855 shares and 408,511,371 units of Warrants held by Sunhill Investments Limited (“Sunhill”); and (iv) an
interest in 968,354,880 shares and 193,670,976 units of Warrants held by AGL. The Warrants held by Capscore, Citiwealth, Sunhill and
AGL gave rise to an interest in an aggregate of 1,006,006,209 underlying shares of the Company. Capscore, Citiwealth and Sunhill are
all wholly-owned subsidiaries of AGL. AGL was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and the underlying shares in which
Capscore, Citiwealth and Sunhill were interested.

This represents the same interests of AGL in 5,030,365,045 shares and an interest in 1,006,006,209 units of Warrants.
Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Director, together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a
discretionary trust. They together owned approximately 56.76% interests in the issued share capital of AGL (inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui’s

personal interests) and were therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and the underlying shares in which AGL was interested.

The interests includes (i) an interest in 559,829,637 shares; and (ii) an interest in 99,682,057 of listed physically settled derivatives and
413,799,353 unlisted cash settled derivatives, total equivalent to 513,481,410 underlying shares of the Company.

All interests stated above represent long positions.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31st January, 2011 and the 2010 Annual Report
of the Company, the Company entered into a renewed sharing of administrative services and management
services agreement (“Services Agreement”) with AGL on 31st January, 2011, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to renew and extend the terms of the sharing of administrative services and management services
agreement dated 31st January, 2008 for a period of three years commencing from 1st January, 2011 to 31st
December, 2013 to reimburse AGL the actual costs incurred in respect of the administrative services, which
included corporate secretarial services, provision of registered office address, office space, utilities, courier
and delivery, telephone (including international telephone), internet, photocopying and other ancillary
office services provided by AGL to the Group (i.e. the Company and its subsidiaries, but excluding those
in the group of SHK and AOL) (“Administrative Services”) and management services, which included the
management, consultancy, strategic and business advice services provided by the senior management and the
selective staff of AGL to the Group (i.e. the Company and its subsidiaries, but excluding those in the group of
SHK and AOL) (“Management Services”).

The annual caps for the transactions under the Services Agreement were set at HK$11,640,000,
HK$13,040,000 and HK$14,640,000 respectively for each of the three financial years ending
31st December, 2013. Pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, details of the Services Agreement and the
aggregate amount of the Management Services for the year ended 31st December, 2011 of HK$11,640,000
are required to be included in this report of the Company in accordance with Rule 14A.45 of the Listing
Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

2. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30th December, 2009 and the 2010 Annual
Report of the Company, a renewed tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into on
24th December, 2009 between Hillcrest Development Limited (“Hillcrest”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as the landlord and AGL as the tenant for the renewal of a tenancy of 60 Plantation Road,
The Peak, Hong Kong (“Premises”) for residential use for a further term of two years commencing from
1st January, 2010 to 31st December, 2011 at a monthly rental of HK$380,000 (exclusive of rates and
management fee). The Premises is held by Hillcrest for investment purposes. The rent has been determined
based on the prevailing market rent as reviewed by Norton Appraisals Limited, which is an independent firm
of property valuer and is not a connected person to the Company as defined under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the transaction under the Tenancy Agreement was set at HK$4,560,000 for each of the
two financial years ended 31st December, 2011. Pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, details of the
Tenancy Agreement and the annual cap of HK$4,560,000 are required to be included in this report of the
Company in accordance with Rule 14A.45 of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23rd December, 2011, a renewal tenancy
agreement (“Renewal Tenancy”) was entered into on 23rd December, 2011 between Hillcrest as the landlord
and AGL as the tenant for the renewal of the Tenancy Agreement of the Premises for a further term of two
years commencing from Tst January, 2012 to 31st December, 2013. In accordance with the requirements of
Rules 14A.34 and 14A.45 of the Listing Rules, details of the Renewal Tenancy will be included in the next
published annual report of the Company.

Since AGL is the controlling shareholder and ultimate holding company of the Company, the transactions
contemplated under the Services Agreement, the Tenancy Agreement (collectively “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) and the Renewal Tenancy constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules, which are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but are
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The transaction
regarding the sharing of the Administrative Services between the Company and AGL contemplated under the
Services Agreement are exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rules 14A.31(8) and 14A.33(2) of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have reviewed the Continuing Connected Transactions
and have confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions were:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(ii) conducted on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor of the Company to perform a review
in respect of the above Continuing Connected Transactions and the auditor has reported its conclusion to the
Board, confirming the matters set out in Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Executive Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms under their employment
contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than 30%
of the total turnover for the year. Also, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
taken together were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers
and customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities
during the year ended 31st December, 2011.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$3.6 million during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
16 to 25.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March, 2012
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TO THE MEMBERS OF ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Allied
Properties (H.K.) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 65
to 208, which comprise the consolidated and Company’s
statements of financial position as at 31st December, 2011, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONT’D)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31st December, 2011, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

/%%izz-%é;4'252;wéw

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
29th March, 2012
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

Continuing operations
Revenue
Other income

Total income

Cost of sales and other direct costs

Brokerage and commission expenses

Selling and marketing expenses

Administrative expenses

Changes in values of properties

Net (loss) gain on financial instruments

Net exchange gain or loss

Bad and doubtful debts

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Share of results of jointly controlled
entities

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year from continuing
operations

Discontinued operations

(Loss) profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Profit for the year
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Notes
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6 &7
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10

12

13

14

15

2011 2010
2-—F T
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET A EHE T
(Restated)

(FE51)

4,047.9 3,493.6
57.9 86.0
4,105.8 3,579.6
(228.8) (221.5)
(214.4) (219.2)
(103.7) (77.1)
(1,254.0) (1,016.6)
912.7 871.3
(147.0) 128.2
(45.2) 0.3
(169.3) (109.8)
(281.4) (289.1)
(77.7) (72.1)
337.1 612.4
166.7 135.9
3,000.8 3,322.3
(398.0) (312.7)
2,602.8 3,009.6
(1.5) 1,102.2
2,601.3 4,111.8
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Profit for the year from
continuing operations
(Loss) profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests
Profit for the year from
continuing operations
(Loss) profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Earnings per share

From continuing and discontinued
operations
Basic

Diluted

From continuing operations
Basic

Diluted

e
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2011 2010
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Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
FRE BEET EX- P
1,889.3 2,266.8
(1.0) 736.3
1,888.3 3,003.1
713.5 742.8
(0.5) 365.9
713.0 1,108.7
2,601.3 4,111.8
HK Cents HK Cents
el w1l
16

26.26 45.11
26.26 45.11
26.27 33.84
26.27 33.84
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Available-for-sale financial assets
— Net fair value changes during the year
— Reclassification adjustment to
profit or loss on disposal

Reclassification adjustment to
profit or loss on disposal/liquidation
of subsidiaries

Reclassification adjustment to profit or
loss on liquidation of a jointly
controlled entity

Revaluation gain on properties
transferred from property, plant and
equipment to investment properties

Deferred tax arising from revaluation gain
on properties transferred from property,
plant and equipment to investment
properties

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive
income of associates

Share of other comprehensive
income of jointly controlled entities

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

BBt A S B

ARAE S i M)

HoAt 2 A
AR
— AR TR B R
— A R R
BT R B R AR

Ny YAk
HHIRGARE
Bk

R — o ] 42 ) £ SE T M g
HHRGARE
Btk

R YIE - s
Gt EXva<ey/ES iPd
bl d

RYZER I ~ RS K
BYTLSER ey
Wiy 2 B A i a7 AR
ZARIEFIH

Pria S S MR 7 A 2
ME i 2230

JRE A 88 ) FL At 2 T
Wi

B A ] 2 o £ S LAt
AR

AR HoAh 2 T i 25
EL BB A

AR JEE A THT AL At AR

JEAL J7:
A FIR
JEHE I AT

2011 2010
—g——& —F3g
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTR LY
2,601.3 4,111.8
(19.2) 12.2
4.3) 2.1
(23.5) 10.1
- (38.0)
(0.3) =
146.0 137.5
(24.0) (22.2)
111.3 76.2
250.8 142.9
0.1 3.7
460.4 310.2
3,061.7 4,422.0
2,243.7 3,214.8
818.0 1,207.2
3,061.7 4,422.0
Report 2011
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at 31st December, 2011

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land lease payments

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Interests in associates

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Available-for-sale financial assets

Statutory deposits

Amounts due from associates

Loans and advances to consumer
finance customers due after one year

Prepaid deposits for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and
other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Current assets

Properties held for sale and other
inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Prepaid land lease payments

Loans and advances to consumer finance
customers due within one year

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from jointly controlled
entities

Tax recoverable

Short-term pledged bank deposits

Cash, deposits and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Amount due to a holding company

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to jointly controlled entities

Tax payable

Bank and other borrowings due within
one year

Mandatory convertible notes

Provisions

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

REF——F+ZH=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F B4R
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5 BEBTT H WG
#milﬁé
id-C/ES 18 6,192.2 5,156.4
W2 ~ W KAt 19 594.8 627.9
TS 20 10.0 10.0
ik 21 2,490.3 2,490.3
I & 22 1,027.2 1,190.4
S R NEIP& 26 6,226.2 5,274.9
A [ 2 @%Z%é 27 1,387.9 1,221.6
AT il 28 316.2 292.1
‘72%?"33 26.9 50.8
B 8 T R K 34 51.3 56.1
*Eéﬁ%zﬁkwﬁgﬁ
BRI EGK 29 2,972.6 2,291.9
WS E ~ W7 Bt 2
A {545 4 Ko HoAth L
HIH 36.5 33.4
HESE R T 30 92.7 94.1
AR RS IR AN THEE R
G A 32 642.1 -
22,066.9 18,789.9
RBEE
T H B2 ) 2 % HoAth
T 31 441.8 412.8
A S IR A TEE R
%ﬁﬁﬂ%é 32 547.1 720.7
TS 20 0.4 0.4
—FENEHZ RN
W% 5 B S E#GK 29 4,583.5 3,172.6
& 5 F FHAth R i IR 33 6,397.4 6,737.3
/NI /¢ 34 373.6 58.5
] 42 il > 26
KK 8.6 7.7
A Y il i S 17.1 1.5
S HHERATHEA A 2K 96.5 99.5
B4 - R B E5EY 35 3,903.2 4,255.0
16,369.2 15,466.0
REBEE
L o I Ho A B Ak 36 1,104.6 1,460.9
u@%aﬁuﬂﬁ?"/\%%ﬁfﬁiiz
F‘iﬂ/\f,\ 42 15.0 6.3
— ¥R A 3.9 24.9
/\H?B’rﬂ%/\? J\IE 1,255.3 757.1
YN /NEIE O 32.7 14.1
R[] 2 1] £ SE A 50.1 0.1
JREAS ol T 102.0 106.7
—AENEI 2 80T
HAtbf 5 43 3,098.3 2,874.8
SR o) 1 T R B 45 - 32.6
B Al 46 48.0 74.7
5,709.9 5,352.2
REBEEFE 10,659.3 10,113.8
HEERMBERS 32,726.2 28,903.7
ual Report 20



at 31st December, 2011

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Equity elements of mandatory
convertible notes and warrants
Shares held for employee ownership
scheme

Employee share-based compensation
reserve

Share of net assets of subsidiaries

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Bank and other borrowings
due after one year

Bonds

Amount due to an associate

Mandatory convertible notes

Deferred tax liabilities

Provisions

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 208 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
29th March, 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

REF——F+ZH=+—H

Notes
M 5E

WA HE
g As 37
JA0 365 1 K At 40
A F R R AEML

R

i ) A TR 2 e

PR IAE 8 2 RE 45 Ry 45
Fo i B A wT

T ey
DARSAR SZAS 2 A8 5 B 4

frtfe
JREA ] JB5 2 ) 1%

AR
XA

FREBERE
—AEAREIHA 2 $R T

HAthfi & 43
B 44
R — [HI W 5 =R

56 gl P ] 4 B 45
AR AER T B 1 30
B 46

Arthur George Dew

IREEE
Director

HE

2011 2010
—g——%& gy
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEABT H &G
1,473.2 1,390.6
18,166.9 15,968.9
19,640.1 17,359.5
57.6 1,616.5
(19.6) (23.7)

9.4 10.6
8,330.4 6,033.6
8,377.8 7,637.0
28,017.9 24,996.5
3,405.4 2,690.4
555.8 500.0

- 47.1

- 45.9

732.4 610.9
14.7 12.9
4,708.3 3,907.2
32,726.2 28,903.7

Li Chi Kong
25
Director

HF

65 H 2208 H Z A8 & B e RAEFE H a0
TR -THEZA T UHRE R AR TR -
BT AIE R AREE
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70

at 31st December, 2011

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Short-term pledged bank deposit
Cash, deposits and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Amount due to a holding company
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

Total equity

Non-current liability
Amount due to a subsidiary

FRBEE
Y E
KA F 2 BE
Wi )& 2 = KK

REBEE

5 5 B FAb E IR IA

WY Jag 2~ ) KK
JE I SRATHEAT A 5K

Bl - RSB ESEY

RBEE

© 5 R At R0H
R — I R #0H

IR J 2~ il IR

RBEEFE

MEERRBAE

MR R i
A

I i AL % fete
REEARE

FRBEME

R — [ B 2~ il A

Arthur George Dew

IREEE
Director

HE

REF——F+ZH=+—H

Notes

Bt &

22
24
25

25

41

37
40

41

2011 2010
—g——fF R EE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT EX- P
0.5 0.5
447 .4 299.9
9,166.2 9,221.8
9,614.1 9,522.2
0.8 0.6
502.9 463.2
80.0 98.0
3.1 6.5
586.8 568.3
1.0 0.8
3.1 22.1
47.7 23.3
51.8 46.2
535.0 522.1
10,149.1 10,044.3
1,473.2 1,390.6
8,650.3 8,237.1
10,123.5 9,627.7
25.6 416.6
10,149.1 10,044.3
Li Chi Kong
Z= 5
Director
HH
ual Report 20
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 BEF——HFTH=T—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——f e S <2
Notes HK$ Million HKS$ Million
(o3 BEET A BT
Operating activities RExK
Profit for the year AAERE Jii M 2,601.3 41118
Adjustments for: PARIEH
Taxation FiA 398.0 316.7
Fair value loss (gain) on financial instruments 4l T /A T8 (E 548 (1) 221.3 (11.0)
Amortisation of intangible assets ESIA S 198.9 201.4
Bad and doubtful debts SRR 176.5 109.8
Finance costs A 77.7 72.1
Depreciation i 60.8 68.5
Net exchange loss e 15 T 60.4 34.5
Expenses recognised for employee ownership B34 B/ & ([ Hrigdt )
scheme of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited 1§ B R A st IR 2
(“SHK”) L0 9.0 9.2
Impairment loss recognised (reversed) R (HE ] ) IR T A m) 2 A
for interests in associates (1 5.4 2.3)
Impairment loss for amounts due from - YNCIVE O]
associates 1R 4.9 0.3
Net loss on disposal of property, HEYE - B Rk &
plant and equipment and intangible assets ELSIA Y it 4.2 3.6
Impairment loss recognised (reversed) FERR (FE [ ) WG W
for hotel property (e 1R 4.0 (5.7)
Loss (gain) on disposal of Disposal Group HEDEHER 2 EE () 15 1.5 (1,093.9)
Impairment loss for available-for-sale AT G R
financial assets 1R 0.5 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments T E#E 0.4 0.4
Net increase in fair value of investment BEYE N TEEH
properties FH (889.0) (794.9)
Share of results of associates JRE A 2N ) 24 (337.1) (612.4)
Share of results of a jointly controlled entities {5 3L il {3 45 (166.7) (135.9)
Impairment loss reversed for properties BB EYEZBIE
held for sale 3} (27.7) (70.7)
Profit on disposal of investment properties HESCESE A (20.8) (9.4)
Net realised profit on disposal of associates BB A ) 2 O B AR A (13.4) =
Net realised profit on disposal of HETHHE SREE L
available-for-sale financial assets C 2 B ) (5.3) 2.1
Profit on liquidation of a jointly — R EE B
controlled entity B ) 0.1 -
Impairment loss recognised for e & 2 CHERRm A
intangible assets | 3 - 1.0
Profit on disposal of a subsidiary A — P B ) 2 e A - (29.3)
Profit on liquidation of subsidiaries Wit ) i A 2 s - (3.7)
Operating cash flows before movements ARt EEE SR
in working capital REEBR B E 2,364.7 2,158.0
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED Annual Report 2011
FEBE (FEEB)ARAF -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

Increase in loans and advances to consumer
finance customers

Increase in properties held for sale and other
inventories

(Increase) decrease in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Decrease (increase) in trade and other
receivables

Decrease in trade and other payables

Increase (decrease) in financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

(Decrease) increase in amount due to a holding
company and fellow subsidiaries

(Decrease) increase in provision and other
liabilities

Cash used in operations
Interest paid
Taxation paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Investing activities

Proceeds on disposal of investment properties

Dividend received from associates

Net repayment (payment) of statutory deposits

Proceeds on disposal of an associate

Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Amounts repaid by jointly controlled entities

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Liquidation of jointly controlled entities

Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Amounts repaid by associates

Dividend received from a jointly controlled
entity

Fixed deposits with banks placed

Purchase of long-term financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit
on loss

Amounts advanced to an associate

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Acquisition of additional interest in associates

Additions to intangible assets

Increase in prepaid deposits for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Amount advanced to a jointly controlled entity

Additions to investment properties

Proceeds on disposal of Disposal Group

Disposal of a subsidiary

Amounts repaid to jointly controlled entities

Liquidation/disposal of subsidiaries

Acquisition of a jointly controlled entity

Net cash (used in) from investing activities

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

ﬁkﬁﬁgﬁﬁ &N

o
etk B B A A 8
B
R T R
SR () WD
53 T RN
(i)
52 53 T EL A S
BB IR A TR
SRANNN (D)

A5 R FB % ) [ 2 W 2 P8

(b ) B
i R AR AR (D)
e

mEmm B
EAFIE
EfBIR

REXBMAZAEFE

REEE

ﬁﬁﬁ§%¥%ﬁﬁ

%Ef%ﬁ 1%A@%

H B — [ A 7 TR R

B T {1 41 4 R 1 1
I

SRR il 4 S K

SRATHRH P )

e[ Pl b S AR

HEYEE - BURE K s
H‘}\IE

W Al R

%E W LRl 2

ﬁAﬁﬁm%ﬁ

I A48 8 B B4R 1 R
TN FEEREZ
R REE

BT — S AR

AP - MF& et

S AT 4 Rl

W BN ) 2 RV

BT

W ERHIZE ~ B Rkt 2
FRHE SR

BT — MR 5

REREYE

i B A 15 2R

8 — [ 2 7

BT AL R o A2

WHE Al

W B — ] P ] 2 o s 2

REXB (TR FEEZRE

BBt A S I

2011 2010

—E——-f ZE—FAE

Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
MtsE HEAT HEBIT
(2,165.6) (1,126.6)
(1.4) (1.4)

(354.2) 32.9
278.4 (1,147.7)
(345.4) (135.7)
8.7 (31.5)
I

(19.2) 7.8

(16.8) 55.0
(250.8) (189.2)
(69.4) (73.6)
(319.6) (231.0)
(639.8) (493.8)

83.5 22.1

76.0 47.5
24.0 (14.8)

13.4 -

10.0 7.4

8.2 4.7

3.0 38.1

1.0 0.6

0.2 0.7

0.1 322.6

0.1 -
(653.5) (282.4)

(395.8) -
(318.2) (299.0)
(79.5) (113.4)
(562.9) (6.8)
(46.9) (223.3)
(34.0) (19.6)
(16.3) (29.6)
(8.9) (8.5)
0.9) (1.4)

15 - 1,509.6
- 39.6
- (52.1)
- (11.8)

- (0.2)

FH (1,387.4) 930.0

nual Report 20



for the year ended 31st December, 2011

Financing activities

New bank and other borrowings raised

Proceeds from issue of bonds by a subsidiary

Amounts advanced by fellow subsidiaries

Capital contribution by non-controlling interests

Amount advanced by a jointly controlled entity

Amounts advanced by associates

Repayment of bank and other borrowings

Repayment of bonds

Dividends and repayments by subsidiaries to
non-controlling interests

Dividends paid to equity shareholders

Acquisition of additional interests in
subsidiaries

Amounts repaid to fellow subsidiaries

Amount paid for shares repurchased and
cancelled by subsidiaries

Amounts repaid to associates

Purchase of shares for employee ownership
scheme of SHK

Proceeds from issue of mandatory convertible
notes and warrants

Net cash from financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank overdrafts

AR

FEIIERAT LA
— R  F 8 AT iR 2 P a0R

FEi) YNTIE-T
TP a e G A
— [H]3L IR £ ] £ SE B
L NS

TR SRAT SO
R

P 7 1 45 e e

TR A BCE B R
SR T HE AR ORI R
WS A ) 2 AR

5
CEARE ) YARE
P J 2 = [

RE R A3 B SRR
TR w0
ST B R

A at SR Ao
AT IVE AT U

AR RE 2 PR

REXBREL 2R FE

RERREEENORD) B

R
EXEHoTE

RENZAERRE
SEM

RERZRERRE
SEM

RERREEENESS
2

B RBESEY

RATIE

BBt A S B

2011 2010
—g——% 5%k
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
FsE HEAT HEBIT
1,710.2 2,906.5
590.9 -
550.0 -
122.4 -
50.0 -
0.1 47.2
(758.4) (1,638.8)
(500.0) -
(282.6) (218.3)
(208.6) (91.3)
(86.7) (2.8)
(50.7) (800.0)
(44.2) (91.5)
(24.0) -
(14.7) (3.6)
- 1,708.0
1,053.7 1,815.4
(973.5) 2,251.6
13.2 2.2
3,922.6 1,668.8
2,962.3 3,922.6
35 2,962.3 3,972.6
43 - (50.0)
2,962.3 3,922.6
nual Report 20

75



76

for the year ended 31st December, 2011

1.

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong
Kong”) and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The ultimate
holding company is Allied Group Limited, a listed public
limited company which is also incorporated in Hong
Kong. The ultimate controlling party of the Company is the
trustees of Lee & Lee Trust. The address of the principal
place of business of the trustees of Lee & Lee Trust is 24/F,
Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company is 22/F, Allied
Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (“Group”) are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities are set out in notes 58, 59
and 60 respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of
new and revised Standards, Amendments to Standards
and Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs
has had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting
periods.
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2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards and amendments that have been issued
but are not yet effective, and are relevant to the operations
of the Group.

Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income!

Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets?

Separate Financial Statements?

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKAS 12 (Amendment)
HKAS 27 (2011)

Investment in Associates and
Joint Ventures3

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures>

HKAS 28 (2011)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements3

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2012
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2014
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2015

The amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures
to be made in the other comprehensive income section
such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis.
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2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations in issue
but not yet effective (Cont’d)

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2012. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income
will be modified accordingly when the amendments are
applied in the future accounting periods.

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to
the general principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement
of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should
reflect the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the entity expects to recover the carrying
amount of an asset. Specifically, under the amendments,
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment
Property are presumed to be recovered through sale for
the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the
presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances. The
Group anticipates that the application of the amendments
to HKAS 12 may affect the measurement of the Group’s
deferred taxation. The management is still in the process of
assessing the impact of the amendments.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offsetting requirements. Specifically,
the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous
realisation and settlement”.

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

BE=F A=t B

Ze

KRR RAEETE BB REER
(TERMBEHREER ) (F)

B E 1 R A R AT RASEFT R K
RE(E)

T a1 R BRI % — A
t A — A RIR B iR 2 A B Ak o R
A% & w30 e T R S5 A R > HiAt T
Wt H H 2 2EHEE AR 2 -

A ERTERS 1 298 2 BT R A et
HE Q51 298 — MR AN Z BISME DL > BIAEAE
BLIE 7 I AR B A B A 2 R S
A TR o] 5 P MR (B 2 7 SR B AR
oo JUHRE - IRIEZEEH] - lat EIRE
BUIHTT & o RIEAE A aahiE SR 40 55 £
B |l A HEE R AR 2 B
SE T HERT Ry g i B W] > BRI A B A
TEA TE UL T BRI o A< SR [ TSI 1
W RHENISE 258 2B U] Al ARSI AR S IR
IERLE 2 G AR o B AIE FF il %
LK s Z W

AR I 5 3 298 2 A6 T W) P B Ik S
SR E A B < BB D o JUHR - BRTA
[ Y T 58 R A A P AR ] o R LA T 2 4R
S HE | BT IR IR 5 B R A 0 | 2 TR o

T R LA AR A 2 A s T Y
BRI MR T A T
E o I T F - TARRERT 2 B B U
HE QIS 9 SR AL A B 2 B 2 o G
B R FERR Z BUE



for the year ended 31st December, 2011

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations in issue
but not yet effective (Cont’d)

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
an entity may make an irrevocable election to present
changes in fair value of equity investments in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
recognised in profit or loss. The applicable of HKFRS 9
might affect the measurement of the Group’s financial
assets. The management is still in the process of assessing
the impact of adoption of HKFRS 9.

In June 2011, a package of five Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five Standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements. HK(SIC) — Int12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities” has been
withdrawn upon the issuance of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS
10, there is only one basis for consolidation, that is control.
In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control
that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified.
HK(SIC) — Int 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
monetary Contributions by Venturers” has been withdrawn
upon the issuance of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint
arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS
31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations.
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2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations in issue
but not yet effective (Cont’d)

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to
be accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and
HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11 and HKFRS 12.

These five standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January, 2013. Earlier application
is permitted provided that all of these five standards are
applied early at the same time.

The Directors anticipate that these five standards will be
adopted in the Group's consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1st January, 2013. The
application of these five standards may have impact on
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the Directors have not yet performed a detailed
analysis of the impact of the application of these Standards
and hence have not yet quantified the extent of the impact.

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The Standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which
other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
required in the current standards.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January, 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1st January, 2013 and that the
application of the new Standard may affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and result in more
extensive disclosures in the financial statements.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other
new and revised standards and amendments will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

3.

RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES

In prior years, the net gain or loss on financial instruments
(“Net Gain or Loss”) were classified under revenue. The net
exchange gain and net exchange loss were classified under
other income and other operating expenses respectively.
In the current year, the Directors have determined that
the Net Gain or Loss and the net exchange gain and loss
are classified as two separate items in the consolidated
income statement. Accordingly, the comparatives of the
consolidated income statement are restated: — Net Gain
or Loss of HK$128.2 million and net exchange gain of
HK$0.3 million were reclassified out of revenue and other
income respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at fair
value, as explained in the principal accounting policies set
out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition and up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. Prior to 1st
January, 2010, losses applicable to the non-controlling
interests in excess of the non-controlling interests in the
subsidiary's equity were allocated against the interests of
the Group except to the extent that the non-controlling
interests had a binding obligation and were able to make
an additional investment to cover the losses.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them) and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest with any resulting difference being
recognise a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to
the Group. Where assets of the subsidiary are carried at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings
as specified by applicable HKFRS). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place on or after 1st
January, 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1st
January, 2010 (Cont’d)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests” proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or where applicable on the
basis specified in other Standard.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS
39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1st
January, 2010 (Cont’d)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

Business combinations that took place prior to 1st January,
2010

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the relevant
conditions for recognition are generally recognised at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
recognised amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment,
the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess
was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportionate shares
of the recognised amounts of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised of the acquiree.

When a subsidiary is acquired through more than one
exchange transaction, the cost of acquisition is the
aggregate cost of the individual transactions, with the cost
of each individual transaction determined at the date of
each exchange transaction. Each transaction is treated
separately to determine the goodwill on that transaction,
using cost and fair value information at the date of each
exchange transaction.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost plus deemed capital
contribution less impairment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received or receivable.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associates. Where necessary, adjustments are made to
bring the accounting policies of associates in conformity
with the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equal or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and
is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
as a single asset. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate.
Any reversal of impairment loss is recognised to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Where the Group interest in an associate increases,
whether directly or indirectly, the impact of the change
should be accounted for as an incremental purchase of the
associate and recognised at cost.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties undertake an economic activity
that is subject to joint control, that is when the strategic
financial and operating policy decisions relating to the
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Interests in jointly controlled entities (Cont’d)

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to
as jointly controlled entities. The results and assets and
liabilities of jointly controlled entities are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statement using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any
identified impairment loss. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to bring the accounting policies of jointly
controlled entities in conformity with the Group. When the
Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equal
or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled
entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the jointly controlled
entity recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. Goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment as a single asset. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment in the jointly controlled entity. Any
reversal of impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Where the Group transacts with a jointly controlled entity
of the Group, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entity.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary,
an associate or a jointly controlled entity for which
the agreement date is on or after 1st January, 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the date
of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Goodwill (Cont’d)

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
subsidiary is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Capitalised goodwill arising
on an acquisition of an associate or a jointly controlled
entity is included in the cost of the investment of the
relevant associate or jointly controlled entity.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant subsidiary, associate
and jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Income from properties developed for sale is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the properties are transferred to buyers, which is when the
construction of relevant properties has been completed
and the properties have been delivered to the purchasers
and collectibility of related receivables is reasonably
assured. Profit or loss arising from the outright sale of
an entire development property prior to completion
is recognised when a binding sales contract becomes
unconditional and the risks and rewards of the ownership
have been transferred to the buyer. Deposits received from
sales of properties are carried in the statement of financial
position under current liabilities.

Rental income from properties under operating leases,
including rentals invoiced in advance, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Income from the provision of services, including
medical services, nursing agencies, physiotherapy and
dental services and elderly care services, is recognised
upon the provision of the relevant services or on a
time apportionment basis over the terms of the service
contracts.

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold.

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised when services
are provided.

BE=F A=t B

4.

EESBER ()

e (%)

WS P A B % ) AR 2 AN T R R B
IR DL A7y B R o WSO 2 R B3t
] 42 il i 2 e A= 2 AR AL 81 A AT Bl
B F) B[R] 42 ) b SE 2 BOE A o

HAR & AT B W& 2 =)~ W os 2 w] B L[]
ZEdlE - AL B ISR A
i E 2 R AR B

LN

We A F% H O SERS b Ll S R UE 2 A
EERE > IRE & &M L C R OIRE 2 e
WORIE > FUBRYTH10 B A B 8 45 BLIH

H B R Y SE R A ) SE R HER EE R
JaRRRR T ) i 34 e B Oy R R - 4 A
B ER R TR SERm Y C it 7
H5 o Ml PR E WO B O IR Y
A RETEIRE o 75 g SR IR T R 08 58 e ) 2
H B BT A 4 i A S TR — i B AT SR AT Y
S5 5 < ) 0 SR P B A Y e % [
T O T RO R AR o OB TR B
Fal eI BB AR VLR A B B A -

RBHA Y EH S (BFETRHTF
PO 2 M) ) LAUE SRR HE AR B A B

PR AERBS (LA B AR5 ~ RS AR BT -
W B B M O BB M e RES ) 2 A
TP B AR ] 5 ey I8 % S5 IR 5 A 3 A1
i B MRS ey ] 2 LB RERR o

S 15 B i WA T A TR e % [
R T H RN - HAE M C A AR
PEATHENE AR BRI AT B 22 B 3B ]
A A T HE R TR

TG SEBS AT B 1A i 5 s AR, o



for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Interest income from financial assets is recognised on
a time apportionment basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
owner’s right to receive payment has been established.

Commission income is recognised as income on trade date
basis.

Underwriting commission, sub-underwriting income,
placing commission and sub-placing commission are
recognised as income in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the relevant agreement or deal mandate
when the relevant significant act has been completed.

Fees for management and advisory services for funds are
recognised when the related services are rendered.

Realised profits or losses from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised on a trade date basis
whilst the unrealised profits or losses are recognised from
valuation at the end of the reporting period.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Croup as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The Croup as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are charged directly to profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid land
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity
are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (its functional
currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of each
entity are expressed in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company, and the presentation
currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each group
individual entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable asset
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in the translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised on a time
apportionment basis, taking into account the principal and
the effective interest rates. They are charged to the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

The contributions payable to the Group’s retirement
benefit schemes and the mandatory provident fund scheme
are charged to the consolidated income statement as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contribution.

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, where appropriate, based
on approved formulas that take into consideration the
profit attributable to the Group after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

BBt A B

4.

EESBER ()

S (%)

M INER S MBS WER S > AL IME
BB B MR R R R 2 9
MER MG =AM 2 25| W (AT -
A K S TE T 35% 4F 2 - R A
AT - B IR ME 27 62 300 ) i BLOK W e
HIPER G > RBEAE UL > RUBR IR S 5
H 2 MESSHRGE o B A 2 M i 2230 (0 )
J 7 JF At 4 TG Wi i e R - I M 2 2R T
(I 5L ) o

AT WS e & S5 7 A 22 e S BT A T ik

SV E 2 N FE(E AR > TINS5

B A R R T i R 2 BAT I

%%%ﬁ%o%éiZ@ﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁ%
RS ©

B E A

SR ~ s R S AR (RIS T
R 00 ] A AT A0 B8 Dk B A ) )
HHA B 2 A8 SORAS I 2 5% 55 R 2
A HERZSEFE LR O] fE R
TR E 2 1k o FEE R RSN E E
R A BEAE AR AE 50 i BT A 1 R 4
G BB > (e A EREA L i
BRRA IR o

FCA A A5 B A T K8 i B As 4 BLEL A
A% o LARFIHI i Al > MR AR 2
[HI7E TR SR HRATIBR o

EEER

18 B e = 47l 2 HE 4 i I B RE = A IRy e
i o WL I B IR AUIRE At 2k R 2
AR Al R R AR A -

JEAS T AR S [ 2 AR AR I ) o Al A
T w3 0N B 2 SO A B AT {3t
AR 2 RS 5 A 2y B S 7E £ U B A1 41
% o

AR B B4 B RR T 5 5 T SR A AL K o ki
AR BB ST (W) - et Bk
75 A 42 1 B £ i A1) I A o o T o
T HH B 40 B AT BOR A 15 | BoHfE 2 AT
R > 4R [ R e SR B4

91



92

for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)

For shares of SHK (“Awarded Shares”) granted under the
employee ownership scheme of SHK, the fair value of the
employee services received is determined by reference to
the fair value of Awarded Shares granted at the grant date
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (employee
share-based compensation reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of Awarded Shares that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates, if any, is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to the employee share-based
compensation reserve.

Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences
arise from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Taxation (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax law) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets
and liabilities. Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Investment properties

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation, is stated at its fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
credited or charged to the consolidated income statement
in the year in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year
in which the item is derecognised.

Transfers to, or from, investment property are made in the
following circumstances:

— commencement of owner-occupation, for a transfer
from investment property to owner-occupied property;

— end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-
occupied property to investment property; and

— commencement of an operating lease to another
party, for a transfer from inventories to investment
properties.

For a transfer from investment property carried at fair value
to owner-occupied property or inventories, the property’s
deemed cost for subsequent accounting shall be its fair
value at the date of change in use.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties (Cont'd)

For a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment
property, the entity shall treat any difference at that date
between the carrying amount of the property and its fair
value in the same way as a revaluation surplus. The excess
of the fair value of the property at the date of transfer over
the carrying amount of the property is credited to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised as
an expense, in which case the increase is credited to
the consolidated income statement to the extent of the
decrease previously charged to consolidated income
statement. The excess of the carrying amount of the
property at the date of transfer over the fair value of the
property is recognised in consolidated income statement
to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, on the
revaluation reserve relating to a previously revaluation of
the same asset. On subsequent disposal of the investment
property, the revaluation surplus included in equity may
be transferred to accumulated profits. The transfer from
revaluation surplus to accumulated profits is not made
through profit or loss.

For a transfer from inventories to investment property that
will be carried at fair value, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying
amount shall be recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purpose are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of

items of property, plant and equipment over their estimated

useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated

residual value, using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Hotel property 2% or over the remaining term
of the lease or useful lives,
whichever is shorter

2% to 3% or over the
remaining terms of the leases
or useful lives, whichever is
shorter

Leasehold improvements  20%

Furniture, fixtures 10% to 50%
and equipment

Motor vehicles and
vessels

Leasehold land and
buildings

162/3% to 20%
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

When the nature of the lessee property interest changes
from investment property to property, plant and
equipment, the lessee shall continue to account for the
lease as a finance lease.

Prepaid land lease payments

The up-front prepayments made for the leasehold land
and land use rights that are classified as operating leases
are amortised in the consolidated income statement on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease or when
there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in the
consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately
and from business combinations are recognised at cost and
at fair value respectively.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their
fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of such
intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite lives
are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
and are tested for impairment annually by comparing their
recoverable amount with their carrying amount.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Exchange participation rights and club memberships
They comprise:

— the eligibility right to trade through The Stock
Exchange, Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited and
other exchanges; and

— the eligibility right to use the facilities of various
clubs.

The exchange participation rights are considered by the
management of the Group as having an indefinite useful
life because they are expected to contribute to net cash
flows indefinitely. The management also considers that
the club membership does not have a finite useful life.
They are both carried at cost less any impairment losses
and are tested for impairment annually by comparing
their recoverable amount with their carrying amounts.
Useful lives are also examined on an annual basis and
adjustments where applicable are made on a prospective
basis.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring into use
the specific software. These costs are amortised using the
straight-line method.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer
software are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Costs that are directly associated with the production
of identifiable and unique software controlled by the
Group, and that will probably generate economic
benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised
as intangible assets. Direct costs include software
development employee costs and an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets
are amortised from the dates when the software becomes
available for use using the straight-line method.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding
financial assets

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) that have
indefinite useful lives are not subject to amortisation,
and are tested at least annually for impairment and
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. Tangible and intangible assets that are
subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less cost to sell and value in use. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately as an expense. Where
an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest level for which there is separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units) if an
impairment test cannot be performed for an individual
asset.

BBt A B

4.

TESTEHERE)
BRREREE(TEESRERE)RE

SRR Pt 5 - DR WS 2 A 2
G B 2 T AT A SO 2 1o [ 2 a2
HHRBR S EL RS AR SRR
{3 o WAL R 2 BB AR A G AR
JAAT BF AT RES(EL R A (R Bt - 3 — 1A
FA 5 A J3E A0 R Wi e 7 A 22 e )
T B 2 B A A B T % B 5 4 BE R I

VRS E R o 8 Bl A BEAL 22 ml il ] <6
TR B O MR T (ELIRY > (RS 1R & 1 SE 00
P 22 2% AL DA Sl 1 % B 457 8 0 I 2 2 iR
TH{E > SRR PI ARG B0 N A8 TH 7 2 R
T {ELH% LU A5 70 i 28 5% B0 2 HOA e © AE

o i 2 (B 1R & LR AE A A A AR A
Tzﬁ*” o T B WUELRE R A & fE R ARV ] 43¢

3 [5] 7 (0 P 47 0 2 TR R (R BRAD) 03
RS > (HZHEARERTIE I - BAES
P BN DL 5 BN DR T (L T R I 35 i )
IRF o AEATRE RPAG o ZH T LA 8 Ml s
ﬁﬁ/&ﬁfﬁ/gﬁf$ﬁﬂiF(ﬂ%“ﬂﬁﬁﬂ%
VA {EL ] RE R WA B Ry - HEEATIR(ELRF A © M1
B MR (EL = R T ] 8 > HRRZ &
RSS2 AR » Tk (ol S 2
O VAR R B A Lo P R (E P ] 2
W o W (E R 1H I IRF AR 4 BH ST o i —
SEIR (s 1R AR A ] JA B 2 IR
VAT {EE 3 28 LT A s T i ] B MRS
BN 2 ViR T {ELAS A5 B8 A B A R 1 A
JBE 0 SR i A 9 (LM 88 T B 7 2 2 R T
{EL o Bl 15438 2] BT IR JA 48 i SR A R o

PP ORI S » 2 0K ) 7
AT R WL+ BB A P 5 B B
4 (8 2 B L) 2 AP LA
B -

97



98

for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
four categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

— it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

—  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
amounts due from associates, amount due from a jointly
controlled entity, short term pledged bank deposits, bank
deposits, bank balances, loan receivables and loans and
advances) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale-financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the securities
below their cost is considered in determining whether
the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
(measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated
income statement) is removed from equity and recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity
investments are not reversed through the consolidated
income statement.

Each receivable that is individually significant is reviewed
for indication of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Loans and receivables that are individually not
significant and are assessed not to be impaired individually
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period on a
collective portfolio basis.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Individual impairment allowance applies to securities
margin financing and secured term loans which are
individually significant or have objective evidence of
impairment. In assessing the individual impairment,
management estimates the present value of future cash
flows which are expected to be received, taking into
account the borrower’s financial situation and the net
realisable value of the underlying collateral or guarantees
in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is assessed on
its merits and the impairment allowance is measured as
the difference between the loan’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the loan’s original effective interest rate.

Collective impairment allowances cover credit
losses inherent in portfolios of loans receivable and
other accounts with similar economic and credit risk
characteristics where objective evidence for individual
impaired items cannot be identified. In assessing the
collective impairment, management makes assumptions
both to define the way the Group assesses inherent losses
and to determine the required input parameters, based
on historical loss experience and current economic
conditions. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial liabilities held for trading and those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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4.

A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(Cont'd)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

—  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other
borrowings, bonds, trade and other payables, amount due
to a holding company, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries,
amounts due to associates and amounts due to jointly
controlled entities, which are recognised initially at fair
value, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Fair value measurement principles

Fair values of quoted investments are based on bid
prices. For unlisted securities or financial assets without
an active market, the Group establishes the fair value by
using appropriate valuation techniques including the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
investments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing models.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Group’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component regarding the fixed interest payment during
the life of the convertible notes is estimated using the
discounted cash flow method. This amount is recorded
as a liability and measured at amortised cost basis using
the effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The equity portion of the convertible notes is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
The equity portion is not subsequently remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially
at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount of obligation under the contract, as determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue
recognition policy.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated
income statement net of any reimbursement.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost includes freehold and leasehold
land cost, development cost, borrowing costs and other
direct costs attributable to such properties, until the
relevant properties reach a marketable state. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to management estimates
of the selling price based on prevailing market conditions,
less all estimated costs to completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing and selling.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank
balances, short term time deposits and treasury bills. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are set out as
follows.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by an independent professional valuer. In determining
the fair value, the valuer has based on a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on
the valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgement and is satisfied that the assumption used in
valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.

Impairment allowances on loans and receivables other
than loans and advances to consumer finance customers
In determining individual impairment allowances, the
Group periodically reviews its trade receivables, secured
term loans and margin loans to assess whether impairment
allowances exist. In determining whether impairment
allowances should be recorded in the consolidated income
statement, management estimates the present value of
future cash flows which are expected to be received,
taking into account the borrower’s financial situation and
the net realisable value of the underlying collateral or
guarantees in favour of the Group.

Impairment allowances on loans and advances to
consumer finance customers

The policy for collective impairment allowances for loans
and advances to consumer finance customers of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectibility and aging
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these loans and advances,
including the current creditworthiness, and the past
collection history of each loan.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONT’D)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For listed available-for-sale equity investments, a
significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
Judgement is required when determining whether a decline
in fair value has been significant or prolonged. In making
this judgement, the historical data on market volatility as
well as the price of the specific investment are taken into
account.

For those unlisted equity investments that are carried at
fair values, the Group determines their fair value by using
appropriate valuation techniques and making assumptions
that are based on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period. The Group also takes into account
other factors, such as industry and sector performance and
financial information regarding the investee.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

The Group conducts tests for impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives annually
in accordance with the relevant accounting standards.
Determining whether the goodwill and the intangible assets
are impaired requires an estimation of the fair value less
cost to sell or value in use on the basis of data available to
the Group. Where future cash flows are less than expected,
an impairment loss may arise.

Deferred tax

Estimating the amount for deferred tax assets arising from
tax losses requires a process that involves forecasting
future years’ taxable income and assessing the Group’s
ability to utilise tax benefits through future earnings. Where
the actual future profits generated are more or less than
expected, a recognition or reversal of the deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the period in which such a reversal
takes place. While the current financial models indicate
that the recognised tax losses can be utilised in the future,
any changes in assumptions, estimates and tax regulations
can affect the recoverability of this deferred tax asset.

Fair value of derivative and financial instruments

The Group selects appropriate valuation techniques for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market.
Valuation techniques commonly used by market
practitioners are applied (note 48b).

The Group’s unlisted equity instruments that are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets and carried at fair
value with a carrying amount of HK$73.5 million (2010:
HK$70.8 million) as set out in note 28 are valued using
generally accepted pricing models such as discounted cash
flows.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONT’D)

Fair value of derivative and financial instruments (Cont’d)
For the valuation of unquoted bonds and unlisted
derivative financial instruments as set out in notes 32
and 42, appropriate assumptions are used based on
quoted market data as adjusted for specific features of
the instrument. The carrying amounts of these financial
assets and liabilities are HK$35.4 million (2010: HK$35.3
million) and HK$13.2 million (2010: HK$1.5 million)
respectively.

Carrying amount of a listed associate

In determining the carrying amount of a listed associate
included in note 26, management used appropriate
assumptions to estimate the value in use based on
discounted future cash flows of the associate. Where those
assumptions and/or future cash flows are different from
expected, impairment may arise.

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BatE (FEE)FRAA

BBt A B

5.

fhET T RERE R 2 ERRF(E)

TTETEREMIECAFEEGE)
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6.

W AT A= B LA

REVENUE 6. WA
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable AR B 2 IREs - FANBAES - HED
that are derived from elderly care services, consumer % WG - WEER LY EE IR
finance, sale of properties, property rental, hotel B~ BRALRE R B At RS i S B i 2 K
operations and property management services, provision -~ FLR BRSO ~ A A A SR KR
of consultancy and other services, interest and dividend PRGSO ~ 2k 3 RS 1F e il A &
income, income from corporate finance and advisory R e R B A AL RS U A o DA S
services, profit from securities margin financing and term W M B2 5w A -
loan financing and insurance broking services, net profit BRIRARES ~ R - WG - TR
from trading from forex, bullion, commodities and futures. K HAbRRE 2 Mt & A F E R E—F4EH
As described in more detail in note 15, subsidiaries B ([ B I B ARS 2655 |) - wF i R aE
engaged in medical, nursing agency, physiotherapy, 15 o DUF A AL BAEEIAZ 3HT -
dental and other services (“Discontinued Medical Service
Business”) were disposed of in 2010. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:
2011 2010
—B——f “EFE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBT A HE#TT
(Restated)
(H41)
Continuing operations HEEEER
Interest income on loans and advances A A5 % 5 &3 %
to consumer finance customers Bz FLEIA 2,057.1 1,645.0
Interest income received from banks, RASRAT - AR - EBRIK
term loans, margin loans and others A AR AR 2 FLE A 740.1 521.3
Securities broking PR R A 333.1 486.4
Income from corporate finance A SERE K
and others HAtb A 327.2 242.6
Property rental, hotel operations YZERHE - s 2EH I
and management services eiiliiers 303.7 291.0
Net trading profit from forex, HMIE ~ B ~ B A
bullion, commodities and futures A 2 228 5y ks B 148 174.0 196.0
Elderly care services =4 98.5 100.9
Dividend income Je A 14.2 10.4
4,047.9 3,493.6
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
Discontinued Medical Service C A% 11 BRI 5
Business Ev7 - 967.4
4,047.9 4,461.0




for the year ended 31st December, 2011

7e

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The operating business organised and managed in each
segment represents a strategic business unit that offers
different products and services for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.
The Group has the following reportable and operating
segments:

- Investment, broking and finance — trading in
securities, provision of securities broking and related
services, provision of broking services in forex,
bullion and commodities, provision of securities
margin financing and insurance broking services,
provision of related financing and advisory products,
and provision of term loan financing.

—  Consumer finance — providing consumer loan finance
products.

—  Elderly care services.

—  Property rental, hotel operations and management
services — property rental, hotel operations managed
by third parties and provision of property management
services.

—  Sales of properties and property based investments
— development and sale of properties and property
based investments.

Inter-segment transactions have been entered into on terms
agreed by the parties concerned.

BBt A B

7o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

@

Segment revenue and results

Analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from

continuing operations is as follows:

Segment revenue ZhERCA

Less: inter-segment revenue i 7 Z T A

Segment revenue fom 3K H REAEAE
external customers from  ZAMHEF 2
continuing operations A

Segment results IHhER

Finance costs & RA

Share of results of associates FE{fEi& /A Al L4
Share of results of jointly ~ HE{ JLTl 43¢

controlled entities 5
Profit before taxation bRt A1
Taxation BH

Profit for the year from AR BFHEAEEH
continuing operations A

WEF -t A S I

7o

7 ERER (&)
() 2 EBBAFISAE

S LY ERES EY e PA PN E S

BN
2011
—E—-F
Property

rental, hotel Sale of

operations and properties and

Investment, management property based

broking and services  investments

finance ~ Consumer  Elderly care YW¥RE.  LENER
RE 88 finance services ERER  ANEER Total
kR RARE  EZRE  REERH ZRE 8y
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR
1,550.7 2,084.3 133.5 298.9 - 4,067.4
8.1 - - (11.4) - (19.5)
1,542.6 2,084.3 1335 287.5 - 4,047.9
761.0 879.1 14.5 885.0 35.1 2,574.7
(77.7)
3371
6.2 - - 160.5 - 166.7
3,000.8
(398.0)
2,602.8

Annual Report 20
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 BE_Z—H+_H=1+—HILEE
7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7. 2EHERE)
(i) Segment revenue and results (Cont’d) (i) DEBBAFIELE(H)
2010
.
Property
rental, hotel Sale of
operations and  properties and
Investment, management property based
broking and services  investments
finance  Consumer  Elderly care  #J3fIE - HEWER
% gy finance services WEER  AYEAE Total
Y& ARE  EENE RERNE L& 2

HKS Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
H#EBT HEIBT AEIBT HEkT HET HEBT

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E71) (E51)
Segment revenue AEUA 1,452.8 1,659.5 107.0 297.0 - 3,516.3
Less: inter-segment revenue i 7.2 1A 9.5) - - (13.2) - (22.7)
Segment revenue from A% I FEATAR B ST
external customers from  ZANHEF 2
continuing operations A 14433 1,659.5 107.0 283.8 - 3,493.6
Segment results HEE 8203 776.6 125 969.6 67.1 2,646.1
Finance costs HEHA (72.1)
Share of results of associates JE{f i /A /34 612.4
Share of results of jointly ~ HE{ JLl 43
controlled entities £% 5.0 - - 130.9 - 135.9
Profit hefore taxation BRBt AT A 33223
Taxation i (312.7)
Profit for the year from ~ #¢ I FS A0 3%
continuing operations ZEREHA 3,009.6
A TSRS Anggal Repert 201
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Ze

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets AR
Interests in associates

entities s
Deferred tax assets BB

Amounts due from associates J4&/A i 2k
Amounts due from jointly [P 4%

controlled entities <
Tax recoverable R
Total segment assets I A
Segment liabilities iU

Amounts due to associates  JUEi/A A A

Amounts due to joindy — KILR 43
controlled entities W

Tax payable TERtBLE

Bank and other borrowings  #7 J FAli

Deferred tax liabilities ERERA A

Total segment liabilities /M (4

7 EEF ()
(i) ABEEREE

2011
-

BE_F——F+_H=1t—HILFE

Property
rental, hotel

Sale of
operations and properties and

R -YNSPA £
Interests in jointly controlled FEREEHI 432

Investment, management property based
broking and services  investments
finance ~ Consumer  Elderly care ~ ¥¥HE-  HENER

RE &4 finance services ERER  ENEER Total

kew BARE  EERE  REERH ZBE i

HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million

BEAT BEET BEET BEETR BEET BEAT

9,441.2 12,925.8 1,527.1 5,940.2 444.4 30,278.7

6,226.2

1221 - - 1,265.8 - 1,387.9

92.7

424.9

0.1 - - 8.5 - 8.6

171

38,436.1

973.3 6,186.6 183 55.5 1.2 7,234.9

32.7

- - - 50.1 - 50.1

102.0

2,266.1

7324

10,418.2

Annual Report 2011
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7e

Segment assets

Interests in associates

nEE
R UNCVA 3

Interests in jointly controlled JAtRI¥EH (%2

entities
Deferred tax assets
Amounts due from
associates

Amount due from a jointly

controlled entity
Tax recoverable

Total segment assets

Segment liabilities

Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to jointly

controlled entities
Tax payable

Bank and other borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Bonds

Total segment liabilities

it
EERERE
L
Xk
— R
ik
RL L

R

AR
KA AR
ST el 5%

A
REfBR
BRITRAMER
EEHAEA R
fi

I A

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

7 RPEF ()
(i) 7HEEREER)

BBt A B

2010
.
Property

rental, hotel Sale of

operations and  properties and

Investment, management property based

broking and services  investments

finance  Consumer  Elderly care  #J3fIE - HEWER
g B finance services WEER  AYEAE Total
Y& ARE  EENE RERNE L& 2
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
EkET Ly HEkT  AEER Bk HEkT
9,475.6 10,590.1 1,741.2 5,319.6 415.0 27,541.5
52749
116.4 = = 1,105.2 = 1,221.6
94.1
114.6
- - - 7.7 - 7.7
1.5
34,255.9
1,450.2 4,229.5 37.7 56.9 = 57743
61.2
- - - 0.1 - 0.1
106.7
2,206.2
610.9
500.0
9,259.4
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(iii) The geographical information of revenue and non-
current assets are disclosed as follows:

Revenue from external customers by
location of operations

Hong Kong

PRC and others

Non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets by
location of assets

Hong Kong
Others

HE-Z——F+H=T—HILFE
7. DERER(E)

2 Y B )7 () S
HF A

it

Hh I 7 oAt

HEEMER NS TR

B ARSER TH B E LA Ah 2
T E &

i

oAt

(i) W

ARFRBEE 2 HER B EN

2011 2010
S i
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT H# I
(Restated)
(F31)
3,498.2 3,247.2
549.7 246.4
4,047.9 3,493.6
2011 2010
—g——% _—Z-2f
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT HEHIT
17,624.8 15,678.4
367.2 377.3
17,992.0 16,055.7

ual Report 20
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 BE_EFE—-—Et+"HA=+—HI4EF
7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7. DEPER(E)
(iv) Other segment information (iv) Eftt o pER
2011
—E—-F
Property
rental, hotel Sale of
operations and properties and
Investment, management property based
broking and services  investments
finance ~ Consumer  Elderly care  W¥RE.  LENER
RE €8 finance services BEEH ENEER Total
kew MARH EERE  REERE ZRE AR

HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEEr EREn  EBEAR EERR BEEn BRER

Included in segment AIARNBES

results/segment assets nERE
Depreciation and i
amortisation #4 559 193.1 10 10.1 - 260.1
Impairment losses D ()
recognised (reversed) Wi EE A 10.8 - - 4.0 27.7) (12.9)
Increase in fair value of ~ HHEHEAT/E
investment properties B 179.2 135 - 696.3 - 889.0
Bad and doubtful debts R 4.6 164.5 0.1 0.1 - 169.3
Capital expenditure b 103.8 17.8 2.2 1.1 - 1349
2010
~3-%i
Property
rental, hotel Sale of
operations and  properties and
Investment, management property based
broking and services  investments
finance ~ Consumer  Flderlycare %M  HEHER
g finance services WEER  AYEAR Total
R YN wEms  RERR ZHE bt

HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS Million  HK$ Million
HEBIL AEBL HEBL HEBT HEBIT HEBIL

Included in segment AARSHESR/
results/segment assets G

Depreciation and fER

amortisation 5 404 1873 07 87 - 237.1
Impairment losses R (B )

recognised (reversed) BHER (2.0) 1.0 - (5.7) (70.7) (77.4)
Increase in fair value of B EMEATE

investment properties {E3 0 0.8 4.5 = 789.6 = 794.9
Bad and doubtful debts R 1.0 108.6 0.1 0.1 - 109.8
Capital expenditure BARX 753 209 03 12,0 - 108.5

A PRITESIERTS Anggal Revep 203



116

for the year ended 31st December, 2011

8. CHANGES IN VALUES OF PROPERTIES

BE=F A=t B
8. MEEERD

2011 2010
—F——fF —E-EH
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT A E T
Continuing operations FEKEEK
Changes in values of properties comprise: 4 3B (A B 117
Net increase in fair value of investment PG A TEE
properties 3 T A 889.0 794.9
Impairment loss reversed for properties BRI EYEL
held for sale ICRI=N Fic 27.7 70.7
Impairment loss (recognised) reversed (ThERR) 158 0 S W 26 2
for hotel property AR (4.0) 5.7
912.7 871.3

The recognition and reversal of impairment losses was
based on the lower of cost and value in use for hotel
property and, the lower of cost and net realisable value for
properties held for sale. The value in use and net realisable
values were determined with reference to the respective
fair values of the properties based on independent
professional valuations at 31st December, 2011.

9. NET (LOSS) GAIN ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FRERD B 488 0] 2 S (B 4R 9 SR B R 26 2
A B f B W 2 AR DA fr
AW SE 2 A BT BB TR E W P 2 R
EEFH - fREELRTEBFEI2%
BYERE_F——FF _A=+—HZ
T Sr BRSEA B 2 AR B AP (T 7 E -

9. ST E(FE)WRFH

2011 2010
—Eg——F e S <2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A E#HETT
Continuing operations FEREXL
Net realised and unrealised profit on A T B 58 B R R 5 B |
derivatives TFH 62.0 80.6
Net profit on dealing in leveraged foreign K41 HESS 5 i 7]
currencies R - 0.5
Net profit on other dealing activities At B 9 ) 2 Yk A AR 3.0 4.4
Net realised and unrealised (loss) profit on B & BEARE 5 2 B 58 B J A 5
trading in equity securities B (5 18) Ja M 5 A8 (127.8) 31.6
Net realised and unrealised (loss) profit on 3§ % £ 1% #8418 45 B A% /A TE(E
financial assets designated as at fair value i~ 4@l & E 2 T B &
through profit or loss RAEBL (18 v A1) 34 (84.2) 11.1
(147.0) 128.2
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10. BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Continuing operations

Loans and advances to consumer finance

customers

Reversal of impairment loss

Impairment loss

Trade and other receivables
Reversal of impairment loss

Impairment loss

Bad debts recovery after written off

Bad debts written off

WE = F A A= B

10.

FEEERER

FANBAHS 20 L %

E.T ¢
18 1 S (B 48
BUEREE

5 5 B HAM WA
A ERGRIEY 5]
ERIE, ZEiE

Wi [m] 2 S A

The amounts directly deducted from allowance of
impairment against the loans and advances to consumer
finance customers and trade and other receivables were
HK$273.3 million (2010: HK$274.6 million) and HK$28.4
million (2010: HK$2.0 million) respectively (notes 29 and

33).

RIER

2011 2010
—E——F TR LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT B EIT
(54.2) (109.3)

218.7 217.9
164.5 108.6

9.4) (1.9)

21.4 3.1

12.0 1.2

(7.5) -

0.3 -

4.8 1.2

169.3 109.8

B WA M 0 5k DA B FA N AT
AR BAGR K B T H Al E Wi R TE 22 K
TR F273 3 H B L (- F—F4F ¢
274.6 A B TT) X284 H BT (—F—
FAE 1 2.0 #ETT) (F5E29533) ©
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 wE_F——F T _H=1T—HILFE

11. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND 11. EEREEMELE R
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven @ ENFIENER(ZB-—FF:£HR)
(2010: seven) directors were as follows: EECMEMT :
2011
—E-F

Retirement

benefits

Salaries and scheme
Directors’  other henefits Bonus  contributions Total
fees HeR payments BHRER  emoluments
Yk Hit@A i B Weam

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BERT BEBT BERT BERT

(Note)
(Bitst)
Arthur George Dew KERE - 0.79 0.80 - 1.59
Li Chi Kong ZEH - 0.77 0.32 0.03 1.12
* John Douglas Mackie ~ ** 2l - 0.05 - - 0.05
¢ David Craig Bartlett ~ + FH#f8 0.01 0.20 - - 0.21
Steven Samuel Zoellner  Steven Samuel Zoellner - 0.04 - - 0.04
Alan Stephen Jones Alan Stephen Jones 0.01 0.46 - - 0.47
Lee Seng Hui 2 - 242 450 0.03 6.95
Mark Wong Tai Chun EYN - 134 0.63 0.07 2.04
0.02 6.07 6.25 0.13 12.47
Remarks: B
% From 1st January to 30th May, 2011. T ——F—H—HEHRH=TH-
# From 4th August to 31st December, 2011. # mo-F—-—FANANBEE+_A=+—
H o
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
A A M E (BB AR R Annyal Report 201
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 BEF——HFTH=T—HILFE

11. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND 11. EEREEMLEE (B)

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)
@ EBNSRENEtH(ZZ-—FTF:+tH)

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven

(2010: seven) directors were as follows: (Cont’d)

ExoMemT (8

2010
“3-%i
Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Directors’ other benefits Bonus  contributions Total
fees ¥ak  payments BIRFEF emoluments
S AR EAL i L[ [
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
H #ETT BT H BT HETT A BT
(Note)
(FE)
Arthur George Dew U/ ChNS - 0.80 0.53 - 1.33
* Patrick Lee Seng Wei  * Zjifg - 0.76 2.20 0.04 3.00
Li Chi Kong Z= 7 - 0.66 0.22 0.03 0.91
* Henry Lai Hin Wing * HEE - 0.03 - - 0.03
*Steven Lee Siu Chung ~ * 2K /8 = 0.23 - 0.01 0.24
John Douglas Mackie R = 0.05 = = 0.05
Steven Samuel Zoellner  Steven Samuel Zoellner - 0.04 - - 0.04
Alan Stephen Jones Alan Stephen Jones 0.01 0.42 = = 0.43
¢ Lee Seng Hui ¢ - 1.28 - 0.02 1.30
 Mark Wong Tai Chun ~ # £K# - 0.69 - 0.03 0.72
0.01 4.96 2.95 0.13 8.05
Remarks: MEGE
* From 1st January to 17th June, 2010. & HoF—FF—H—-HEASH+EH-
# From 18th June to 31st December, 2010. # %li‘;ir%zgfxﬂ +ANHB&E+H
Note: The amounts represented the actual bonus of the preceding BESE - A R AR E TS 4R T B A AR B o 2 R AR R
year paid to respective directors during the year. The bonus of E’fﬁilﬁgﬁ o "R ——AE AL 1 i

the year 2011 has yet to be decided.

Certain Directors of the Company received
remuneration from the Company’s holding company
or its wholly owned subsidiaries. The holding
company provided management services to the Group
and charged the Group a fee, which is included in
share of management service expenses as disclosed
in note 55(a), for services provided by those Directors
as well as other management personnel who were not
Directors of the Company.

The management service fee is calculated by
reference to the time devoted by the management
personnel on the affairs of the Group and therefore
can be apportioned to the directors mentioned
above. The total of such apportioned amounts, which
has been included in the above table, is HK$11.70
million (2010: HK$4.49 million).

7E ©

AR R T SRR A FHE s ]
B G A R 2 o R R
I A B 4 (A8 TR IR A5 - Sl e A £
W B CER - 5% 5F 2 R AE M RE 55(a) 37
B AL PR R o Ty
F R FEA L AR 2 HAE g A
B R IRBS T AT

ARG 2B N B A A E
[EE 8 =5 Nl 1 i - M A e A
DEE LAESR o FRE LS5
Ho )z 488 £ 11.70 (1 E koo (% —
FAE 4491 BWT) ©
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 wE_F——F T _H=1T—HILFE

11. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND 11. EEREEMELEE (B)

EMPLOYEES” EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)
(b) EEME

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included none (2010:
none) of the directors, details of whose emoluments
are set out in note 11(a) above. The combined
emoluments of the remaining five (2010: five)

individuals are as follows:

1.4 e e B 2 N A 55 A o
(TR T ) > H SRR
i ESCHEE11(a) o KR (T F—
T4 I NEZ G T

2011 2010

—E——F AR

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT B EHBIT

Salaries and other benefits 4 N HoAth AR A 14.2 17.3
Bonus payments fEAL 25.3 48.8
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3B {/R4E Fl = 1 ik 2k 0.5 0.4
Incentive/commission 84 HE 25.2 11.7
65.2 78.2

The emoluments of the above employees, who
were not directors of the Company, were within the

following bands:

Number of employees

bl AN F E S 2 AR B 4 2 SRR
FEEWE -

EEA™

2011 2010
—E——fF TR AR
HK$8,000,001 — HK$8,500,000 8,000,001t — 8,500,000% 7T 1 =
HK$9,000,001 — HK$9,500,000 9,000,001# 7t — 9,500,000% 7T 2 =
HK$10,000,001 — HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 #:€ — 10,500,000%5 7 - 1
HK$12,000,001 — HK$12,500,000 12,000,001 #C — 12,500,000%5 7 - 1
HK$13,500,001 — HK$14,000,000 13,500,001 # 7€ — 14,000,000%: ¢ - 1
HK$14,500,001 — HK$15,000,000 14,500,001 #:€ — 15,000,000 7 1 =
HK$16,500,001 — HK$17,000,000 16,500,001 #7% — 17,000,0004# 7T - 1
HK$23,000,001 — HK$23,500,000 23,000,001 #7% — 23,500,000# 7T 1 =
HK$25,000,001 — HK$25,500,000 25,000,001 #:7T — 25,500,000 75 - 1
5 5

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual R port 20



for the year ended 31st December, 2011

12. FINANCE COSTS

Continuing operations
Interest on:
Bank borrowings wholly repayable
within five years
Short term loan included in amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries wholly
repayable within five years
Bonds wholly repayable within five
years
Mandatory convertible notes wholly
repayable within five years (note 45)
Other borrowings wholly repayable
within five years

Total finance costs
included in:
Cost of sales and other direct costs
Finance costs

WE = F A A= B

12. BERA
2011 2010
—E——F BT
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT HE T
SRR K
FIE
JEIN AR N 2 B i
HRATIER 116.0 70.0
ELRFAZEI F AR N 2 B E =
[F] 2 B A /) 2 3R JE 2
VR NE SN 18.6 24.0
JHN AR N 2B
& 21.7 6.6
ZEUS F A TA) A AR 2 i PR
AT R EE R (B 5E45) 3.1 3.0
JHN LA N 2 BUER
HAth g 19.3 20.5
178.7 124.1
FEATPIEH N2 fE
JRAS B
SF B Rl AR R HLA T 42 A 101.0 52.0
V& AR 77.7 72.1
178.7 124.1
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation from continuing
operations has been arrived at after
charging:

Auditors’ remuneration
Amortisation of intangible assets
Computer software (included in
administrative expenses)
Other intangible assets (included in
other operating expenses)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments
Advertising and promotion expenses
Commission expenses and sales
incentives to account executives and
certain staff
Cost of inventories expensed
Depreciation
Expenses recognised for employee
ownership scheme of SHK
Impairment loss for amounts due from

WE_E——H+ A =+—H I
13. BRBLATER A

associates (included in other operating 548 (5 A HAh 482

expenses)

Impairment loss for available-for-sale
financial assets (included in other
operating expenses)

Impairment loss for interests
in associates (included in other
operating expenses)

Impairment loss for intangible assets

(included in other operating expenses)

Net loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

Retirement benefit scheme contributions, 22448 F 5 H] {it 2k

net of forfeited contributions of HK$0.8 &kt 2 R Uk

million (2010: HK$0.9 million)
(note 53)

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments but excluding (a)
contributions to retirement benefit
schemes and expenses recognised for
the employee ownership scheme of

SHK and (b) commission expenses and
sales incentives to account executives

and certain staff)

2011 2010
—E——F TR LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT HH T
A RS S
R B I o A
ELHIER ¢
A% ST 4 6.7 5.9
ML T P 4 Y
ERSIR A (FEAFTEL
ZH) 24.5 11.4
HoAth 4T & 2 (5 A oAt
REEH) 174.4 174.7
TE S
S 0.4 0.4
i A i 111.3 81.2
AR CETRBZ
1 4 S e R s B R B
4 143.5 168.3
17 & BH 7 A 0.2 _
e 60.8 50.6
ORI 2 R B A e w14
fifEwd 2 2 9.0 9.2
B Rl R R Z I E
#HH) 4.9 0.3
af ik A g Rl 2 (A
JEE (FEA HAth 4845
ZH) 0.5 -
AT R 2 R s 2 WE
B8 (FEA HAtb 5845
ZH) 5.4 _
SETY A WA TR (FEA
HAth 852 H) - 1.0
HEYZE - R R &
T G 2 AR R 4.2 3.6
> F1FR £ %20.8
PR (T —RAE
0.9 B #s L) (Kf5ES3) 44.4 31.5
B T RAS (fL 45 25 2 4
{EAS 455 (a) 22 AR )
FHH AR K e It 2
1 B B A sl B iR
22 % (b) EASS 2E 75
RELETREE 2 e
T R s R
#4) 712.1 579.2
Ainr%agRﬁport émil}(



for the year ended 31st December, 2011

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D) 13. BRBLAERI(4F)

WE=F 4+ A=+ HILFE

2011 2010
—2——fF —FFF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT H T
and after crediting: WEFA
Dividend income from listed equity bR I 2 S
securities A 6.0 6.6
Dividend income from unlisted H B RAS TR I 2 R
equity securities A 8.2 3.8
Net realised profit on disposal of HE—HEAF 2
a subsidiary (included in C & B A (FEA
other income) FHAth A ) - 293
Net realised profit on disposal of an H B — TR A ) 2 A R i
associate (included in other income) A (GEAHABIA) 13.4 -
Net realised profit on disposal of W T G
available-for-sale financial assets W 2 R v M R A
(included in other income) (FEAJABIA) 5.2 2.1
Net realised profit on liquidation of B JBS o e LA B
subsidiaries (included in other income) i Il & (5F A HAbI A ) - 3.7
Profit on deemed disposal of associates 5 2 8 B /A 7 2l |
(included in share of results of (FFAMELG BG4\ 7
associates) e - 8.1
Profit on disposal of investment H B 1 3 v A
properties (included in other income)  (FEAHAIZA) 20.8 9.4
Rental income from investment REHABEYEZHERA
properties under operating leases, net 1k 3ZH19.3 H #
of outgoings of HK$19.3 million (2010:  # o (=& —F4F
HK$19.2 million) 19.2F & oT) 141.9 132.3
Reversal of impairment loss on interest in 4 [ i~ i /A 7] 2 i 4 2 S (E
associates (included in other income) &8 (FF A AL A) - 2.3
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED Annual Report 2011
FEBE (FEEB)ARAF o 4
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 wE_F——F T _H=1T—HILFE

14. TAXATION 14. BB

The income tax charged (credited) from 3¢ #4484 2675 2 BT i3 Bl %

(#5450 B4 -

Current tax AW TE
Hong Kong ik

continuing operations comprises:

Other jurisdictions oAt R b [
Under (over) provision in AR A AN 2

prior years (EEAEA)

Hong Kong ik

Other jurisdictions At ] i i [
Deferred tax (note 30) RIEBLIE (MFEE30)

Current year ARAESE
Over-provision in prior years A AT B R

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated on
the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in the relevant
jurisdictions.

2011 2010
—E——F TR LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT ER:R
232.5 238.3

53.1 27.9

285.6 266.2

13.4 9.4)

(0.5) 0.5

12.9 (8.9)

99.5 62.6

- (7.2)

99.5 55.4

398.0 312.7

7 P AT IS 7 181 4 B2 24942 i 5 B AL it
F RBEE16.5%FTH -

A 1 A ) O 2 BUISLREAF 79 REL
7 i 1) AT I D [ ) 5 B 2 BRAT B R
H -



for the year ended 31st December, 2011

14. TAXATION (CONT’D)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated income statement as

follows:

Profit before taxation (from continuing
operations)
Less: Share of results of associates
Share of results of jointly
controlled entities

Profit attributable to the Company
and subsidiaries

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
16.5%

Items/countries subject to different
tax rates

Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible for tax purposes

Tax effect of income that is not taxable
for tax purposes

Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary
difference not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of previously
not recognised deductible temporary
differences

Under (over) provision in prior years

Others

Taxation for the year

The deferred tax recognised in other
comprehensive income is as follows:

Deferred tax for revaluation gains
on properties

BBt A S B

14. BE(E)
A FE AN T 57 BLAE Al s RS 7R 2 BRBL

A Al 2 SR G0 R
2011 2010
—E——F TR A
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT H H# i TT
A AT A1) (2R
PRI A TS ) 3,000.8 3,322.3
W RN R AR (337.1) (612.4)
JHRE Ak 3 ] 42 il
A (166.7) (135.9)
AN ) J B & s 7
JREA: ¥4 ) 2,497.0 2,574.0
DA RSB 16.5%
R 2 B 412.0 424.7
[EENEE P
HHBxR 14.4 3.0
An] AAEFORL S 2
T JE 5 2 35.5 29.8
HIARBA Z BLIA
A 43.7) (43.8)
KBRS 1R 2 BiIE
= 16.1 3.4
B 2 B R TR RS 1R 2
BiIH R 2 (26.6) (52.4)
AR ] FIRL G IR 22 A 2
FiIERY 0.1 -
B F 2 Bl AR T F0Bd
fife 7 25 B 2 B I
-2 (22.2) (43.0)
AT AT B AN . (RE AR ) 12.9 (8.9)
HAthy (0.5) 0.1)
ARAE R TE 398.0 312.7
2011 2010
—F——F i S
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEETT H H T
R At 2 T Wi 4 A
ZHRSERLEIN R ¢
RN &P
AR AERE A (24.0) (22.2)
ual Report 20
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

BE=F A=t B

On 8th October, 2010, Allied Overseas Limited (“AOL"),
an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Cautious Base Limited (“Holdco”), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of AOL, entered into a share sale
agreement (“Share Sale Agreement”) with Altai Investments
Limited and RHC Holding Private Limited (collectively
“Purchaser”) and had agreed to sell 100% of the issued
share capital of the companies (“Disposal Group”)
engaging in Discontinued Medical Service Business to the
Purchaser.

According to the Share Sale Agreement, AOL and Holdco
have agreed to sell 100% of the issued share capital of
the Disposal Group companies to the Purchaser for the
consideration of transaction, payable on the closing
date for an amount in cash equal to aggregate sum of (i)
HK$1,521 million; (ii) the base working capital (i.e. HK$20
million) and (iii) the estimated working capital adjustment
(i.e. a deduction of HK$559,000 from the base working
capital), subject to the working capital adjustment.
Further details are set out in the AOL’s circular dated
2nd November, 2010. The disposal of the Disposal
Group was completed on 30th November, 2010 and the
Group recognised a gain on disposal of approximately
HK$1,093.9 million for the year ended 31st December,
2010.

On 13th July, 2011, the closing statement in relation to
Share Sale Agreement (“Closing Statement”) was issued
and the working capital of the Disposal Group at closing
date was agreed to be approximately HK$35,832,000.
Pursuant to the working capital confirmed in the Closing
Statement, consideration receivable was adjusted to
approximately HK$16,391,000 and was received by the
Group during the year 2011. The loss for the year from
discontinued operations of approximately HK$1.5 million
represents adjustments to the gain on disposal of the
Disposal Group upon finalisation of the working capital
adjustment.

(Loss) profit for the year from discontinued operations is
analysed as follows:

15. CRIEEE XK

M E—FEFHNH » AN Z— B
Ik 2 G g A 7 Allied Overseas Limited
(TAOLJ) RAOLZ — M #2 EHHE A
HCautious Base Limited([Holdco ) B
Altai Investments Limited ZRHC Holdin

Private Limited (Ztf%[ B F |) 5157 B4y

Bk ([ s E ek ) » WE RS HE
RELA BRI ER 2 AR ([EEH
£H ) 2 100%C TR TE T -

W8 E ek - AOLMHoldcoE [A
BERZHAE > HEDERERAE
100% B BATIEA TE I > 5 R MEH
A SE R H B DLBL 4 S AT > BREEARE R (i)

15mﬁ%%ﬁ H%%%Lgiﬂmﬁj
B IC) (i)l sl 4 g (R g 3
i @%Am%%9mw®n»ﬁ7l%
E@Qimﬂﬁ& o HZFFIHERAOL
HHE A 2 —24FE+—H T H A -

HEEEHEmMR - F-FFE+—H=1
Ho5E R $%@Mﬁ§#? —ZE+ A
= — H 1L R B a5 491,093.9
BHEEIS o

HoE——FLH =0 GRS

Wk 2 SE R (2R E ) C 3t >
B 4 M 52 AL H A 2 4% 1 4 ]
%E%%swmm%m R 95 52 R %
TR BT 4 M I 3 e s
m3mom%m3ﬁm$¢@m4$——
EmWﬁo%EE%EMM%ﬁZEfE
HA15HEEIC > BEEEESHEESR
%=%$%E%$%@szzﬂﬁo

A B KE T T (1R 65
BranT :

Profit of Discontinued Medical Service 3R B B 4% 11 BERE IR 2645 2

Business it )
Expenses incurred on the disposal O LA
of Disposal Group FELE 2 BASE
(Loss) gain on disposal of HEDERER L (BEHR)
Disposal Group e
(Loss) profit for the year from L AEIERIn O v
discontinued operations HEJE (548 Ui A1)
Attributable to: JEAL 77 :
Owners of the Company AN AR
Non-controlling interests 4 JB b i

2011 2010
—E——F TR A
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT B &I
- 31.1
- (22.8)

(1.5) 1,093.9

(1.5) 1,102.2

(1.0) 736.3

(0.5) 365.9

(1.5) 1,102.2




for the year ended 31st December, 2011

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D)

An analysis of the results of the Discontinued Medical
Service Business for the year ended 31st December, 2010

is as follows:

Revenue
Other income

Total income

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses
Bad and doubtful debts
Other operating expenses

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Operating cash flows
Investing cash flows

Total cash inflows

Profit for the year ended 31st December, 2010
from discontinued operations include
the following:

Auditors’ remuneration
Amortisation of intangible assets
Cost of inventories expensed
Depreciation
Staff costs
Wages and salaries
Retirement benefit scheme contribution

BBt A S B

15. BARILEE X (H)

O 4% 1R B8 PR B S IR — & —F A
ToA=t—HIEEEZ ERO T

A
HoAt A

ARULA

$H B A
TECE M
SRR
HoAt &8 2 M

R A i A
BiIH

AR Ui A1

KEHehE
BEHeHE

D

Iﬁﬁ‘/ﬂ ]\l%b‘

il

=

A £ 4 LA I
“EFE L A=A
A 2 LR 908 -

A BT <5
T o
1 BB SORA
9§
BT A
TE K&
AR AR A A

2010

e
HK$ Million
H#HTT

967.4
13.7

981.1
(419.9)
(504.6)

0.2
(21.7)

35.1
(4.0)

31.1

58.3
(45.1)

13.2

0.4
15.3
64.2
17.9

365.8
7.2
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011
15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D)

Particulars of the disposal transaction are as follows:

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill (note 21)
Intangible assets
Prepaid deposits for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment

Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions

Release of investment revaluation reserve and
non-controlling interests

Gain on disposal of Disposal Group

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash
Consideration receivable

An analysis of net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of
Disposal Group is as follows:

Cash consideration received
Cash and bank balances disposed of

BE=F A=t B

15. B ILEEEE(H)
SRS 2 BRI T

WEZ EEFME
Yz - WUF KA
P (B 5E21)
M
W HEYIE ~ W B 2

TEATHE 4

Peasy

B 5 I E A E R TR
A g [m] B IE

B4 KBl 458
& 5 T HAth A R IA
AR SR T & i

T A

185 [ BB TG b B
e A

B AR 2 i
AACAE

AN KA
Bl

WA

HECEHEEZ B S L
B EYRA T
AT
E e e UE
B & Bl R RAT A R

2010
L
HK$ Million

HEHIT

55.8
152.3
286.8

11.2
18.0
186.7
1.3
30.9
(186.6)
(47.5)
(15.4)

493.5

(31.4)

462.1
1,093.9

1,556.0

1,540.5
15.5

1,556.0

1,540.5
(30.9)

1,509.6



for the year ended 31st December, 2011

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

BBt A B

16.

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing and discontinued operations attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

Adjustments to profit in respect of
mandatory convertible notes of a
subsidiary

Earnings for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of shares
in issue for the purpose of basic
and diluted earnings per share

A

AN R R EA
it 1l

90— [H] B g 2 ) i o 4
QESie s Eapial
PR Z i %

AR A AR B
R 2 B A

et H

ET AR
AL R A 2y
Fe 3 2 T3

BREF

REFARCRILEEEE

AN R ARG 2 A 45 A0 I EL A I 5 S
B 2 A A B A 21 ) T AR T 5 B

R

2011 2010

—g——5 —x-%

HK$ Million  HK$ Million

BEBT EX- Yoo

1,888.3 3,003.1
(62.1) (56.6)

1,826.2 2,946.5

Million shares

Million shares

BER [EF- Y3
6,955.4 6,531.6
Annual Report 2011
—E - =4
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONT’D) 16. BRERI(E)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

Earnings Vil
Profit attributable to owners AR ) R AL
of the Company i Al

Adjustments to profit in respect of
mandatory convertible notes of a

subsidiary fE i 2 o
Earnings for the purpose of basic and i LARHE R ESEA K
diluted earnings per share B 2 2 A

Number of shares Jikqlis A 4El

Weighted average number of shares

in issue for the purpose of basic and BTN
diluted earnings per share ZINHET- 2

From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share from the discontinued operations
is HKO.01 cents per share (2010: earnings per share of
HK11.27 cents) is calculated based on the loss attributable
to owners of the Company from the discontinued
operations of HK$1.0 million (2010: profit of HK$736.3
million) and the weighted average number of 6,955.4
million (2010: 6,531.6 million) shares in issue during the
year. Diluted (loss) earnings per share from discontinued
operations for both years were the same as the basic (loss)
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s warrants because
the exercise price of those warrants was higher than the
average market price of shares for 2011.

90— [ B g 2 ) i o 4
QESiheE s Eapiell

REFHEEEREE
AN B R MEAL BR A 5 A S <
AR T 5 M T AR N S B R

2011 2010
—g——5 —x-%
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEAT EX- Yoo
1,889.3 2,266.8
(62.1) (56.6)
1,827.2 2,210.2

Million shares  Million shares

MET R RREA KA 2 B

BER HE
6,955.4 6,531.6
RECRILEEER

A B R A8 TS 2 IR A IR B A
0.0 WAl (=B —F4F « BB F1.27
WAL > TIRER A E A IREEEET A
N R A TR .0 BT (%
e w7363 BT o MLRERNE
A7 By INHE-F- 44 8 6,955.4 1 B ik (= F—
TAE ¢ 6,531.6 A L) FHA o B WA 4E
R A SN At L TRE A 4 B 2 o M i 5 ok
H A& E 488 267 2 A I (5 18) 27
B LA (518 2 R AR

FE 7 7 e R A 0 — 4
B P B TR o R 2 2
B AR



for the year ended 31st December, 2011

17. DIVIDEND

Dividend attributable to the year

Proposed final dividend of HK1.5 cents

per share (2010: HK3 cents per
share)

Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year
2010 final dividend of HK3 cents
per share (2010: 2009 final
dividend of HK1.5 cents
per share)

BBt A B

17. BRE
2011 2010
—E——fF R
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HEIT
AR AR B A S
FREUR A HA A S A A1 ST
(ZF—FAF
BEE3HEAL) 107.6 208.6
FENTHERTIRZ
Jilt958
TR -RFERBKE —
A3 B3R
(ZF—FAF « ZERRIFR
I BB T 53R 208.6 91.3

A final dividend of HK1.5 cents (2010: HK3 cents) per
share has been recommended by the Board and is subject
to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The amount of the proposed final dividend for the year
ended 31st December, 2011 has been calculated by
reference to 7,174,455,180 shares in issue at 29th March,

O R UR R R i 5 s
(ZF—F4E  GRIWA) - HHEEAL
) B SR AE A 2 ) T RO 4R R & Bt
#E o

BE_F——F+_H=1+—HILFEFH
IRAR B 2 B8 > T2 IR & — 4
—H =T JLHBE%47227,174,455,180 %

2012.

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Fair value

At Tst January

Exchange adjustment

Transferred from prepaid land lease
payments and property,
plant and equipment

Transferred from properties held for sale

Additions

Transferred to property, plant and
equipment (note 19)

Disposals

Increase in fair value recognised in the
consolidated income statement

At 31st December

et st o

18. REME
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
—E2——F TR
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEABT HE# T
AFEE
w—H—H 5,156.4 4,203.7
R 5.4 5.3
R B RO K&

W -~ RE K&

B 255.1 169.8
AR By - 16.1
H#m 0.9 1.4
B R Y - RE S

(Bft5E19) (51.9) (22.1
e (62.7) (12.7)
G A W g IR TERE 2

O TAEE RGN 889.0 794.9
wt+—H=+—H 6,192.2 5,156.4

131



132
for the year ended 31st December, 2011 wE_F——F T _H=1T—HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 18. REWXE(E)

The carrying amount of investment properties shown
above comprises:

Properties in Hong Kong iSSP A Y ES
Long-term lease RIWHE
Medium-term lease SRR

Medium-term lease properties outside ~ FF#sHE/h 2 I

Hong Kong ES

During the year, the Group reclassified certain owner-
occupied properties with a total carrying amount of
HK$109.1 million (2010: HK$32.3 million) to investment
properties due to the fact that the usage of the properties
had been changed to being held for lease out and the
Group ended its occupation. A fair value gain on the date
of transfer of HK$146.0 million (2010: HK$137.5 million)
was recognised as other comprehensive income.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties on
the date of the transfer and at 31st December, 2011 and
2010 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out at that date by Norton Appraisals Limited, a
firm of independent and qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group. The valuation was principally
based on investment approach by taking into account the
current rents passing and the reversionary income potential
of tenancies. For the properties which are currently
vacant, the valuation was based on capitalisation of the
hypothetical and reasonable market rents with a typical
lease term or direct comparison approach.

At 31st December, 2011, the carrying value of investment
properties pledged as security of the Group’s bank and
other borrowings amounted to HK$5,910.5 million (2010:
HK$4,895.4 million).

Details of the Group’s investment properties and other
assets being pledged to secure loans and general banking
facilities are set out in note 54.

BB BRTEAE AT
2011 2010
—g——5 T3
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT EX: Yoo
5,205.3 4,347 .4
861.9 679.9
125.0 129.1
6,192.2 5,156.4

AEIA o AR S S A TR T AVE A
109.1F @ Ie (. F—F4F : 323 A # it
) ZEFAAYEEREYE > FHIHEA
Yz BB ATHERH > mMAEEE
{EIRAE AW ZE - EE H 2 A TEE IR %R
146.0 @ BT (2 —R4E : 137.58 %
HI0) B A At 2 ik S R o

AR B BRSO R DA RO —F
——E R F-FELA=ZT—HZRA
- (L AR 450 BELAS 4 (o] MOE 8 R el ) 57 5
AR B A P B0 PR A A FR S =)
W T ZAGERE o sz fh(E £ ZRE
EEH AT S LT e A S A
Mg o H RTS8 22 B 2 W Al (3R 3% —
AL A B il st & BTG AL e i T S A
EIBILHE -

W oFE——F+ H=+—H > REH
SR AT S oA 5 B R 2 B E Y
BRTE{E 455,910.5 A BT (& — R4 ¢
4,895.4H B IT) ©

AR AR ] gl 5 5 B — MRCSRAT A5 R T 1A 2
B2 R AN R R RS54
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. Y% - BERKXE

Furniture, Motor
Leasehold land Leasehold fixtures and vehicles
Hotel  and buildings  improvements equipment and vessels
property AELH HEsT 7R byl Total
BENE kg7 ¢ RERER Rt fazt
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
[ 45 (& 3o [&F 2o [&F 2o Bk ik
The Group 158
Cost j
At Tt January, 2010 R-E-FE-R—A 608.5 2156 106.7 2354 291 11953
Bxchange and other adjustments 5t ARt - 07 05 03 - 15
Additions il - - 6.1 595 27 1243
Transferred from investment properties 83 i $t &4 % - 01 - - - 21
Transferred to investment properties B 2 & & H % - (34.1) - - - (34.1)
Disposals i - - (5.5) (117) (13) (185)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMEAR - - (83.9) (928) 0.7) (1773)
At 31t December, R-E-ZF
2010 TZH=1-H 608.5 204.3 80.0 190.7 29.8 1,133
Bxchange and other adjustments 5t R g% - 26 15 12 - 53
Additions )l - - 284 67.1 19 974
Transferred from investment properties 4 A £t & %)% - 519 - - - 519
Transferred to investment properties BB EREHE - (1232) s = = (123)
Disposals i = = (20.1) (45.3) (02) (65.6)
At 31st December, REZ——4F
2011 tZA=t-H 608.5 135.6 89.8 2137 315 1,079,
Accumulated depreciation and ZithE
impairment R
At Ist January, 2010 e 293 278 65.2 1537 256 5626
Exchange and other adjustments  EES Rl - - 04 0.1 - 05
Provided for the year AR 5.6 46 242 322 19 68.5
Transferred to investment properties  HZEEr &Y% = (4.8) = - - (4.8)
Impairment loss reversed L s (5.7) - - - - (5.7)
Fliminated on disposals il - - (5.0 (8.4) 08) (142)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEE A - - (55.0) (66.0) 0.5) (121.5)
At 31t December, REF-ZE
2010 tA=t-H 2902 276 298 1116 26 485.4
Bxchange and other adjustments st Rl - 0.1 08 05 - 14
Provided for the year AL 59 21 210 303 15 60.8
Transferred to investment properties ¥ £ 1 &4 % - (14.1) - - - (14.1)
Impairment loss recognised CsE e 40 - - - - 40
Fliminated on disposals i R - - (16.9) (36.2) 0.1) (53.2)
At31st December, RoE——k
2011 tZAZt-H 3001 157 347 106.2 276 4843
Carrying amounts FEE
At 31st December, RoF——A
2011 toAZt-H 308.4 1199 5.1 1075 39 5948
At 31t December, RE-F—FAE
2010 TZH=1-H 3183 176.7 50.2 79.1 3.6 6279
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19.

20.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

The carrying amounts of hotel property and leasehold land
and buildings shown above comprise:

BE=F A=t B
19. ¥I% ~ BER&HE ()

3 T 3 R R A R T
B4

The Group
rEH
2011 2010
—2——fF “E-FF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER A #ETT
Long-term lease properties in NEZ R E
Hong Kong ES 358.7 454.1
Properties outside Hong Kong ER e R PATES
Medium-term lease A 69.3 40.5
Short-term lease AT & 0.3 0.4
428.3 495.0

At 31st December, 2011, hotel property with carrying
value of HK$308.4 million (2010: HK$318.3 million)
and leasehold land and buildings with carrying value of
HK$40.3 million (2010: HK$125.4 million) were pledged
as security of the Group’s bank and other borrowings.

The Company did not have any property, plant and
equipment at 31st December, 2011 and 2010 and 1st

January, 2010.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 20.
The Group’s prepaid land lease payments comprise:
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong FWHANZ AT 1
Medium-term lease R &
Short-term lease VTR LiEN =
Analysed for reporting purposes as: F 2 H B ETEZ b
Non-current assets T B &
Current assets LB

W ——F+A=1+—0 » KEE®
SRAT R HoAh A 0K B 18 {H A5 308.4 H
WL —FM 3183 A MWL) 2
W) 2E N R TRIEL A5 40.3 A B0 (& —
RAE 1 125.4F o) L E T T o

ARTR TR T+
=t H LR E A — F R
T ~ B3 Tt

R HE
ASSE ) 2 TR L
The Group
AEH
2011 2010
—e——5 %4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET HEET
10.2 10.1
0.2 0.3
10.4 10.4
10.0 10.0
0.4 0.4
10.4 10.4
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21.

228

GOODWILL

Cost

At Tst January

Released on disposal of subsidiaries
(note 15)

At 31st December

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group 158

Cost A

At st January, 2010 e S i il

Additions B

Disposal of subsidiaries HERE

At31st December, RoZ-FE
2010 +ZA=1-A

Additions s

Disposals b

At31st December, RF——4f
2011 +ZR=1-A

Amortisation and impairment B HE

At Tt January, 2010 REF-FF—H—H
Amortisation charged for the year A4 EL {1k #84
Impairment loss recognised EHETREER
Released on disposal of subsidiaries & /A B[

At 31st December, RZF-%4
2010 +oAZA—A

Amortisation charged for the year  A4EEE TR 2

Eliminated on disposals i g

At 31st December, REF—F
2011 tZAE+-H

Carrying amounts RHEE

At 31st December, RZF——4
2011 toAEA

At 315t December, REZ—F4
2010 tAZA-H

BBt A S B

21. BHE
The Group
A EE
2011 2010
—g—_F —x_ag
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET HE#HIT
RS
w—H—H 2,490.3 2,642.6
T ] NGl
(Fft&E15) - (152.3)
wt+=H=+—H 2,490.3 2,490.3
22. BILEE
Computer software B
1 §e
il participation
Internally rights Sales  Customer Club
Acquired  developed 55 Trademark  network relationship Web-domain Membership Total
BA mERE SRR BR  HESR  EZFRR #9 EFER it
HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS$ Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million HK$ Million  HKS Million  HKS Million
Fikn  FElT  BRlc BRlc PRl Bl Bl Bl B
97.2 302 23 1,063.9 167.7 1,154.0 780 8.8 2,602.1
14.6 5.0 - - - - - - 19.6
- - - (188.9) (167.7) - - - (356.6)
1.8 352 23 875.0 - 1,154.0 780 8.8 2,265.1
103 203 = = = = = = 36.6
(9.2) = = = = = = = (9.2)
1129 615 23 875.0 - 1,154.0 780 8.8 22925
328 29 1.0 7.0 545 809.6 332 1.1 942.1
103 11 - - 153 168.0 6.7 - 2014
- - = = - 1.0 - - 1.0
= = - - (69.8) - - = (69.8)
4.1 40 1.0 7.0 = 978.6 399 1.1 1,074.7
198 47 - - - 167.7 6.7 - 198.9
(8.3) S S s s S S s (8.3)
546 8.7 1.0 7.0 = 1,146.3 46.6 1.1 1,265.3
58.3 52.8 13 868.0 - 7.7 314 7.7 1,027.2
68.7 312 13 868.0 = 1754 38.1 7.7 1,190.4
Annual Report 2011
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228

23.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT’D)

The Company

Cost

At 31st December, 2010 and
31st December, 2011

WE_E——4FE+ - H=1—HILER
22 BREE(E)

Club
Membership
ik
HK$ Million
HEBT
YN
RS
A E—BE TS — AR
—F——%+-"A=1+—H 0.5

Other than the club membership, exchange participation
rights and the trade mark, which have indefinite useful
lives, the intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line

basis over the following periods:

Acquired computer software

Internally developed computer software
Sales network

Customer relationship

Web domain

3-5 years
5-10 years
10 years
5.4 years
10 years

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL

LIVES

For impairment testing, goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives at 31st December, 2011 were

allocated to the following cash generating units.

PRer BT eErl ~ 55 I 2 SR I P AR 41 8] S
(EHAEHSN TR A T 5] % AR
LS

EYNGH i Tgts 3E54E
AL B % 2R sk 1 5% 104F
By 104
% F R 5.44F
48 5, 104E

BEREEEEAFHNETLEEZ
R BRI R

23.

MIETHEN > R=-F——F+ A
=t H R S ] o A Y ST
BRI AN B g AR A o

Goodwill Trade Mark
5k a1
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F “F-FE —E——F “E T
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT X BEEET X
Consumer finance segment—  FA A JFH5 43 — i3
United Asia Y B 5 A TR
Finance Limited NI e
(“UAF") B ) 2,384.0 2,384.0 868.0 868.0
Elderly care services segment— 7 IR H5 533 —
Tuen Mun Elderly Care Y
Home CGU T4 7 A B 1.4 1.4 - —
Investment, broking and P& - R
finance segment-SHK I3 HB — Hrie AR 104.9 104.9 - -
2,490.3 2,490.3 868.0 868.0
BoRE (SR ARA A Anggal Report 20
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23.

24.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL
LIVES (CONT’D)

The recoverable amount of UAF, a cash-generating unit,
represents the value in use at 31st December, 2011 based
on a business valuation report on the UAF group prepared
by an independent qualified professional valuer, Norton
Appraisals Limited. It is based on a five-year performance
projection and certain key assumptions (updated with
latest market data) including an average growth rate of
10.1% from 2012 to 2016, a sustainable growth rate
of 3.0% beyond 2016, and a discount rate of 15.4% to
determine the value in use. The recoverable amount of
UAF was determined to be in excess of its net carrying
amount.

The recoverable amount for the Tuen Mun Elderly Care
Home CGU, a cash-generating unit, was determined
based on value in use calculations covering detailed five-
year cash flow projections followed by extrapolation of
expected cash flows at certain key assumptions including
an growth rate of 2.0% and a discount rate of 14.0%. The
recoverable amount of Tuen Mun Elderly Care Home CGU
was determined to be in excess of its net carrying amount.

The recoverable amount of SHK has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. The calculation
uses cash flow projection based on the financial budget
approved by SHK management covering a 1-year period
for both years at a discount rate of 11.0%. The recoverable
amount was determined to be in excess of its net carrying
amount.

Management believes that possible changes in any of the

above assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts
to exceed their recoverable amounts.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investment, at cost BE > A
Deemed capital contribution (note) R EA I (5
Less: impairment W WE

Note: Deemed capital contribution represented the imputed interest on the
interest-free loans.

BBt A S B
23. HEREEEERAFHNENEEZ

RE R ()

B 4 o 25 A7 B N W S BRS04
R ——F+ A =+—HZHH
fE{E > TR & B A% A (E fili
SRR R A A PR R i R B A S 4R
B SETSAG (B S I e E o mT Wi vl 2 RE AR
B AR LA TH I DA LA T ARGER (AT
T TAER R ONFER R R
10.1% & —F—7NF4E v Frigiis R R 5
3.0% > MHrBEF15.4%) - DI 2 f#
BB o S5 IS B G T i 0] 4 28 A4S Tl o
Jry B LR T VR

B4 A By ol P R O B A AR A
B A A ] 4 ARG (o B (E R A
U R T 2 FLAR IR 4 i TE ) M AR B T =R
TR (A F5 1R 22 .0% M T B 2 14.0%)
TR SR B - B OB
4 i A BV 2 T i ] 4 A S e A L
PR T F(E

T A 2 T[] SR B (R E o R
I BE A >t ol S5 i 5 L
HEHE 2 —4F A B TS AF i 2 Bl I R 7
B> PrEiA11.0% o 15 H 2 AT el g A
FREE 7y L 28 AR T L

ERLEADS o bR AT RE B Ak
S A fok AR T 0 L) T o [ 8 o

24. AMBABTIZEE

The Company
ENA
2011 2010
-  F %k
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEER L0
447.4 380.3
- (80.4)
447 .4 299.9
PR WA VAt R S A2 AL -
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

WE_E——4FE+ - H=1—HILER
25. B AR XK

The Company
AN
2011 2010
—2——-F “F-FEF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET A HEETT
Amounts due from subsidiaries it J8 N 7 R K
Unsecured and bear interest at ST e 7 Vs o B T
Hong Kong Prime rate minus 3.75% 233,758 2 4F Fl| %
per annum s - 217.9
Unsecured and at imputed interest of — MEFEAH K 1 7 5 e 1 2 1) 236k
Hong Kong Prime rate minus 4.25% 4258 (ZF—F4 1 1.254)
(2010: 1.25%) per annum Z AR R 8,948.7 9,082.4
Unsecured and non-interest bearing HEHEHR AT R 892.1 672.0
9,840.8 9,972.3
Less: Allowance for impairment W SRR (171.7) (287.3)
9,669.1 9,685.0
Analysed as: IHTE
Non-current JE Ry 9,166.2 9,221.8
Current EIEE 502.9 463.2
9,669.1 9,685.0

The amounts of HK$9,166.2 million (2010: HK$9,221.8
million) due from subsidiaries are not repayable within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
the balance is therefore shown as non-current. Other
amounts of HK$502.9 million (2010: HK$463.2 million)
are repayable on demand and expected to be repayable
with twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
The balances are therefore shown as current assets.

WA 8 5 R K9, 166.2 F T (T & —&
A 19,221.8'H M s T ) P ZE IR B B AR R
s R A AR > RIBL &S R 5 1 IR B
] o HA/KFK502.9H EB L (—FE—=F
4 1 463.2 [ HWEIT) ZE N BRI R K T
AT s AR T A R - R
ULz A5 RS BB G E -
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25.

26.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Other than the bonds and mandatory convertible
notes, terms of which are shown in note 44 and note
45 respectively, none of the subsidiaries had any debt
securities outstanding at the end of the reporting period or
at any time during the reporting period.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that the amounts due
from subsidiaries are impaired. An impairment allowance is
recognised when there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more loss events having occurred
that has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
subsidiaries that can be reliably estimated.

Gross amount of impaired amounts R ) 2 | R 2
due from subsidiaries SRDRIERE

Less: Allowance for impairment B WA

Net carrying amount of impaired (i) YNCING o
amounts due from subsidiaries % Il L B T 43 (.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st
December, 2011 are set out in note 58.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Listed securities (note 26 (i) RS (MsE26())
I BT A (B 5E26(i0)

Unlisted shares (note 26 (ii))

BBt A S B

25.

26.

B8 2 R R K ()

AR A2 2 3R A P T 40 BB SRR Rk 20 Tl
HR B 544 K B E45) Sb o AR 8§ 22 =
TP st ST A SRR 7 39 7 A AT 5 ] A A4
AR BB -

AN F IR A B R IR R AL A A 2 LR IR
HEME AR KK WE - AARGRE
ggﬁnﬂ Xnﬂgﬂﬁfjm E%&’EEE/J IEJZU
ARG > EHAMETT AT SERYfh
A& - BT e BN A R B AR BB SR
i IR R I T o

The Company
NG|

2011 2010
—2—-F e S 23
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT LT
351.6 1,538.7
(171.7) (287.3)
179.9 1,251.4

ARARARF——F+ A =+—H

9 5 B8 28 R R O R RS 8 o

REE QT 2w
The Group
FEE

2011 2010

o e e

HK$ Million HKS$ Million

BEET A #ETT

6,163.8 5,212.6

62.4 62.3

6,226.2 5,274.9
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26. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D) 26. MEE N F 2w ()
The Group
s e |
2011 2010
2% R
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET H BT
Notes: e
(i) Listed securities (i) b
Cost of investment HO& A 3,170.1 2,722.9
Share of post-acquisition reserves JREA W 2% £k A 3,038.9 2,529.5
Less: Impairment allowance recognised R (45.2) (39.8)
6,163.8 5,212.6
Fair value of listed securities, at quoted price RS ATEL - HRRAE 3,164.9 4,175.1
Management has reviewed the shortfall between the carrying A P L ) — ) T A ) SR o i B
amount of a listed associate and the fair value of the associate at RS BRI A FEHZ F 25 - B HER
the end of the reporting period. The management considers that the B o T BRI A W 2 MG BURAC B G st A 1
value in use based on a discounted future cash flow of the associate FFHEﬁﬁ W20 BN R Z MR T E Je NP E(E
is higher than the carrying amount and the fair value of the associate. o R > BRERER I E4 o
Hence, no impairment allowance needs to be recognised.
The Group
S SE |
2011 2010
—2——f e S 2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BT
(i) Unlisted shares (i) L
Cost of investment G A 44.3 443
Share of post-acquisition reserves JREAG WA 1% £ 22.1 22.0
66.4 66.3
Less: Impairment allowance recognised B AR E A 4.0 (4.0)
62.4 62.3
ALLIED PROPERTlES (H K.) LIMITED A R 2011
A BEBLE(EE)ERAA *Anr%agﬁportiili
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26. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

27/

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group's associates is set out below:

BBt A S B

26. REHE QR 2w ()

B BN R 2 B BB AN T

2011 2010
—EB——F —E-F4E
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET T EHETT
Total assets B AR 25,810.5 23,137.8
Total liabilities BB (10,080.6) (8,669.2)
Net assets &R E 15,729.9 14,468.6
Group's share of net assets of A 45 (5] B A W A
associates B FE 6,848.1 5,273.1
2011 2010
—E——F —ER R4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET R Yo
Revenue 1PN 2,964.3 2,281.0
Profit for the year AR A Vi 846.2 1,649.3
Group’s share of profit or loss of SR EAL BB ] 22
associates for the year AR 45 337.1 552.1

AEER —F——F+_A=t—HZE
T 2N Rl A O B 59 -

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31st
December, 2011 are set out in note 59.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 27. RHAREHLEERE
The Group
REE
2011 2010
—E—-—-F TR —FAE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT H AT
Unlisted shares FE T AR

Cost of investment & A 108.5 109.5
Share of post-acquisition reserves JRE £k A B ot 1,297.0 1,129.7
1,405.5 1,239.2
Elimination of unrealised profit L A 5 1 v ) (17.6) (17.6)
1,387.9 1,221.6
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED Al n%gagRgp(%rt éo; E(
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27. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 27, A4 D% > % (&)
(CONT’D)
The summarised financial information in respect of the A 45 [ 2 [ 428 ) £ SEHE A (LARE AR IR A
Group's interests in the jointly controlled entities which are AR) Z B 5 Rt A
accounted for using the equity method is set out below:
2011 2010
—EF——F B S <12
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET HEET
Non-current assets FE B E 1,578.4 1,468.2
Current assets ) 329.0 352.4
Non-current liabilities s A (329.6) (200.9)
Current liabilities E) A fE (172.3) (380.5)
Group’s share of net assets of jointly 7 £ 19 JE A\ s ) 42 i
controlled entities A2 HE 1,405.5 1,239.2
2011 2010
—E——F “E-FE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET HEET
Revenue WA 343.2 304.2
Expenses B % (279.4) (251.8)
Increase in fair value of investment BB N FHEE
properties Hm 142.5 113.0
Taxation FiIH (39.6) (29.5)
Group’s share of results of jointly A [ A\ R | 2 2
controlled entities for the year AR 3R 166.7 135.9
Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entities at 31st AREMP - F——FE+ " H=+—HzH
December, 2011 are set out in note 60. I 2 il £ S I O R 560 o
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1) LIMITED Annual Report 2011
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28. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

28. AHHESRMERE

The Group
AEHE
2011 2010
—2——-F “F %
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEET A HEETT
Listed equity investments issued by PEEWBEITZ
corporate entities, at quoted price LA E > HeRE
Listed in Hong Kong Fis BT - 0.9
Listed outside Hong Kong s LM T 31.0 45.8
31.0 46.7
Unlisted equity investments issued by 3 E #5472
corporate entities I B ARE
Hong Kong shares, at cost less AR (E 2
impairment s Ay 0.4 0.4
Overseas shares (primarily in South R FRA TR E 2 1 SN B A
Asia engaging in hotel management (EZR R > fEsE
business), at cost less impairment T )5 B B EEHT ) 211.3 174.2
Macau shares, at fair value F N B (E 2 L R A 42.3 51.7
Shares in overseas investment funds, at ~ F&/AFE(H 2 BAMEE
fair value FeB Ay 31.2 19.1
316.2 292.1

Available-for-sale financial assets are intended to be held
for a continuing strategic or long-term purpose.

As there are no sufficient market comparables as input
to measure the fair value reliably, some of the unlisted
equity investments are measured at cost less impairment.
The fair value of the Macau shares was established by
using discount cash flow method with a discount rate at
prevailing prime interest rate. The fair value of shares in
overseas investment funds are established by reference
to the prices quoted by respective fund administrators as
these equity securities may be redeemed at the request by
the holders based on such quoted prices.

Further details on financial risk management of available-
for-sale financial assets are disclosed in note 48.

]k B < O fBE R R AR R M B R U B
A -

R A Sz 406 A2 40 T 85 T LB AR 2 T BE R
AP R A BE o Lk BT BA
BOE R MAIBR B E R - WM 22
RE IR BATEEM R TR B SR E
L E - MBI BB 2 EETS
2RI E NPT ER EEE > 1LY
FH A 5% 55 S AS 78 25 T 1R A\ 2 BRI A
BRI A T LA ]

T P < < R g B A —
R B 48 o
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29. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER 29.
FINANCE CUSTOMERS

BE=F A=t B

IAMBEFERR B

The Group
REH
2011 2010
—E——fF ZF—FAE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEAR A T
Loans and advances to consumer RN R F Rk &
finance customers K 7,961.8 5,923.2
Less: Allowance for impairment R W
Individually assessed A8 A F A (0.1) (0.3)
Collectively assessed LR, (405.6) (458.4)
7,556.1 5,464.5
Analysed for reporting purposes as: AR E B2 2
Non-current assets JE s & 2,972.6 2,291.9
Current assets i B A 4,583.5 3,172.6
7,556.1 5,464.5
Movements of allowance for impairment during the year ANAF FE (B S Emh A
were as follows:
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E2——-F e i
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEAR N5
At 1st January w—H—H (458.7) (567.5)
Exchange adjustments [ be, 5 & (1.4) 0.7)
Amounts deducted directly from loans and ~ EL RN BHE & P B30%
advances to consumer finance customers  FEFN G 2 2 IE 273.3 274.6
Amounts recognised in consolidated ARG WA MR RE
income statement FRIE (164.5) (108.6)
Recoveries of amount previously deducted Y [a13# 1E B LA BB % P
directly from loans and advances to B BB Z
consumer finance customers FIH (54.4) (56.5)
At 31st December wmt—A=+—H (405.7) (458.7)

Certain loans and advances are secured by properties. All
the loans and advances bear interest at market interest
rates.

The loans and advances to consumer finance customers
have been reviewed by the Consumer Finance division
to assess impairment allowances which are based on the
evaluation of collectibility, aging analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgement, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection statistics of
individually significant accounts or a portfolio of accounts
on a collective basis.

A T E R B DL ST o BT Bk
BRI A AGER -

FAN BB 5 5 0K S B N A5 T 2
¥ o AR n] U R AL ~ BREE AT BE B
F o (LR R R IR P s IR F A&
ﬁg%ﬁ%%&@ﬁiﬂ&%ﬁ%@%) DA & S (B
?x °
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BBt A S B

29. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER 29. AABEEESSHI RS (E)

FINANCE CUSTOMERS (CONT’D)

Gross amount of impaired loans under Al 5l 2 B Wl {E

individual assessment AR AR
Less: Loans impairment allowance B AR AL 2 A B
under individual assessment T A

Net carrying amount of impaired loans  {fl Al A 2 . I H £ 3k
under individual assessment MR Ty 7

The following is an aging analysis for the loans and
advances to consumer finance customers that were past
due at the end of the reporting period but not impaired:

Less than 31 days past due w31 H
31 to 60 days 31£60H
67 to 90 days 61£90H
Over 90 days 90 H A E

The amount and type of collateral required depend
on an assessment of the credit risk of the customer or
counterparty.

The main types of collateral and credit enhancement
obtained are as follows:

— for personal lending, mortgages over residential
properties; and

— for commercial lending, corporate guarantees,
charges over real estate properties, pledge of shares or
debentures over the borrower’s assets.

The Group
FEE

2011 2010
o e e
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT T TT
1.2 2.0
0.1) (0.3)
1.1 1.7

PATF 27 i i R B 2 W E R E 2 AU
BATS % P L B B  BR i A

The Group
EN L

2011 2010
e T =
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT AT
437.8 261.5
98.4 39.0
119.4 19.6
60.1 81.0
715.7 401.1

[ e 18 PR K TE B IR T % 5 s o 3 T
AR BB AT AL 1 DL E

PI AT B2 5 BE PR T E BRI AT

BIRENEK - MEEYISEE » &

BRI > DIRSENER - FHE
PISEAEHT ~ A S A N A R
FRAEA
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29. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER

FINANCE CUSTOMERS (CONT’D)

In general, the loans and advances which are granted
on a secured basis, are made to the consumer finance
customers with sufficient amount of collateral provided
by them. Management requests additional collateral as
appropriate in accordance with the underlying agreements,
and monitors the market value of collateral during its
review of the adequacy of the allowance for impairment
losses.

Estimate of fair value of collateral are based on the fair
value of collateral determined using valuation techniques
commonly used for the corresponding assets at the time of
borrowing.

For the secured loans and advances to consumer finance
customers with the carrying amount of HK$760.5 million
(2010: HK$307.1 million), the fair values of the collaterals
of such can be objectively ascertained to cover the
outstanding amount of the loan balances.

The carrying amounts of the loans and advances to
consumer finance customers approximate their fair values.

WE =T~ A=+ H LA
29. A BEFERKR B (HE)

— T o SRR ORI ESR L 2 R K B
Ao TyAE TSR T R A 2 FA N BB
FF o B AT AR SR Bl o el TR
PERRSMEAM iy > 017 0 ] 9 (L M 4 495 44 2
73 2500 B B IS A o 2 T (E o

AR i P (BT AR SR A5 KR BR P
— P N IR T 2 A (B i i R 2 4K
i 2B (BT R

PRI (E £5760.5 F B o0 (T —FA4F
307.1 @ His o) 2 A IR AMB R &
RN > MBS 5 2 A PR (R AT
FBIE T B R LA T R A B 2 KBRS
o

AN B 5 25 5 A8 e Bk 2 R T R B L 2
SAB(EARA -
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30. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets and
liabilities of the Group recognised and movements thereon
during the current and prior years:

WE = F A A= B

30. ELERIE

AR B A A T BB A AR T AR Y 22
ESEBLIHE 2 b A (DL AR B S B an T

Revaluation of Undistributed
Accelerated properties and earnings
tax  otherassets Provisionand  Unrealised  and others
depreciation ~ WERHM  impairment profit  RAEBR]  Taxlosses Total
MERHBIE BEEf, BERWAE AEREA REf HEE gt
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million
B&bT B&kT BE®T B&bT B&EbT [E3 B&bT
The Group 158
At st January, 2010 R=F—%4—A—H 2333 460.7 (104.0) 43 8.3 (113.3) 489.3
Exchange adjustments 5 0.1 0.2 (0.4 03 = (0.1) 0.1
Recognised in consolidated A AR
income statement (note 14) (HzE14) 0.0 724 44 1.9 (1.5) (30.5) 527
Recognised to other ‘2
comprehensive income lget £ - 2. - - - - 22
Released on disposal of T ER B AR R
subsidiaries B 0.2) (47.3) - - - = (47.5)
At 315t December, e S
2010 +ZA=1-H 2392 506.2 (100.0) 6.5 0.8 (143.9 516.8
Bxchange adjustments B 01 04 (1.0) 04 - (05) (0.6)
Recognised in consolidated 4z A HemERE
income statement (note 14) (fitzE14) 19.7 85.2 17 6.9 0.6 (13.4) 99.5
Recognised to other IERE
comprehensive income iR - 240 - - - - 240
At 31st December, REF——iF
2011 TZAZT—H 259.0 617.8 (99.3) 13.8 6.2 (157.8) 639.7
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED nual Report 2011
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 wE_F——F T _H=1T—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAX (CONT’D) 30. IEIEFIIE (4E)

For reporting purpose, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis
of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities AR ER A B A&
Deferred tax assets AR LR TE

At 31st December, 2011, the Group had unrecognised
deductible temporary differences of HK$235.0 million
(2010: HK$365.6 million) and estimated unused tax
losses of HK$2,284.4 million (2010: HK$2,249.9 million)
available for offset against future assessable profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
HK$956.4 million (2010: HK$872.4 million) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$1,328.0 million (2010:
HK$1,377.5 million) of losses due to the unpredictability
of future assessable profit streams. The unrecognised tax
losses included a sum of HK$3.7 million (2010: HK$3.2
million) that will expire from 2012 to 2015.

The Group also had unrecognised taxable temporary
differences arising from investment in PRC subsidiaries of
HK$277.4 million at the end of the reporting period (2010:
HK$111.5 million). The taxable temporary differences
have not been recognised as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

There were no other significant temporary differences that
are not recognised arising during the year or at the end of
the reporting period.

At 31st December, 2011 the Company had estimated
unused tax losses of HK$3.4 million (2010: HK$3.4
million) available for offset against future assessable profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
such losses due to the unpredictability of future assessable
profit streams. Tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

HERCE H S o TIRIEBIHE E M A
RS A BAS SR B B 3 IR B A
WA

The Group
FEE

2011 2010
—g——%  —F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEET ELi
732.4 610.9
92.7) (94.1)

639.7 516.8

RoFE——FF+H=+—H  KEEZ
TR R AT H LG IRF 25 B /% 235.0 B B oG
(T —F4E  365.6 A B IT) M AT K S
7 A R R T A 2 Ak R R B B JE S 1R
2,284 41 BTG (ZF —F4E 1 224997
B TT) o Hidhmtos6.4 BT (—F —
T 872.4H Eion) 2 il R wERRIE
FEBLITEEE - R K A e A o B SRR 16
W Ol ERERR AR T 1,328.0 H BT (—
F—FAE 1 1,377.5 0 B I0) l5E 2 TR IE
BUHERE - AERBUEEREM SN %
— CHEF R -HFFIMZRIEITEE
WS (B —F4F 32 B I0) ©

AR > A A B H 7 A A
) 2 AR AR 2 R T R B B IR 22
277 A EHT (ZE —F4E 111585
W5 IG) o H A A AL [ a4 1 458 [m] By IR 2 AH
ZIRF[E] > 17 R R 25 B T REAS A & A ] LA
AHEE ] > DRSS 5 R SRR I R 25 2 o

BRI IR I S R RS 2
KRG 2258

Mo ——FE+A=+—H s XA
TS AR 2l HE SRR i A 2 Al s oR B A B E s
HIAAEBIL(ZE -4 : 347 85
Jt) o [l K e e AR AR M SRR i AR - i
S JHE R R A B e 1 2 IR B JE o BLIE
Jhes 45 ] 48 PR A 45 e o
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31. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND OTHER

BEF——F A=+ — R IR
31. SHEVEREMEFE

INVENTORIES
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—2——fF e o <2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERBT A EHETT
Properties in Hong Kong, at net NEBEZYEE
realisable value 7 A] S B HE 304.9 277.2
Freehold property outside Hong Kong, ~ F 42 K A 2N 2%
at cost TR INA 135.4 135.5
Other inventories Hihfr & 1.5 0.1
441.8 412.8

In 2010, certain of the Group’s properties previously held
for sale with a net realisable value of HK$16.1 million
were rented out under operating leases during the year and
were therefore reclassified as investment properties.

The freehold property outside Hong Kong represents a
property in the United States of America. The Group has
the intention to sell this asset. The freehold property is
included in the Group’s sale of properties and property
based investments for segment reporting purposes (note 7).

At 31st December, 2011, the carrying value of property
pledged as security of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings amounted to HK$304.9 million (2010:
HK$412.7 million).

B AR 2 A T B
6.1 F T2 4 T
HAE R SR AL, - RE A
REEs -

T BT AN 2 K ZERE Y 24 — TEAT A 5 )
EA R 2 W2 o AN A UL E
B oo KAEMYERMEHRBMFIA
ASEE 2 ) 2 K LY A B 2 BB
(Bff5E7) °

Ao E——FE+ " H=1+—H > EHEE
3049 BT (A4 4127H E
Won) ZWEC I > EAAREERIT X
HAfE S22 5 -
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32. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

Held for trading investments,
at quoted price
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong
issued by corporate entities
issued by banks
issued by public utility entities
Equity securities issued by corporate
entities listed outside Hong Kong
Warrants, futures and options listed in
Hong Kong
Unlisted bonds

Held for trading investments,
at fair value
Equity and currency over the counter
derivatives
Unlisted Hong Kong options
Unlisted overseas warrants and options
Unlisted bonds

Investments designated as at fair value
through profit or loss issued by
corporate entity, at quoted price

Listed bonds

Investments designated as at fair value
through profit or loss issued by
corporate entity, at fair value

Unlisted overseas redeemable
convertible securities

Equity securities in unlisted overseas
investment funds

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current assets
Current assets

Further information of the fair values of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are disclosed in note 48.

BE=F A=t B

32. ZREBEREAVEEREZEME

E
The Group
REE
2011 2010
—E——F B4R
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT HEHETT
BEXZHRE  RRE
B LT 2 AR TS
SEEEET 173.5 157.8
SRATEAT 94.7 176.9
N EENEEEAT 1.2 0.2
Tk DASN I L i A 2R B aE 1T
2 AT I 135.2 88.0
s 2 GRS
& K 1.3 6.0
FE ETHES 23.8 53.4
429.7 482.3
BERXZERE  RAF
BE
RS J B W o
i TE 1.5 -
IE L T A - 3.2
FE LTSGR B RE RS K & 0.1 0.9
I EHES 33.8 31.2
35.4 35.3
TEEBERITIETAEB
BERREATEEREZ
BE  BBE
ErifESR 364.2 443
TEERRITIEESEBR
BERREATEEREZ
®E  ROFEE
IE L 77 v 4 A B ] Ay o e
i 50.0 -
FE LTI ERE S
B A 7 5 309.9 158.8
359.9 158.8
1,189.2 720.7
2 2 B T E 2 A
FE L) & 642.1 _
i B A 547.1 720.7
1,189.2 720.7

2R i R AR A T (E R B 2 B A
PEAE 2 A BB R B 48
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 BEF——HFT_H=T—HILFE
33. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 33. 5 REMBYWRE
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—B2——fF e e <2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER A EHIT
Trade receivables — accounts receivable JELLE 7 Ik
from exchanges, brokers —REZG I~ BE K
and clients F P 2 R 867.0 1,182.9
Less: impairment allowance W B A (24.3) (17.7)
842.7 1,165.2
Secured term loans A A B Rk 1,021.4 705.2
Less: impairment allowance W W E I (56.6) (56.6)
964.8 648.6
Margin loans BB K 4,343.0 45243
Less: impairment allowance B W (66.0) (87.8)
4,277.0 4,436.5
Consideration receivable for the i DA B TR A
disposal of held for trading investments 4 2 £5{E3 5
secured by listed shares repayable P& 2 BEY S
by instalment (ZEAHAEE) - 123.7
Deposits by 87.6 46.8
Dividend receivable on behalf of clients % F B2 JE Ik 1% 5 51.9 32.8
Claims from counterparties, W32 5 ¥ F 2 RIE - & T
receivables from sale proceeds and FRIE 2 ISR S
other receivables HoAth B ik I 160.2 253.7
Less: impairment allowance B W A (0.1 (1.3)
Less: non-current portion of other B HA RIS
receivables e BN AR 3 (7.8) 3.1)
291.8 452.6
Trade and other receivables at TS AR 2 ) e
amortised cost FHAth JE i I 6,376.3 6,702.9
Prepayments TEAT I 21.1 34.4
6,397.4 6,737.3
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual Report 2011
FEBE (FEE)ARAR = - = FE R
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33. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables is
after netting off the following impairment allowances:

WE—F——F A =+— R ILEE
33. EZREMEWREE)

® 5 B AWK BR T 51 ol (EL 43 M 1R
ZHRTHIH

Trade Secured Other
receivables  term loans Margin  receivables
Pl BHEA loans Hity Total
B2 RN BHER EHH PEFRIE @t
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BTG AT L 1o H BT EFA:m
At Tst January, 2010 N R —TAE—H—H 22.0) (56.6) (87.8) 2.7) (169.1)
Exchange adjustments HE 5, 98 8% - - - 1.1 1.1
Amounts written off [RE]EE ¢ 2.0 = = = 2.0
Amounts recognised in the R a il iR
consolidated income statement ~ ZJH (1.3) - = 0.3 (1.0
Release on disposal of HHEE i} B /A )
subsidiaries 18 [n] 3.6 - = - 3.6
At 31st December, NF—FAE
2010 +ZA=1+—H (17.7) (56.6) (87.8) (1.3) (163.4)
Amounts written off B P E 0.7 - 26.4 13 28.4
Amounts recognised in the T A Ui s B R
consolidated income statement ZHH (7.3) = (4.6) 0.1) (12.0)
At 31st December, NoF——4F
2011 +ZA=+—H (24.3) (56.6) (66.0) (0.1) (147.0)

Impairments loss on trade receivables, margin loans,
term loans and other receivables is recognised in the
consolidated income statement after proper review by
the relevant credit control department or credit and
executive committees of the Group, based on the latest
status of trade receivables, margin loans, term loans and
other receivables, and the latest announced or available
information about the underlying collateral held.

RALEARGEEEESMSE SRR E
BeBAT 22 B 6 H o A R I o) R
B R R ~ A R A IR T R 1
DUAR (RN 5 IRAK - B IRk ~ A
S R At R WS TR ) B B 15 D % doe B
DA AT E] A BRI AT B EORH) AR 2
BUEEH > PRI R P R -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE - F——F+ _A=+—HILEEF
33. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 33. B5 RHEAMERKEE)
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables at TG A FHE < B 5 Je A BEGRIE MR
amortised cost approximate their fair values. T B B PE (AR A
The Group
LS ]
2011 2010
= S i
Net carrying Net carrying
Grossamount  Individually ~ amountof ~Gross amount  Individually amount of
of impaired assessed impaired  of impaired assessed impaired
advances  allowances advances advances  allowances advances
BRERR B CHEBR  CHERK @IS CWER
i Bt  REFE bt B REFE

HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS Million  HKS Million  HK$ Million
BB EREn  BEAR Al B AEEx

Impaired trade and other {l {2 E B
receivables under individual & 5 K HAb I

assessment FE
- Trade receivables — [ S ek 110.6 (24.3) 86.3 18.7 (17.7) 10
- Secured term loans ~RIEMRA R 58.1 (56.6) 15 58.1 (56.6) 15
— Margin loans — G 178.7 (66.0) 1127 184.5 (87.8) 9.7
— Other receivables — AR 0.1 0.1 - 13 (1.3) -
347.5 (147.0) 200.5 262.6 (163.4) 99.2
The following is an aged analysis of the trade and other PATR /2% 77 i 2R 8 i 300 (L S e i (1 2
receivables that were past due at the end of the reporting oy KA REWCGRIA 2 HRE AT
period but not impaired:
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—B——F —FFAE
HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEBT L1
Less than 31 days DiR31H 19.1 181.4
31 to 60 days 314260H 5.6 8.2
61 to 90 days 61%90H 301.7 111.5
Over 90 days 90 A L) 240.6 43.6
567.0 344.7
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED Annual Report 2011
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33. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

The following is an aged analysis of the trade and other
receivables based on the date of invoice / contract note at
the reporting date:

WE—F——FFA=+—RILEE
33. EZREMEWREE)

PATR Z TR #2885 B HEAt R ISR TR AR
PR B H R H Rt Z BRI AT -

The Group
&M
2011 2010
—g-—f  —EX
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAET EEACEW
Less than 31 days DIR3TH 769.9 1,128.4
31 to 60 days 31260H 7.2 17.6
67 to 90 days 61%290H 96.7 5.8
Over 90 days 90H A 35.5 143.9
909.3 1,295.7
Term loans, margin loans and S AR I 2 A R
trade and other receivables RS ~ BB 5
without aging* JF Al R s T+ 5,488.1 5,441.6
6,397.4 6,737.3
2 No aging analysis is disclosed for margin loans and term loans 2 BHTE TR S B TE 5 UK A R Y

financing, as, in the opinion of the management, the aging analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of the margin
loans and term loans financing business.

Listed securities, unlisted securities and properties of
clients are held as collateral against secured margin loans
and term loans. The fair value of the listed securities at
31st December, 2011 held as collateral was HK$12,622.5
million (2010: HK$19,601.5 million).

Further details on financial risk management of trade and
other receivables are disclosed in note 48.

34. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

Advances B
Less: Allowance for impairment T WA
Less: Current portion W RV

SEBSTEE » IRES AT FRAK [ BL e 48
28 AR B AT S R R R 2 AR AT

P2 LW ELidsyEns
A AR B A O S AT B Z AR o b
WAE A S LT EER T ——F
+o A=t —HZAVEES12,622.5H
BT (B —F4E 119,601.5 A B T) o

B’ 5y B H A B SCRKIH 2 4 il L o A7 B A —
A RETEHOR FTE48

34. BBE QTR

The Group
FEE

2011 2010

o e A
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBET T E W TT
455.1 139.9
(30.2) (25.3)
424.9 114.6
(373.6) (58.5)
51.3 56.1
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34. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

The impairment is recognised when there is objective
evidence of impairment (such as unsustainable operating
loss) after the Group’s evaluation of the collectibility
of amounts due from associates. Movements of the

impairment during the year are as follows:

At Tst January
Amounts recognised in profit or loss

At 31st December

Gross amount of impaired advances
to associates
Less: Allowance for impairment

Net carrying amount of impaired advances to

associates

The Group
REH

2011 2010
—Eg——F —R—FAE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBT H s
h—H—H (25.3) (25.0)
AR s MR ERR 2 458 4.9) (0.3)
wt+—H=+—H (30.2) (25.3)

The Group

REH
2011 2010
—E——F TR
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBT H T
8/ ) AR L Sl
HaEH 82.5 82.3
W PRE R (30.2) (25.3)
i N ] BGR E E

IRYTREH(EN 52.3 57.0

Further details of amounts due from associates are

disclosed in note 55.

35. CASH, DEPOSITS AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash
Fixed deposits with banks

Treasury bills [ Je 7
Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits with banks

with a term between

4 to 12 months 17k

WE_FE——®F+ A =1+—HI4ER
34. BEQNTXFR(E)

A B T A A B 2 ) R AT i ]
JENG B BUA % LA i (] 45 AR A s 18
SR A AR I 75 B T AR (L © AF A (EL S
;AT -

Bt 8 W RO — R I U B RESS -

BE - FRRREEEY

SRATHREBR B
HARR & =18 H 8 2
with a term within 3 months ~ 4R47 5 A7 2Kk

B kB EEEY
HARR 2 Y 2+ A
H IR Z 8117 %€

The Group The Company

A5E AR
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g——% _—F-%E —B——F _FEE
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEERT L5 BEBT L0
1,419.2 2,197.3 3.1 6.5
1,543.1 1,767.5 - -
- 7.8 - -
2,962.3 3,972.6 3.1 6.5
940.9 282.4 - =
3,903.2 4,255.0 3.1 6.5

155
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&S

35. CASH, DEPOSITS AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 35.

(CONT’D)

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with
licensed banks to hold clients’ deposits arising from
normal business transactions. At 31st December, 2011,
trust and segregated accounts not dealt with in these
financial statements totalled HK$5,019.5 million (2010:

HK$5,398.4 million).

The carrying amounts of cash, deposits and cash

equivalents approximate their fair values.

Further details on financial risk management of cash,
deposits and cash equivalents are disclosed in note 48.

36. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accounts payable to exchanges,
brokers and clients

Dividend received on behalf of clients

Other accounts payable

Amounts due to investee companies

Trade and other payables at
amortised cost

Accrued staff costs and other accrued
expenses

36.

ﬁ%x%% R LER

{2 Y 2 RS
FLAbREAT R
Kﬁﬁ%&ﬂﬁﬁ

TS A 2 B 5 [t
FUAE A SROH
ﬁgﬁimﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁ

The following is an aged analysis of the trade and other
payables based on the date of invoice / contract note at the

reporting date:

Less than 31 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
Over 90 days

Accrued staff costs, other accrued
expenses and other payables without

aging

D31 H
31Z60H
61%290H
90H LI |k

e  ES T

BE FRRREZEW(E)

A EE B A RLGRAT B R A RE B IRE
u%ﬁﬂﬁmﬁﬁxﬁﬁéizgﬁﬁ

ﬁ/\gﬁﬁﬁqz_iﬂ H=+—H:> {I:ln
&%4%ﬁﬁ$@%ﬂ¢%ﬁﬁ%?2i

BEARF5,019.5 A EI0 (F— B4 ¢
5398M$%%n;
B4 ~ Tk M3 4 S B ) 2 W (B B0
PAE(EAA -
ﬁi A7k S Bl 4 S ) 2 4 i g 2 2
— RGN B 5E48 o
ESREMEMSFIE
The Group
REE
2011 2010
—E—-—-F CERAE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBTT H s
692.7 1,084.3
51.9 30.1
204.0 215.2
0.1 4.3
948.7 1,333.9
155.9 127.0
1,104.6 1,460.9
DUR By it it B 2 & 5 S HAb RE A 3k

A AR 2 BEAT B T ARAS -

At e R 22 e H At g
A

The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables at
amortised cost approximate their fair values.

ﬁ%%% Q@ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁz%%
The Group
A%
2011 2010
o e
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEHET EEAET
781.9 1,149.3
11.2 14.9
7.2 7.6
27.9 22.0
828.2 1,193.8
£
276.4 267.1
1,104.6 1,460.9
FRAREE A G HE 2 & 5 B FCAth B A SR IE IR

T BB (AR
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37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. B&
Number of shares Value
BRHBE B
HKS$ Million
AT
Authorised: HE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each R_F—FHE—H—H  ZF—
at st January, 2010, FEFH=+—HF _FE
31st December, 2010 and ——4E+ - H=1+—H&Kk
31st December, 2011 TI{E0.2095 7T 2 HAd B 30,000,000,000 6,000.0
Issued and fully paid: E AT AR ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each R _E—FFE—~A—H
at 1st January, 2010 BT {E0. 207 7T 2 B4 ik 6,088,832,430 1,217.8
Shares issued upon exercise of a share {7 {#i [  25 TE PR WP EE1 T 2 i
entitlement note ranks pari passu in By > TEPTA 75 T BLH A T 8T
all respects with other shares in issue JB A5y AR ] 864,284,155 172.8
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each at WoE—FE+_H=+—H
31st December, 2010 JBC T (EL0. 2078 70 2 ¥ 4 ik 6,953,116,585 1,390.6
Shares issued relating to exchange of B8 K % Hp ] 8 & A FR/A F]
Tian An China Investments Limited (T RZ ) ety R T 2
(“TACI”) shares ranks pari passu in all &A% » 72T J5 T B H At
respects with other shares in issue B AT AR AR TR
(Note 49) (F¥5E49) 412,720,000 82.6
Exercise of warrant subscription rights 17458 A 58 58 I HE 1,783 -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each at W oFE——FE+ HA=+—H
31st December, 2011 JBC I {H0. 207 T8 2 ¥ 2 i 7,365,838,368 1,473.2
38. WARRANTS 38. RBHERE

1,390,623,317 bonus warrants on the basis of one warrant
for every five shares held were issued to all shareholders
of the Company on 13th June, 2011. The warrant holders
were entitled to subscribe in cash for one fully paid share
at an initial subscription price of HK$2.00 per share,
subject to adjustments, at any time from 13th June, 2011
to 13th June, 2016 (both days inclusive).

During the year, 1,783 warrants were exercised, resulting
in the issuance of 1,783 ordinary shares at a subscription
price of HK$2.00 per share. Accordingly 1,390,621,534
warrants were outstanding at 31st December, 2011.
Exercise in full of the outstanding warrants would result
in the issue of 1,390,621,534 additional shares with an
aggregate subscription value of HK$2,781,243,068.

W E——4ENH+=H > 1,390,623,3171%
AL R0 PR o8 e T A L R R Ay ] M —
Uy GBI ME RS 2 FEVMERR AT T AR 0 ) A=l B
We H Z——FANAT=HE - Z—N
FARHT=H (EIEE R B ) LTRH

PO HE B R A N AT $4E BE2.0095 oC (A T
FHEE) Z A SR DA 4 R I — A

JR sy o

RN 5 1,783 RR B RERE AT > R
BERE2.00% 70 2 iR BE(E BE 471,783 k48
B o B > 1,390,621,534 1 58 IREAE 8 1A
“FE —— A= H MR o B
ST 0 RAT (2 R IRHERS > el En
HNEEFT1,390,621,534 I 1y - AR MEAE
142,781,243,068 45T ©
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39. ANALYSIS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 39, E{12E W 2 24T

Attributable to owners of the Company Non-controlling interests
LN EY FERES
Employee
share-hased  Share of net
Property  Investment compensation assets of
revaluation  revaluation  Translation Capital  Accumulated reserve  subsidiaries
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits MEfixfte  EEHE Total
NREMRE REERRE  ENRE  ERBR  EHER BEMERGE NAVEE &3t
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million
At BREr  BEbr AEkx ARl AEE ARl Al
The Group 158
For the year ended BT
31st December, +=A=1—H
2011 IR
Available-for-sale financial assets TfitHiE4 &R - (12.0) - - - - (11.5) (23.5)
Reclassification adjustment to it/ el 4 2
profit or loss on Iiguidation of EEREHMEH
ae‘oint[y contolledenity ~ BZEIR - - (02) - - - 0.0 03)
Revaluation gain on properties  fMyrd % -
transferred from property, plant B & skffeéti &
and equipment to investment £t E4ERF 2
froperties Bt 916 - - - - - 544 146.0
Deferred tax arising from R
revaluation gain on properties i Rk il
transferred from property, plant - £ {t&H%k
and equipment to investment ~ Effl&iEE 7
Eroperties e (151) - - - - - 69) (24.0)
Exchange differences arising ~ 4rEAMERS
on translation of foreign v
operations EiER - - 402 - - - 7 113
Share of other comprehensive  FE{G B AT
income (expenses) of 2lilE
associates (B 37 (14.8) 245.6 127 3.6 - - 250.8
Share of other comprehensive  HEfiItRIFEIA £
income of joint{;/ controlled {27
entities i - - 0.1 - - - - 01
802 8 2857 17 36 S50 4604
For the year ended BE-Z-TF
31st December, TZA=1—H
2010 ILER
Available-for-sale financial assets TfitHiE 4 g E - 6.4 - - - = 37 101
Reclassification adjustmentto iR/ E /
Froﬁt or loss on disposal/ BREEHM
iquidation of subsidiaries AL F R - (58.0) (42 - - - 242 (38.0)
Revaluation gain on properties — fMjErd % -
transferred from property, plant 7% Jksk s %
and equipment to investment £t E4ERF 2
roperties Effild 863 - - - - - 512 1375
Deferred tax arising from ISESLES
revaluation gain on properties i Rak il
transferred from property, plant - £ {t&H3k
and equipment fo investment ~ E i EE Y
Eroperties AR (14.0) - - - - - (8.2) (22.2)
Exchange differences arising  {rEAMERIRE
on translation of foreign fiEkZ
operations s £% - - 47.0 - - - 29 76.
Share of other comprehensive  FE{G B AT
income (expenses) of X6
associates (%) = (8.1) 1437 03 8.6 0.8) (08) 142.9
Share of other com{)rehensive IR SR
income of jointly controlled i
entities i = = 37 - - - - 37
723 (59.7) 190.2 03 6.0 (0.8) 99.3 3102
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED Annyal Report 2011
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40. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Share premium

Property revaluation reserve
Investment revaluation reserve
Capital redemption reserve

Translation reserve
Capital reserve
Accumulated profits
Dividend reserve

The Company
At 1st January, 2010

Issue of shares
Dividend paid
Proposed final dividend

Profit attributable to owners

At 31st December,
2010

Issue of shares
Dividend paid
Proposed final dividend

Profit attributable to owners

At 31st December,
2011

BBt A S B

40. R1DRERHE

The Group
REE
2011 2010
—E——F BB
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEETT HEWHIT
A i A 2,670.8 2,353.0
B RN ] 209.4 129.2
& AL kA 300.7 327.5
A [ it A 72.2 72.2
T 5ot ffs 613.7 328.0
j2gN i 1.4 (11.3)
eyl 14,191.1 12,561.7
S i 107.6 208.6
18,166.9 15,968.9
Capital
redemption
Share reserve Accumulated Dividend
premium  EXEME profits reserve Total
RDEE & 5 g REFE wst
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEBT HEBIC HEE T HEBIC HEB I
UN|
REF—FF—H—H 1,091.2 72.2 2,923.2 913 4177.9
BT 1,261.8 = = = 1,261.8
EATBCE = = = (91.3) 91.3)
FERA S = = (208.6) 208.6 -
B R A 5 A - = 2,888.7 = 2,888.7
R B
+=A=1+—H 2,353.0 72.2 5,603.3 208.6 8,237.1
BT AR 317.8 = = = 317.8
EATIE - = = (208.6) (208.6)
BRRA IS = = (107.6) 107.6 -
A R R A i = = 304.0 - 304.0
i T ——1F
+=A=+—H 2,670.8 72.2 5,799.7 107.6 8,650.3
RoFE -+ HA=+—H » ARXAET]

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
owners at 31st December, 2011 are represented by
accumulated profits and dividend reserve totalling
HK$5,907.3 million (2010: HK$5,811.9 million).

A3 UR T R 2 it LA & 355,907.3 B &
Wt (. E—F4E 1 5811.98 B I0) )

Rt A K B A 25 o
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41. AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

BE=F A=t B

41.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured. At 31st
December, 2011, except an amount of HK$25.6 million
(2010: HK$416.6 million) which bears interest at Hong
Kong Prime Rate less 4.25% (2010: Hong Kong Prime
Rate less 4.25%) per annum and not repayable within one
year, the remaining balances are non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand and hence shown as current.

42. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 42.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Held for trading, at fair value
Futures and options listed in
Hong Kong, at quoted price
Equity and currency over
the counter derivatives

XM B A AR

IR s A B AR A o i T ——4F
TZH=1T—H > FR25.6 8 &L (&
— A T 416.6 0 B I0) Z SRR E S i
B R 2425 (2R —F4E © Filkx
5 B S 4.25 )8 ) 2 4R F 5T B HL A
—AE N E AN - P SRR A B L E
BURREE R » TAMRS A s A fE o

ERESRRATEERE2SHME
&

REXZRA%E ROV EE

ik b2 B R
A

JBeA R B AMT A
TA

Further information of the financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss is disclosed in note 48.

The Group
FEE

2011 2010
—g——5 % i
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEET ELi
1.7 4.8
13.3 1.5
15.0 6.3

BB IR AT EERM . SR AR
i — 20 ORI BRI MY k48 o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 BEF——HFTH=T—HILFE
43. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 43. RITRHMEE
The Group
EE
2011 2010
—Eg——fF —E-EHE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT T E##ETT
Bank borrowings *{ﬂé‘
Bank loans i& Bk 6,472.0 5,339.4
Bank overdrafts ’fﬁﬁ B - 50.0
6,472.0 5,389.4
Other borrowings HoAth £ £ 31.7 175.8
6,503.7 5,565.2
Analysed as: G5
Secured PEEBRE Ll 2,041.0 2,141.2
Unsecured AHEHEFH 4,462.7 3,424.0
6,503.7 5,565.2
Bank loans and overdrafts SRAT LR BB SR AR
are repayable as follows: ll
On demand or within one year Eﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁé%ﬁ*fﬁﬁq 2,128.1 1,625.4
More than one year but — 4L FERNHEE
not exceeding two years A 2,474.9 522.6
More than two years but (RSN (RN Y]
not exceeding five years A 930.5 2,167.8
Bank loans with a repayment BATIRESRIER R C 2
on demand clause are repayable SRAT SRR R
as follows: wmr :
Within one year —4 R 588.6 851.3
More than one year but —4E L FAHR
not exceeding two years A4 35.2 41.8
More than two years but YA A _EAH S 2
not exceeding five years FAE 314.7 180.5
6,472.0 5,389.4
Other borrowings repayable HoAth A B B R IR
on demand or within one year R 4N 8.6 8.3
Other borrowings with a repayment on A R RME 2
demand clause are repayable HoAh £ B fE R MR
as follows: mr :
Within one year —4EN 23.1 143.9
More than one year —4ED FENHEE
but not exceeding two years 4 - 23.6
31.7 175.8
6,503.7 5,565.2
Less: Amount repayable within B ZER— AR B R
one year and shown under 'JE" REAEZ
current liabilities FRIH (3,098.3) (2,874.8)
Amount due after one year —EEAR B B > FKIE 3,405.4 2,690.4
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED Annual Report 2011
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43.

44.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

The Group has bank loans of HK$138.9 million and
HK$71.1 million which are denominated in Renminbi and
Australian Dollars (2010: HK$281.9 million, HK$91.8
million and HK$9.2 million denominated in Renminbi,
Australian Dollars and United States Dollars respectively).
Further details on financial risk management of bank and
other borrowings are disclosed in note 48.

Details of the assets of the Group pledged to secure bank
borrowings are set out in note 54.

The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings
approximate their fair values.

BONDS

WL
NG e

Hong Kong dollar denominated bonds
Renminbi denominated bonds

The Hong Kong dollar denominated bonds were issued to
a fellow subsidiary, bearing interest at the rate of 1% above
HIBOR per annum and payable half-yearly in arrears. The
interest rate is repriced on the first day of every six-month
period. They are due for repayment on 23rd August, 2012.
The Group early repaid the bonds during the year.

On 27th April, 2011, a non wholly-owned subsidiary issued
Renminbi denominated bonds to third parties of RMB450
million (equivalent to HK$538.5 million at the issue date)
with 3-year maturity. The bonds are unsecured, guaranteed
by another non wholly-owned subsidiary and carry an
interest rate of 4% per annum. Details were disclosed in
the announcement of SHK on 19th April, 2011.

The fair value of the bonds at the reporting date, calculated
by discounted cash flows at prevailing market rate,
approximate to HK$476.7 million.

BE=F A=t B

43.

44.

RITRHEMER )

AAE H A SRAT RN 138.9 H B T M 711
A ST Bl AN R R T R (%
—X4FE 1 281.9F E#IC - 91.8F BT
K92 H EHIT - mAlA R - ot K&
FEIUFIMR) o AT R H A B 2 5 Rl E R
B2 RGP R A M E48 o

ASSE B 2 SRAT i BRI 2 A R RO
Bi5E54 o

SRAT Do oAt i 55 2 S T (B SR P (ELAR
%“ o

&3
The Group

AEH
2011 2010
—g——F % E
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET HE#IT
- 500.0
555.8 —
555.8 500.0

WL RT T MR R B AR > HAE
BT T VB SRAT (R SR B 1 B R B AR
SCATRTHAALE o BARREAMEA MM 2
HEMEE - S EAAR —F——4FN
1)13?!‘3 HAERE - R0 > AR PR

WoE——FNA —++tH > —HEEE
B A i 2 = 0 BT AR K& SR > &%
2 N ¥ 450 H 8 o0 (R 817 H WA E 7
538.5 H B I0) > FHIA =AF o BEEE
Iy MG K pR 55— [ IE 2 W e s I
> NGB AR R AJE > A B SO B
IR F——FN A I Z A -

A I % 2 AT (R
B2 TRBAWHE) O 547678
T -
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45.

46.

MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND
WARRANTS

On 13th July, 2010, SHK issued mandatory convertible
notes (“MCN”) in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,708.0 million and warrants in an aggregate face
value of HK$427.0 million.

The MCN bear interest of 2% per annum payable semi-
annually and will mature on 13th July, 2013 (the “Maturity
Date”). The holders of the MCN have the right to convert
their MCN into shares of SHK at a conversion price of
HK$5.0 per share at any time during the issue date to the
Maturity Date. Any outstanding MCN at the Maturity Date
will automatically convert to shares of SHK.

The holders of the warrants have the right to subscribe
for the shares of SHK by paying a subscription price of
HK$6.25 per share at any time during the issue date to
the Maturity Date. No warrants were exercised during the
year.

The MCN and warrants were classified as equity
attributable to non-controlling interests except for the
financial liability element of the MCN which represented
the present value of the fixed interest payment during the
life of the MCN. All outstanding MCN were converted
into shares of SHK in August 2011 and the balance of
the financial liability element was transferred to equity
attributable to non-controlling interests at the conversion
date.

WE=F 4+ A=+ HILFE
45. BEIETRBREBRZREE

M oE—TELA = IR
G AREE F51,708.0 A B s T 2 o il v AT
Hﬁ%f%(rﬁﬂ%u'rimﬁ%ﬂﬁmﬁ% 1) KA TE{E 5
427.0A B0 2 BB RERE

o 1V AT 4 B SR AR AR B R 2 LR > 48
FEME - BMR _F—-=4tAH
T=HEBT R E 1) o 58 ] 1 T4 Bl
R NARER AT BN R 2 H M
W b5 19 5 J1 5. 0 9k TC 2 S (B 1 2 22
i P AT e ER AR e P R BE S Ay o AT AT
JAEI S H 1 AT 22 568 o T 4 S A
B S BT B A

FRIHERS 2 Fi N A HER 8847 H A = 31
H 1 ] b8 IR 3 3 J 6.2 5 6 0 22 58 M (5 5
E{I%ﬁﬂx{" A A S 4 AR W A AT

o, ) 1 ) 966 B S L B
JBHE At MEAL BE S o e 56 o 1 T R SR
é@ﬁﬁ%%%% R A B
e T e e S 4 4F 38 7R E AR B A K 2 B
{H o A F——4)\A > Jrf RAT65E
T30 I SO S M S RIS R B A > T
Pl (T 0 < A BT S ffR S g 2 O
JBHE A A i o

B I I R

PROVISIONS 46. BiE
The Group
REE
Employee
benefits Others Total
EEREF Hith et
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEAT BERTT BE®ETT
Provisions: B
At 1st January, R4
2011 —H—H 53.0 34.6 87.6
Additional provisions for the year 4 [NEESME 42.1 1.2 43.3
Amount written back 0] 4 %E 0.2) 0.4 (0.6)
Amount utilised during the year GRONIRE ) pET e i (4.6) (12.8) (17.4)
Amount paid during the year R EAT A (45.0) (5.2) (50.2)
At 31st December, R4
2011 +-H=+— 45.3 17.4 62.7
Less: Current portion W RUEAER A (43.2) (4.8) (48.0)
Non-current portion ERIEER T 2.1 12.6 14.7
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED Annual Report 20
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47. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BE=F A=t B

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bank and other borrowings, financial liabilities
portion of mandatory convertible notes and bonds) and
equity attributable to owners of the Company comprising
issued share capital, share premium and reserves.

Gearing ratio

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on
an ongoing basis using gearing ratio, which is the net debt
divided by equity. Net debt includes the Group’s bank and
other borrowings, financial liabilities portion of mandatory
convertible notes, bonds and amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries less short term pledged bank deposits and
cash, deposits and cash equivalents. The equity comprises
all components of equity attributable to the owners of the
Company.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

47. EXRERER

A8 0 A 7 LA 0
e L T 4525 ) AR B3 46
B S5 75 [ o 7 0 B R B 4
BERFF RS -

AR A ] 114 AR SR L 355 R (LA SRAT I
A FEBE ~ 58 ) T MR SR 2 e B R
RN DA R R 5 ) BELAS > ) SR A i i (L
TR BATIA ~ Mo vae 8 R k) -

BEXA/LE

7R 1 L R O T R A R L R (RIS
FREBR ISR ) R AR AT o G
TR LG AS SR B 0 SR AT B AL B - R 7
PERTHR SRR 2 S MR R ~ R AR
[F] 2% W B 2 ) DL ol R 0 A T A1 7 ek B
e A BREFEY - #RaEsn
) S SR A i 2 25 A AL IR A

RERE R EAR BT

Bank and other borrowings SRAT K HAt £ B
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries VNGEN ) VAR @
Financial liabilities portion of 968 PR TR R SRR

mandatory convertible notes A AR AR 2y
Bonds 7

Less: Short-term pledged bank deposits
Cash, deposits and

B SR THE AT K
Bl& -~ fFaR ke

cash equivalents S EY)
Net debt R 1 AH
Equity attributable to owners of AN F R A
the Company Hefa
Gearing ratio AR

The Group
REE

2011 2010
—g——% 3
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET HEET
6,503.7 5,565.2
1,255.3 757.1

- 78.5

555.8 500.0
8,314.8 6,900.8
(96.5) (99.5)
(3,903.2) (4,255.0)
4,315.1 2,546.3
19,640.1 17,359.5
22.0% 14.7%

Annual Report 20
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 48. TMTA
48a. Financial Assets and Liabilities 48a. TREBEERAMR
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the AR B KA ) 4 T TR R SR
Company’s financial assets at the end of the reporting IR
period were as follows:
The Group The Company
XEE VN
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g——% "% TF —R——F _F FF
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HKS$ Million
EEET Ak BEBT Al

Financial assets at fair value BRI g IRAT AT
through profit or loss BRI &
(note 32) % (FfEE32)
— Held for trading investments — B e GIRE 465.1 517.6 - =
— Investments designated as at —IRE AR AL
fair value through profit TN TEERR
or loss HE 724.1 203.1 - =
1,189.2 720.7 - -
Loans and receivables under A REEEN
non-current assets B R RN IR
— Loans and advances to consumer — fA A% F Bk
finance customers (note 29) o3BG (fE29) 2,972.6 2,291.9 - =
— Amounts due from associates L =UNEIU
(note 34) (FitzE34) 51.3 56.1 - -
— Amounts due from subsidiaries  — &/ 7] Kk
(note 25) (FftzE25) - - 9,166.2 9,221.8
Loans and receivables AR B Y
under current assets B SR IE
— Short-term pledged bank — AT
deposits HEATEK 96.5 99.5 80.0 98.0
— Cash, deposits and cash —Be - R iBE
equivalents (note 35) EAEY (H3E35) 3,903.2 4,255.0 3.1 6.5
— Amounts due from subsidiaries  — &/ 7] Kk
(note 25) (Fft7E25) - - 502.9 463.2
— Trade and other receivables — & 5 R A
(note 33) FRE (Fff3E33) 6,376.3 6,702.9 0.2 0.1
— Loans and advances to consumer —fi A% F &2
finance customers (note 29) Tk (fE29) 4,583.5 3,172.6 - =
— Amounts due from associates — BN TR
(note 34) (KtEE34) 373.6 58.5 - -
— Amounts due from jointly — kR b2
controlled entities R 8.6 7.7 - -
18,365.6 16,644.2 9,752.4 9,789.6
Available-for-sale financial assets A {18 4 Fil & 7
(note 28) (Ffi7E28) 316.2 292.1 - =
19,871.0 17,657.0 9,752.4 9,789.6
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K,) LIMITED Annual Report 2011
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48a. Financial Assets and Liabilities (Cont’d)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the

BEF——F A=t —R IR
48. TWMITE(E)
48a. EREEREBE(HE)

A 1 e AR ) 4 R R R A SR

Company’s financial liabilities at the end of reporting ZIREAEIT
period were as follows:
The Group The Company
X&HE AN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B--5 “Z-%F ZB--F “IT%F
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HKS$ Million
BEABT HEET BEET A EBTT
Financial liabilities measured REH AT RIS
at amortised cost L
— Bank and other borrowings — 7 R EA R
(note 43) (Fff2E43) 6,503.7 5,565.2 - -
— Trade and other payables — B 5 W HAh e Ak
(note 36) T (W3E36) 948.7 1,333.9 0.9 0.8
— Amount due to a holding — R—HHE RN )
company FIH 3.9 24.9 3.1 22.1
— Amounts due to subsidiaries — K&~ A
(note 41) (KiE41) - - 73.3 439.9
— Amounts due to fellow — R [Al & WA 7
subsidiaries A 1,255.3 757.1 - =
— Amounts due to associates — RN F FOE 32.7 61.2 - -
— Amounts due to jointly — KAt {3
controlled entities E | 50.1 0.1 - -
— Financial liabilities portion of ~ — i il ¥ AT # it 22
mandatory convertible notes ZERE D
(note 45) (BiE45) - 78.5 - -
~ Bonds (note 44) —fi (Wifat44) 555.8 500.0 - -
9,350.2 8,320.9 77.3 462.8
Financial liabilities at fair value IR /A T
through profit or loss R SH AR
(note 42) (Fifak42) 15.0 6.3 - -
9,365.2 8,327.2 77.3 462.8

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped from Level 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

TRES M TR > UATFE
(ERUBZT T Sy s el B 1 /A
EZ AT BEEM R — 2=

S — B TR (R R FE AR 19 B
BRI B T 45 B E RS ) w1
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011
48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48a. Financial Assets and Liabilities (Cont’d)

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from input other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include input for the
assets or liabilities that are not based on observable

market data (unobservable input).

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(note 32)
— Held for trading investments
— Investments designated as at
fair value through profit
or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

(note 28)

Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss
(note 42)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(note 32)
— Held for trading investments
— Investments designated as at
fair value through profit
or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

(note 28)

Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss
(note 42)

B G IR TEHE
R S REE
(Pft5E32)

—FERHEE

— R BB R G IR R
NTEERE
#E

A SR
(fftsE28)

BB A TEE
R S E R
(Pt sE42)

BRI A B
B 4 A
(Fft&E32)

—FER GRS

— 8 BB IR SR R
NEEEH
&

AL S R
(Pf5E28)

BB A ARAE A TE
JRE A A
(Fft5E42)

WE-_E——®F+ A =1+—H IR
48. €RT H (&)

482 SREERAE(H) ‘
%A T AR B —EEA
Z WAL ok (R T ()
fEA ) i1 (MRS 2 ) I W A

BERGH -

5 =R R AR R R IR R
AT BT S5 B (e B A )
ZBEBA M HETTEGS

At 31st December, 2011

R=B-——F+=A=t-H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— EZ E= a5t
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEAT BEEAT BEEAT BEAT
429.7 26.4 9.0 465.1
- 405.4 318.7 724.1
31.0 - 73.5 104.5
460.7 431.8 401.2 1,293.7
1.8 - 13.2 15.0

At 31st December, 2010

RoF A= TR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
o B = B £ At
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEBT HEBT HEBIT H &SI
482.3 - 35.3 517.6
- 64.5 138.6 203.1
46.7 - 70.8 117.5
529.0 64.5 244.7 838.2
4.8 - 1.5 6.3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

BE=F A=t B

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 48. I E (&)

48a. Financial Assets and Liabilities (Cont’d) 48a. EREEREBE(HE)

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2
during the year (2010: Nil). The fair value of level 3
financial assets and liabilities are mainly derived from
unobservable range of data.

The reconciliation of financial assets and liabilities
under level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

A TR S — AR AR A A1 T i
BOCE-FE ) - FEPeME
R AR AHEEEZ LT
BB MR R IEE

BN TEMERE T2 SR E K
B BRI

Investments Financial
designated liabilities
as at fair at fair value
value through Available- through profit
Held for  profit or loss for-sale or loss
trading EES financial ZEBEREK
investments  EBERIE assets RAFEE
B ROVEE AHHE BE2
REGBE REZEE CHEE cREE
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEBT HEBT H HETT ER: Yoy
Balance at 1st January, W E—FAE
2010 —HA—HZ &% 24.8 104.8 66.6 (0.1)
Total gains or losses Wit s 4R AR
— In consolidated income —REE
statement i 4 0.3 8.5 2.1) (1.4)
— In other comprehensive income  — A Hi A 2 i £ - = 12.2 -
Purchase 4= 20.5 56.2 = =
Disposal HE (10.3) (30.9) (5.9) -
Balance at 31st December, AR —FEF A
2010 =t—HZ&R 35.3 138.6 70.8 (1.5)
Total gains or losses Wit SR AR AR
—In consolidated income statement — A 42 A i ¢3 B (4.5) 74.1) - 1.5
— In other comprehensive income — — i EAth 4 it &2 = = (7.9) =
Purchase s 7.0 298.0 10.6 (13.2)
Disposal i (28.8) (43.8) - -
Balance at 31st December, NoFE——FE+H
2011 e = P o 9.0 318.7 73.5 (13.2)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 BE_ZF——F T _HA=1T—HILFEE
48. R T A (M)

48b. TREER BB ZAVEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48b. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
determined as follows:

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments and stock
borrowings) with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively or the quoted market ask prices of the
underlying financial assets for stock borrowings.

The fair value of listed bonds have been determined
by reference to their bid prices at the reporting date
provided by the brokers which is determined based
on the recent observable market transactions from
Bloomberg/Reuters/Traders, and have been translated
using the spot foreign currency rates at the end of the
reporting period where appropriate. Key term of the
listed bonds included coupon interest rate ranging
from 4.625% to 13.5% and maturity ranging from
2014 to 2021 or perpetual. As at 31st December,
2011, certain listed bonds with carrying amount of
HK$137.2 million (2010: HK$25.5 million) have
callable option.

The fair value of unlisted bonds and unlisted equity
convertible securities were established by using the
cash flow method based on discount rates ranging
from 4% to 12%.

The fair value of unlisted equity securities in
investment funds was established by reference to
the prices quoted by respective fund administrators
as these equity securities may be redeemed at the
request by the holders based on such quoted prices.

48c. Financial Risk Management

Risk is inherent in the financial service business
and sound risk management is a cornerstone of
prudent and successful financial practice. The Group
acknowledges that a balance must be achieved
between risks control and business growth. The
principal financial risks inherent in the Group's
business are market risk (includes equity risk, interest
rate risk and foreign exchange risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management
objective is to enhance shareholders’ values while
retaining exposure within acceptable thresholds. Risk
management is managed and controlled through
relevant group companies.

48c.

325 18 At R A O V- (EL IR P
EREMA B AT EEREMT

FAR ARG B e A 5 B T 85 2
1 <l 2 % el R AR (AR AT AR T
H SR AE8) B R (2 1) 2 18
T 35 1) R A L 5 M Ay B P S 1
B8 2R B < il ) BT T 3 B R
fiEE o

FHiESR A TEE T2 % K TR
LRI H HRAE T A > TR AE Y
IR B s 252
PR BER T 38 B 0 > I 1 R
FRR ISR HEERITE o
M5 2 EEGERUFENF4.625)F
F13.5EMEEE R > Wk —F— U4
F AR W e R ] o Y
——4E+ " A=+—H - REHEL
137 2B B IC (ZE—F4 1 2550
B oT) 25 T L A iR R
[ F) SR SR ATE o

FE TSR B FE b T AR T e
Z N TSR B 4 T B e
4% 1 2% T BLHREEE o

BeE R e 2 IF B RAE IR AT
(B ) 2 75 4% 3 4 8 RN T 00 1B 4% 1
E > WU iR RS S AR i I Al (A
NI BRI A Bl R A8 T LA [E] -

TREREE

R RBS SEAS B A7 AE BB > R BRT 57
—fIE % 3 4 S B R AR
AR FSCEN A9 i o AR SR FTR A Jal g i
B SE RS IR P [ B B o ASAE ]
1) S5 A 7 1Y) =5 B < e 2 i 453 S
B (B M 52 B~ ) 3R Ja By S A1
JELF ) ~ A5 B b i B < AR o
A B ) gy A AL R R P T
F JE B = BR A 7T % 32 7K I 2 i > [
RS P i R B (- e e 35 7
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48c. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)

The Group’s risk management governance structure
is designed to cover all business activities and to
ensure all relevant risk classes are properly managed
and controlled by relevant group companies. The
Group has adopted a sound risk management and
organisational structure equipped with comprehensive
policies and procedures which are reviewed regularly
and enhanced when necessary in response to changes
in markets, the Group’s operating environment
and business strategies. The Group’s relevant
independent control divisions play an important role
in the provision of assurance to the relevant board
of directors and senior management that a sound
internal risk mechanism is implemented, maintained
and adhered to.

(a) Market Risk
(i) Equity Risk

There are many asset classes available
for investment in the marketplace. One
of the Group’s key business undertakings
is investing in equity and is concentrated
in the investment, broking and finance
operating segment. Market risk arising
from any equity investments is driven by
the daily fluctuations in market prices or
fair values. The ability to mitigate such risk
depends on the availability of any hedging
instruments and the diversification level of
the investment portfolios undertaken by the
segment. More importantly, the knowledge
and experience of the trading staff of the
segment managing the risk are also vital to
ensure exposure is being properly hedged
and rebalanced in the most timely manner.
Trading activities, including market-
making and proprietary trading, across the
segment are subject to limits approved by
the relevant risk management committee
(“RMC”). Valuation of these instruments
is measured on a “mark-to-market” and
“mark-to-fair value” basis depending on
whether they are listed or unlisted. Value at
Risk (“VaR”) and stress tests are employed
in the assessment of risk. Meanwhile other
non-VaR limits such as “maximum loss” and
“position” limits are also set out to restrict
excessive risk undertakings. VaR and stress
tests are approaches which are widely used
in the financial industry as tools to quantify
risk by combining the size of a position and
the extent of a potential market movement
into a potential financial impact.

BE=F——F+ZA=t—H I
48. TWMITE(E)
48c. ERIEREE (&)

AR [ Y B B TR A B AR R T A
B > DIFEOR BT A B R B s
. FH A B 4 I ) 2 o B I B o
ANEE T © R AN — 1 2 35 1A JL By i 2L B
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AR BRI 2 53 ) N S SRS T A
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PRECHE ~ #EfF SR~ B fE A PR P90 JEL e
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48c. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)
(a) Market Risk (Cont’d) (a)
(i)  Equity Risk (Cont'd)
The Group’s market-making and proprietary
trading positions and their financial
performance are reported daily to the
relevant senior management of the group
companies in the segment for review.
Relevant internal audit also performs
regular checks to ensure there is adequate
compliance in accordance with the
established market risk limits and guidelines.

The table below summaries the overall
financial impact on the Group arising from
market movements in global equity indices.
The analysis is based on the assumption
that equity indices move +20% with all
other variables being held constant and all
equity instruments undertaken by the Group
moving simultaneously. Declines in the
indices are expressed as negatives.

At 31st December, 2011

HEF——F+_A=+—HILEEF
48. €RT H (&)
%cﬁﬂﬂmmEMQ

117257 ) e (4

(i) Hﬁmnl&ﬂ (78)
Z’—‘%@]Fﬁﬁ ik i B i B
K H & B R R
&Eﬁ?f%%‘zfﬂ » B4 H RE R
T4 N AR A R 2 A
AR PR AL SRR o AH
A TR 7 A% E Y S o
B 3 4% > FEAR 7000 BESF
RER]T 7 45 m g B 38 e g 5| o

T 2 Mt BR BR LTI 4 o
o) ShF 74 4 3] 0 L A RS
B o T TR R T 38
BB R BE £ 20% 0 BT A
ERIIY 3 QUSRS (TN
P FT A R T HBE 2
BEE) o hﬁ?%uﬁﬁ%
/j'\‘o

At 31st December, 2010
REE-FEFZA=1—H

R=8--F1-A=1-H
Potential impact on
Potential impact other components
on profit or loss of equity
for the year HER AR

FERERVELYE BaEkyE
20% -20% 20% -20%
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million

Potential impact on

Potential impact other components

on profit or loss of equity
for the year HHEa AR
L el A 7 W By E
20% -20% 20% -20%

HKS Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HKS Million

EE#T FBER REAn  BEEn  TEEn  AEEx  OEEc AEER
Local Index LN 166.6 (152.1) - - 543 (114.9) 02 (0.2)
Overseas Index HMER 1021 (102.1) 209 (209) 56.6 (56.0) 33 (233)
There is no material financial impact in the BR BRI T 95 s B B A 4R
form of profit after tax for the year for the ] A 4 B2 1Y B B AR i A Sl
Group arising from market movements in MR MBS o B
the global equity indices. Futures, options 55 W R A2 o R
and knock-out options are hedged by other W - R R PR AE A L

derivatives in view of the volatile markets
and wide trading ranges.

HAtufir A THE
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48c. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)
(a) Market Risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss due to
changes in interest rates. The Group's interest
rate risk exposure arises predominantly from
margin financing and term financing in the
investment, broking and finance segment
and loans and advances to consumer
finance customers in consumer finance
segment. The financial assets and liabilities
that may have exposures to interest rates
could be referred to note 48a. The Group
possesses the legal capacity to initiate recalls
efficiently which enables the timely re-
pricing of margin loans to appropriate levels,
in which those particularly large sensitive
positions can readily be identified. Interest
spreads are managed with the objective of
maximising spreads to ensure consistency
with liquidity and funding obligations.

At 31st December, 2011, assuming that
Hong Kong market interest rates moved by
+50 basis points (2010: £50 basis points),
the profit before tax for the year for the
Group would have been HK$7.1 million
higher or HK$3.6 million lower respectively
(2010: HK$17.7 million higher or HK$12.8
million lower respectively).

WE_E——4FE+ - H=1—HILER
48. TWMITE(E)

48c. ERIEREE (&)
(@) THEEEE (4E)

(ii)

GBS

] 25 By 77 1) S 538 B A B
B4R 2 Ja B o A4 ] Y A
R fp EEARAHE - &
AO M < Rl T 22 8 55 UEK
B A TR DL R RL N B 5
gr W 22 FAN B85 % 5 K
e BGER o T RE TH] 35 1 3 Ja
CAEALS P G- E TP
WfiE48a o A% EIA L RE
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ERBLOBENTESZ
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48c. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)
(a) Market Risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

The exposures of the Group's financial assets
(liabilities) bearing variable interest rate to
cash flow interest rate risks and the earlier
of their contractual repricing dates and
contractual maturity dates are as follows:

At 31st December, RZE—-%&
2011 +-A=t-H

Loans and advances to consumer 5FL}\E7T BEFEIR
finance customers #K

Bonds included in financial assets ,ﬁr)\%ﬁiﬁ@fﬁﬁﬁ’“

at fair value through profitor 7 \fia{ﬁfﬁiﬁz
loss TREREL ER
Cash, deposits and B HhkHe%
cash equivalents &%
Bank and other borrowings RA7 BB S

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries /[l £t &/ 7 20E

At 31st December, WEF %A
2010 +ZA=+—H
Loans and advances to consumer  F \BTH R F &2 &
finance customers #k

Bonds included in financial assets F A B HE 5

at fair value through profit or NFRERAL
loss }ﬁﬂ!%‘@ ZI8%

Cash, deposits and cash & FRkBe%
equivalents %

Bank and other borrowings BB A
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries /[ Z [ft/& /> 7l 208
Bonds &5

As the analysis of the contractual repricing
dates or contractual maturity dates is not
meaningful in view of the nature of the
business of margin financing, margin loans
bearing variable interest rate of HK$4,277.0
million (2010: HK$4,436.5 million) are

excluded from the above table.
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WE-_E——®F+ A =1+—H IR
48. €RT H (&)

48c. TRIAMEE (])
(a) TGk (4)
(i) =R JE B (4E)
A 45 [ 4% 77 B B R 5 A
SEEE (AE) H¥E B4

Wi A 2 E b o A A E
HEMEH &G EHH F
BRFEMR
On
demand
or less than
3 months
ZEX 3 months 1 year Over
EEHHR  tolyear to5years 5 years Total
A ERRIE  1EE5E SENLE @t
HKS Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBL  HBEET BEBL  BEBT  AEBL
941.9 - - - 941.9
- - - 72.7 72.7
503.1 - - - 503.1
(5,361.0) (655.9) (440.8) - (6,457.7)
(1,252.4) - - - (1,2524)
335.8 - - - 335.8
- - - 20.4 20.4
922.8 - - - 922.8
(4,197.6) (421.9) (730.4) - (5,349.9)
(751.4) - - - (751.4)
- (500.0) - - (500.0)
ﬁAﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁl ETH M
’E AR o EAE G

H
Q’UQJ%‘H H 73 #r 3l 48 55 5%
?“{%EJJ%'JK.#E Z i #ﬁﬁl

24,277 .08 BT (.
ZE : 4,436.55&%%)3‘3
fEEF A B o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48c. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)
(a) Market Risk (Cont’d)
Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

(i)

The exposures of the Group’s financial
assets (liabilities) bearing fixed interest rate
to interest rate risks and the earlier of their
contractual repricing dates and contractual

maturity dates are as follows:

At 31st December,
2011
Amounts due from associates
Loans and advances to consumer
finance customers
Bonds included in financial assets
at fair value through profit or
loss
Secured term loans
Short-term pledged bank deposits
Cash, deposits and
cash equivalents
Bank and other borrowings
Amount due to an associate
Bonds

At 31st December,
2010
Amounts due from associates
Loans and advances to consumer
finance customers
Bonds included in financial assets
at fair value through profit or
loss
Secured term loans
Short-term pledged bank deposits
Cash, deposits and
cash equivalents
Bank and other borrowings
Amount due to an associate
Mandatory convertible notes

R=B-—-§
+=ZA=1+-H
L YNTE
AABBEF &K
Tk
A AB R G IR
ATEERE
SMEEBR
MR
TS TR A
B4 FRibig
SE
AT R A

R [Fgee i rl R

i

I
FZA=1-H
AR
AR S
Rk
HABBI R
AR,
SRUEL 5
B T
IR
il E
S8
BT

KB A 0

BT

WEF -t A S I

48. €@ T A (&)

48c. RIA R EE (F)
(a) THEGE R (4)

(i) AR EP (48) ‘
A 45 [ 4% ] 72 I 2R 5 S
SREVEE (AfE) H ¥ AR
[N T e s s e
H XA # | H g
mr
On
demand
or less than
3 months
BEX 3 months 1 year Over
EEAPR  tolyear to5years 5 years Total
A EREIE  1EE5F SENLE @t
HKS Million  HKS$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEkT  ASEBC  BABL AEEC  BEBL
- 359.2 - - 359.2
1,603.0 2,775.6 1,981.3 174.8 6,534.7
- - 169.3 179.8 349.1
751.8 213.0 - - 964.8
96.5 - - - 96.5
2,187.8 741.0 - - 2,928.8
(44.0) (23.4) - - (67.4)
- (24.7) - (24.7)
- - (555.8) - (555.8)
- 41.0 - - 41.0
1,065.4 1,991.6 1,929.9 101.7 5,088.6
- - 103.3 5.2 108.5
307.2 3414 - - 648.6
99.5 - - - 99.5
2,479.3 282.4 - - 2,761.7
(43.8) (180.4) (23.6) = (247.8)
- - (47.1) - 47.1)
- (32.6) (45.9) - (78.5)
port 20



for the year ended 31st December, 2011

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48c. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)
(a) Market Risk (Cont’d)

(iii) Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings
or capital arising from movements in foreign
exchange rates.

The Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily
arises from currency exposures originating
from proprietary trading positions, and
loan and advances denominated in foreign
currencies, mainly in Australian dollars
and Renminbi. Foreign exchange risk is
managed and monitored by the respective
businesses in accordance with the limits
approved by the board of directors of the
relevant group companies and RMC. The
risk arises from the open currency positions
are subject to management approved limits
and are monitored and reported daily. The
other source of foreign exchange risk arises
from clients” inability to meet margin calls
following a period of substantial currency
turbulence.

At 31st December, 2011, assuming that
the foreign exchange rates moved +5%
(2010: £10%) with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax for the year
for the Group would have been HK$33.5
million (2010: HK$10.1 million) lower/
higher. The Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk is immaterial.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the failure of a customer
or counterparty to meet settlement obligations. As
long as the Group lends, trades and deals with
third parties, there will be credit risk exposure.

The credit policy, governed by the relevant
credit committee (“CM”) of the relevant
group companies, sets out the credit approval
processes and monitoring procedures, which are
established in accordance with sound business
practices, the requirements and provisions of the
relevant ordinances, and where applicable, the
codes or guidelines issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48c. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)

WE-_E——HF+ = H=1—H &R
48. TWMIE(E)

48c. ERIEREE (&)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d) (b) fFEMEE (%)
Day-to-day credit management is performed H#EGEREEM DA RGERA
by the relevant credit division with reference H-FERGRZHHFZHE
to the aforementioned criteria including B HEP ) 2 FeERE N SR R
creditworthiness, type and amount of collateral MR A o ARG R H
pledged, and risk concentration of the IR 2 P A 1) A 5 [ 2 A
counterparties. Decisions are made daily by ERERBRGEZ R g A H
relevant credit division and are reported to and F) 7€ BA ) € A H M S At o
reviewed by the relevant senior management of
the Group and CM at regular meetings.
The table below shows the maximum exposure R B E B R X AR R
to and concentration of credit risk. The maximum JFE o SRR ARB(E R - Ik
exposure is shown in gross value before the T B e IS v o LB )
effect of mitigation through the use of collateral 2 o MAETE A 5 HOBE R B
agreements. The percentage figure next to the PR o
gross value reflects its concentration.
The Group
r&EE
At 31st December, 2011 At 31st December, 2010
RZB——H+ZA=+-8 R-ZF-FFt+_A=1—H
HK$ Million %  HK$ Million %
BEBL HEETT
Maximum credit exposure B EEEM
Short-term pledged bank FRISRAT AT
deposits F 96.5 1% 99.5 1%
Cash, deposits and cash e o lBles
equivalents (1=t 3,903.2 20% 4,255.0 22%
Trade and other receivables & 5 K H A FE I 2k E 6,376.3 34% 6,702.9 35%
Loans and advances to GNGE: Y- ak-¢ ¥/3
consumer finance customers Gk 7,556.1 40% 5,464.5 28%
Bonds included in financial ~ FF AiB# A IR
assets at fair value through A PE(EEH 2
profit or loss SMEEZEH 57.6 0% 84.6 0%
Guarantees R 13.3 0% 1,668.5 9%
Loans commitments BHURYE 585.5 3% 782.0 4%
Amounts due from associates T4 /A ] K2k 424.9 2% 114.6 1%
Amounts due from jointly — 3t[EIHEHIM%
controlled entities Y& 8.6 0% 7.7 0%
19,022.0 100% 19,179.3 100%
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

BE_Z——Ft+_A=+—HILFEF
48. £RT E (&)

48c. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)

(b)

Credit Risk (Cont’d)

48c. TRIEREE(E)
(b) 15EMEFE (4E)

The Company
N
At 31st December, 2011 At 31st December, 2010
R=B——%+ZRA=+-HB R-F-FF+-HA=1—H
HK$ Million %  HK$ Million %
BEET HEWET
Maximum credit exposure  BEEEEMR
Short-term pledged bank FHRATHEAR
deposits T 80.0 1% 98.0 1%
Cash, deposits and cash B FHLB %
equivalents {147 3.1 0% 6.5 0%
Trade and other receivables &5 K E At Nk 2k I8 0.2 0% 0.1 0%
Guarantees for banking T HHE AT
facilities granted to RITEHEZ
subsidiaries PR 1,664.1 14% 1,833.6 16%
Amounts due from B /A )
subsidiaries Rk 9,669.1 85% 9,685.0 83%
11,416.5 100% 11,623.2 100%

The maximum credit exposure at the Group
level is spread evenly between “trade and
other receivables” and “loans and advances to
consumer finance customers”, which represented
more than 70% of the total exposure. “Trade and
other receivables” consist of amount receivables
from exchanges, brokers and clients, secured
term loans, margin loans and other interest
and receivables items. The breakdown and its
aging analysis are disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. There are no
major concerns on margin loans, as margin calls
for equity trading have been tightened. Most
clients have cut off their positions. The margin
loan book of the Group remains at a low gearing
level.

5[5 B T 36 10 A e 4 RS T
00 AT 8 5 o At I i i I
B FA AN AT 5 S S BGR | 22
Mo LA EFE 70% L | o [ & 5
T A R R IE |45 RE 52
T~ B850 K EIE ~ ARIA
HABETR ~ R ik DA S A A S
MIEWIRE o H B8 RE
BT A %5 A A BS ) R M 5833 o
FH 7 S 25 B R A T ) 9 4 L AR U
2 R EFEMTHEE
IR L /8 5 G T T R AN K o AR
L FB K AR E E LR R
MBI
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48c. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Credit Risk (Cont’d)

“Loans and advances to consumer finance
customers” (note 29) are granted by subsidiaries
in consumer finance segment, which consists
of HK$6,205.2 million unsecured (2010:
HK$4,873.3 million) and HK$1,350.9 million
secured (2010: HK$591.2 million) before taking
into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements. The table below summarises its
credit quality based on the internal credit rating
system employed:

wWE_E——F - H=1—H &R
48. TWMIE(E)

48c. ERIEREE (&)
(b) 15EMEFE ()

Credit quality FEEX
Neither past due nor impaired R 48 HA BR R R (E
Past due or individually impaired . JA A1 L

Loans with strategic clients are all properly
authorised by the CM and with other controls in
place to monitor their performance. As at 31st
December, 2011, any default of an individual
loan will not be greater than 10% of the total
loan portfolio and management considers that
controls are adequate to monitor the performance
of these loans.

Liquidity Risk

The goal of liquidity management is to enable the
Group, even under adverse market conditions, to
actively manage and match funds inflow against
all maturing repayment obligations to achieve
maximum harmony on cash flow management.

The Group manages its liquidity position
to ensure a prudent and adequate liquidity
ratio. This is achieved by a transparent and
collective monitoring approach across the Group
involving the management and other relevant
senior managers on a daily basis to ensure the
availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all
obligations while in compliance with statutory
requirements such as the Hong Kong Financial
Resources Rules.

(c)

JB§ FA N BA S 43 5B 2 B I s w14
W AN R &k B
A (B EE29) » B HE G4 56 40
6,205.2 A B L (ZE—F4F
4,873.3 H 8 IT) KA HEAH R4
1,350.9 8 E¥s o6 (- F —F4E ¢
591.2H #E#I0) - Kt KFFE M
FEAP i sl At (5 BB i FE it - R
FRMEH DAER ) A5 R R 5

HEENFERER
The Group

AEH
2011 2010
—e——5 2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A #ETT
6,839.3 5,061.7
716.8 402.8
7,556.1 5,464.5
B TRBIERF 2 S G &

Z B e IE A% > dsor AR
il 1 it LA B g O A9 UL« R —
Tt =40 AL
R e R A N g
BB A A 2 E N A g &R
10% > B HRRERE 5 > il 1 e 2
DABE R Z R IH DL -

B & B
B B BB A (AR S 1 R
FEAMB TS5 WA IRl s B A
PR B EE AR E
EWA > WEREREEHZ
o BE A EE

AR A LR ) R
FEPR A A R I SRR 2 B
POAE o A B 25 PR I A A
IR e AR A B DA 2 A B R
—H TR TR > DAREARA 2
Wi s E S AT 2R AT > AT
E‘?ﬁ%%*(ﬂﬂ%%ﬁﬁ%%?ﬁ%
) o
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48. TR T A ()

48c. ERIABRERE(E)
(c) REIE S5 (4E)
AL [ 4 A A T Y A E R

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48c. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)
(c) Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)
The exposure of the Group’s contractual

undiscounted cash flow for the financial T B 4 O e LAY 2 BT H
liabilities and their contractual maturity dates are o
as follows:
On demand
o less than
31 days 31 days to 91 days to 1 year to Over
REXY, 90 days 1year 5 years 5 years Total
SW3E  31AZ9A  91AZEIE 15555 SENE a5t
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
Ak BEEBT AABc  AAkT AAET AAkx
At 31st December, R=B-—-§
2011 +=A=1-H
Bank and other borrowings: RIT R 999.2 1,217.2 662.6 3,771.0 - 6,650.0
Trade and other payables B0 B RTR 948.7 - - - - 948.7
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries [ Z I /A 7 B —TH
and a holding company YN U 1,259.2 - - - - 1,259.2
Amounts due to associates KAl IE 8.0 - 25.6 - - 33.6
Amounts due to jointly controlled I RIFE 4%
entities Bl 50.1 - - - - 50.1
Bonds &% - - - 677.8 - 677.8
Guarantees * R 133 - - - - 133
Financial liabilities at fair value i Z MR /A TEHEH
through profit or loss ZEMAR 150 - - - - 150
At 31st December, F—FE
2010 + A=1-A
Bank and other borrowings: R RIHbfE 17534 668.4 476.2 28125 - 57105
Trade and other payables B 5 R e 2R 1333.9 - - - - 1333.9
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries /<[] £/ 7 & —fH
and a holding company PERARIZUR 7820 - - - - 7820
Amounts due to associates YN - UNEIE U 14.1 = - 51.0 - 65.1
Amounts due to jointly controlled LRI A2
entities R 0.1 = - - - 0.1
Bonds % = 1.0 3.4 506.8 - 511.2
Guarantees * i 1,668.5 = = = = 1,668.5
Financial liabilities at fair value ~ B# R A TEERHE
through profit or loss ZEMAK 63 - 63
Mandatory convertible notes B TR RS - - 342 523 - 86.5

Bank and other borrowings with repayment on demand
clause are classified as on demand in the above analysis
although the demand clause has not been exercised.

The amounts included above for guarantees are the
maximum amounts the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed
amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty
to the guarantees. None of the banking facilities related
to the guarantees has been drawn down at the end of
the reporting period. Based on expectations at the end
of the reporting period, the Group considers that the
amount will not be payable under the arrangement.

+  BAAHREREERGSC SAT ROHA
LIS A S A v 0 5 A 1 R A
o SR RZ ARSI R PATOE

* DLEBRZBE SRS LT G

R 1) A% 52 ] 2R L A

ZRCR &R o B IRAT B 2 SRAT (R

AR AR RB) ] o ZERR

MRz HmMY ZIK%IE].: t&]tfﬁﬁt‘!
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

48c. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)
(c) Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had outstanding loan commitments of HK$585.5
million (2010: HK$782.0 million) which fall due
within one year.

The Company’s exposure to financial risks at
the end of the reporting period is immaterial.
Financial risk exposure at the Company level
is mainly contributed by the amount due from
its subsidiaries and is managed by assessing
the recoverability of the repayment from those
subsidiaries. The management monitors on a
regular basis the availability of funds among the
Group and the assets held by subsidiaries are
considered sufficient to cover the amount due
from them. Hence, the Company’s exposure to
financial risks at the end of the reporting period is
considered immaterial.

49. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

On 23rd December, 2011, China Elite Holdings Limited
(“China Elite”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
completed the additional acquisition of 103,180,000
shares of TACI (“Tian An Offer Share”), representing
approximately 6.85% of the issued share capital of TACI,
under the voluntary conditional partial share exchange
offer on the basis of four shares of the Company to be
allotted and issued as consideration for every Tian An Offer
Share (“Exchange Shares”). 412,720,000 Exchange Shares
were allotted and issued as consideration, representing
approximately 5.60% of the enlarged issued share capital
of the Company immediately following the allotment
and issuance of the Exchange Shares. Immediately upon
completion of the additional acquisition of TACI by China
Elite and issue of Exchange Shares by the Company, the
effective shareholding in TACI by the Company increased
from approximately 40.00% to approximately 46.85%.

Based on the closing price of HK$0.97 per share of the
Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 23rd
December, 2011, the fair value of the 412,720,000
Exchange Shares issued under the partial share exchange
offer was HK$400.4 million and it was recorded as the
cost of the additional effective interest of approximately
6.85% in TACI acquired by the Company.

WE-_E——HF+ = H=1—H &R
48. TWMIE(E)

48c. ERIEREE (&)
(c) B E b (%)
RIREHAR > AEEA A EE
S HRIES85.5 H His ot (. F—
FTAE 1 782.0A B TG) o W
—AENEIH o

AR A R e R Y < L B
A A E KR o AFFER 2 7 g T 2
<5 PR = A F EL Y w2
O > W Ja Bz 0 AV e g 2
A R SR e R T
B o L E ) AN A I TS
A AEE BB o i LR A
FiA 2 BS54
RZFIE o R > A R
JAAR IR 2 4 il L P AR5 {252 8
AAEIE o

49. TEHFREXSH

WoTF——FE+HZT=H > AAFE
%t 2~ Wl China Elite Holdings Limited
([China Elite ) 52 BUR % F A A543
P 5 B 4 AR A B K %2 22 103,180,000 B
A ([ Ry 1) > A K% B 847
K H)6.85% > HUE L B IR LYy 2
ARAE £ V0 A2 w58 7 B 8 K 34T 2 Iy
([ 22 EAY 1) © 412,720,000 /B 32 #0553
MERC TS R B ATAEAE > (G BB X 31T
2T 4 10y 1% S8 B R AR 8 ) LB AT AR AN
5.60% ° ZHEChina Elite5e BAH SN R
B AN R BTSN AR > AN EIRRA
2 R 2 BB RE B £940.00% 38 0 2 4
46.85% °

Pl ——4E+ 0 = B AR
AN T AT A 0,97 #E T EE R > AR
PETB o H e LA EE AT 2 412,720,000 B 58
By 2 AT 55 400.4 B ST - 3
FOBK 25 AN AR A R % #96.85% RSN E
BEHERS 2 AR -
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50. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

(b)

181
BE T+ A=t —H IR
50. RAEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had @ AHIEWIR > ALEEAE I 2 HE R
guarantees as follows: T
2011 2010
—B——fF e e <2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER A EHIT
Guarantees for banking facilities T — [ SL[R] e i b SE R AT
granted to a jointly controlled entity FEZ R 5.8 1,661.0
Indemnities on banking guarantees A — ] 4 Pl B A A A
made available to a clearing house PR SRATHE ORAE Hh R 1E
and regulatory body /PN 4.5 4.5
Other guarantees HAbE R 3.0 3.0
13.3 1,668.5

In 2001, an order was made by the Hubei Province
Higher People’s Court in China (“2001 Order”)
enforcing a CIETAC award of 19th July, 2000
(“Award”) by which Sun Hung Kai Securities Limited
(“SHKS”) (now known as Sun Hung Kai Financial
Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of SHK, was
required to pay US$3 million to Chang Zhou Power
Development Company Limited (“JV”), a mainland
PRC joint venture. SHKS had disposed of all of its
beneficial interest in the JV to SHK’s then listed
associate, TACI, in 1998 and disposed of any and all
interest it might hold in the registered capital of the JV
(“Interest”) to Long Prosperity Industrial Limited (“LPI”)
in October 2001. Subsequent to those disposals,
SHKS’ registered interest in the JV in the amount of
US$3 million was frozen further to the 2001 Order.
SHKS is party to the following litigation relating to the
JV:

(i)  On 29th February, 2008, a writ of summons
with general indorsement of claim was issued by
Global Bridge Assets Limited (“GBA”), LPI and
Walton Enterprises Limited (“Walton”) (“2008
Writ”) in the High Court of Hong Kong against
SHKS (“HCA 317/2008"). In the 2008 Writ,

(@) GBA claims against SHKS for damages for
alleged breaches of a guarantee, alleged
breaches of a collateral contract, for an
alleged collateral warranty, and for alleged
negligent and/or reckless and/or fraudulent
misrepresentation;

(b) A_EL—F hEMIEERRAR
EBEAE IS (BT —F A4 ) i
TR -FEZFELATLBZ
CIETACHI PR (T H3R 1) > ZERT G2
Z 2 I > R BT G R A BR
A ([BrERAEGE S5 |) (BLE B4 2 0 o
F G A FRZA A ) 18] o B A
ARMENERARAA ([HEA
Al ) A3 A EFETT o BiBEEGERE
FE—INFIF RSB ARZ A
H a i TR R R BT
BRFARE > RIR_FE—HE+H >
AR L2 Ol HOR &8 A w2 5E
EAH] BERE A AT AT BT A e 4 ([ HE
% ) & TLong Prosperity Industrial
Limited (TLP1)) - A% HER - #
WAL SR TE BB A Al Z k4 ((H
EH3 A #ETT) - FF A SE—
A A o BIERELRESR T AT B
BEARZIRGRL I

i) R-FFENE_HZ+H >
Global Bridge Assets Limited
(TGBAJ) ~ LPI2Walton Enterprises
Limited (TWalton |) [a] Ak ik
Zr 88 AU R A I B IR R GE
W) 2 AR (T = FNFESL
I NIDNIEE SPUIERE: ST/
INAEE31757]) o IR ZFFNAE
LR

(@) GBAWLH AR —IEHIER 2
W~ BRI I — ) It
BH ~ — TEE R R A
KRR A K 5 e B R
B R B R R 2 K
B o 0L T 7] S 98 3 i 5 W
RIHAE
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011

50. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

(b) (Cont’'d)

(i)

(Cont’d)

(b) LPI claims against SHKS damages for alleged
breaches of a contract dated 12th October
2001; and

(c) Walton claims against SHKS for the sum
of US$3 million under a shareholders
agreement and/or pursuant to the Award
and damages for alleged wrongful breach
of a shareholders agreement. GBA, LPI and
Walton also claim against SHKS interest on
any sums or damages payable, costs, and
such other relief as the court may think fit.

The 2008 Writ was served on SHKS on 29th May,
2008. It is being vigorously defended. Among
other things, pursuant to a 2001 deed of waiver
and indemnification, LPI (being the nominee of
GBA) waived and released SHKS from any claims
including any claims relating to or arising from
the Interest, the JV or any transaction related
thereto, covenanted not to sue, and assumed
liability for and agreed to indemnify SHKS from
any and all damages, losses and expenses arising
from any claims by any entity or party arising
in connection with the Interest, the JV or any
transaction related thereto. On 24th February,
2010 the Court of Appeal struck out the claims
of GBA and LPI, and awarded costs of the appeal
and the strike out application as against GBA and
LPI to SHKS. Subsequently, GBA, LPI and Walton
sought to amend their claims which was opposed
by SHKS and is pending a determination by
the court. While a provision has been made for
legal costs, SHK does not consider it presently
appropriate to make any other provision with
respect to HCA 317/2008.

BE=F A=t B
50. AR (H)

(b) (&)
(i)

(%)

(b) LPI % Fi§ 5l 5 46 5t G 75 &
REME - ZTE-F+H
T HZEHMRE s &

(c) Walton R4 — B A sk
Ko/ Bl AR 48 A R [ T i
A RME3 EHEE LU LK
Al LT A B G 7 . —TH
SR T el T 1 T 10 25 GE 55
HREMHE - GBA ~ LPI X
WaltonJR [a] #7565 5 GiE 25
RN 2 AT A 5 FE S HH F
B2 AE - T KRk
B 58 By e 2 FL A A 4E o

BT SR BT\ FH
H LR R R - #%
AARIEZ 58 1P o H b R
— M R KR E R
# > LPIEAGBAZAEZ ) E
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&R > AfRERESS - S8 AR B
EROE e BN AT S
ZARMIH R > B LPIKREA
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T R Ja) 72 [ i F sl 2 5
BB LI E IS - R LB o
RoFE—FE—H _+PUH > |k
FREEA R GBAKLPIZ HIZ -
SIF 50 3 O R G 08 [ b R P I
R VB L GIE 5 BUAS BT 3 GBA K
LPIf S BRI 5 o BEf% > GBA »
LPI&WaltonzRIEFT HH % >
T 38035 6 3 Rl 5 T 3 I S 1 v
FERE o HAE Bk e
Al > HoETIR IR A BRI AN 8
HitmEEREREFB _FEEN
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50. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(Cont’d)

(i) On 20th December, 2007, a writ (“Mainland
Writ”) was issued by Cheung Lai Na (5 )
(“Ms. Cheung”) against TACI and SHKS and was
accepted by the Intermediate People’s Court
of Wuhan City, Hubei Province (“IPC”) (it
BB RN RIABE) [(2008) BRI S
F584%] (“Mainland Proceedings”), claiming
the transfer of a 28% shareholding in the JV,
and RMB19,040,000 plus interest thereon for
the period from January 1999 to the end of
2007, together with related costs and expenses.
Judgement was awarded by the IPC in favour
of TACI and SHKS on 16th July, 2009 which
judgement was being appealed against by
Ms. Cheung. On 24th November, 2010, the
Higher People’s Court of Hubei Province (i1t#&
R A RERE) ordered that the case be remitted
back to the IPC for retrial. The IPC subsequently
ordered upon Ms. Cheung’s unilateral application
that the liquidator of Changjiang Power
Development (H.K.) Co. Ltd. be joined as a third
party to the PRC proceedings. The substantive
retrial hearing will take place on a date to be
decided. While a provision has been made for
legal costs, SHK does not consider it presently
appropriate to make any other provision with
respect to this writ.

Pursuant to the Share Sale Agreement, AOL has given
certain warranties and indemnities to the Purchaser
which the Purchaser may rely on for any breaches.
AOL has signed a tax deed to indemnify the Purchaser
for tax liabilities of the Disposal Group prior to the
completion of the disposal which had not been
provided for in the closing account of the Disposal
Group as at 30th November, 2010. The period
for claims under the tax deed is seven years from
completion. In respect of most other claims against
other general customary warranties and indemnities in
the Share Sale Agreement, the period for such claim
is within twelve months from completion; that period
expired as at 31st December, 2011.

Pursuant to the Share Sale Agreement, pending the
release of any securities, guarantees or indemnities
given by or binding upon AOL in respect of any
liability of the Disposal Group, the Purchaser shall
indemnify AOL against all amounts paid by them
after completion pursuant to any such securities,
guarantees and indemnities. The following guarantees
and performance bonds had not been released as at
31st December, 2010:

BBt A B
50. ARG (H)

(b)

(0

(d

(&)

(i) WoEZEtE+—H +H
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011
50. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

(d) (Cont'd)

Corporate guarantees were given by AOL to certain
banks in connection with banking facilities granted
to the Disposal Group with an aggregate amount of
HK$20.0 million at 31st December, 2010. As at 31st
December, 2010, the banking facilities granted to the
Disposal Group subject to the corporate guarantees
given to the banks by AOL were utilised to the extent
of approximately HK$4.9 million for the issuance of
bank guarantees and performance bonds by a bank.

At 31st December, 2010, AOL had an outstanding
guarantee in favour of a third party in connection with
a medical contract entered into by a company within
the Disposal Group. The annual value of this medical
contract amounts to approximately HK$42.2 million
in 2010.

These guarantees and performance bonds have all
been released during the year ended 31st December,
2011.

The Company charged guarantee fees to subsidiaries at
market related rates on an annual basis for the guarantees
given on banking facilities. Facilities amounting to
HK$1,644.1 million (2010: HK$1,833.6 million) were
utilised at the end of the reporting period.

BE-F A=t B
50. ALK (H)

d) (&)

MoFE—FEFH=+—H > AOL
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TERITRMAE A AR » HASHES
20.0H 0 o iR F—FF+ H
=1+—H > HAOLIASRITHRMLN FIE
PRI T O AR F 2 4R T (5 B0 Bk
B A4.9F BT - MEASTHEA
SRATYE PRk AR LR AR e 4 -

W oF—ZE+TH=+—H > AOL
H—IERMETE = R B ER
W B N — AR IET L2
BEAT o BRI AFN _E—FF
AL 42 2 H BT o

LS5 3 fR I JB 2 PR 2 1 B R BE
;?~*¢+:HE+*H¢$EW
R o

AN RREITAE 2 S8R4T 15 SR R 4% SR A TR
T 355 b 4 45 4 o) % 26 T 28 ) SCHUAfE R
2o R HIR - [FEEER 64410 H
B (—F—F4 1 1,833.6 4 HiEIT) C
KA -



for the year ended 31st December, 2011

51. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted but not
provided for in the consolidated
financial statements

Capital expenditure authorised but
not contracted for

The Company did not have any significant capital
commitments at 31st December, 2011 and 2010.

52. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments under operating
leases recognised for the year
Land and buildings
Others
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51. BERERE
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
—g——F —FF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT HEHIT
EERAERAE LR B P
AT
EAR L 15.8 2.7
LI R FT A 1Y
EAB X - -

e R R
o A A T A RS -

52. MEMWLZH

AEBEREBEA
The Group
rEEH
2011 2010
—g——F O EE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BB A EHIT
AL R A BRE
T4 2 B R AH 4 #0H
b B pEF 173.2 216.7
HoAth 9.3 8.6
182.5 225.3
Report 20
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52. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

WE L+ =+—H I
52. REMNZH(E)

TR IR > A4 AR SRR AT HR s A B A
AT N B30 IR B S A 2 F AR R I e iR
AR T

The Group
A%
2011 2010
o i =

Land and Land and
Buildings Others Buildings Others
T REF Hith Tt T HoAt
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET XX A HEHETT
Within one year —4ER 169.2 7.1 138.6 7.9

In the second to fifth year 25 55 H4F

inclusive (BLfEE M) 252.7 1.5 209.3 22
Over five years A E 121.9 - 155.1 -
543.8 8.6 503.0 10.1

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by
the Group for its office premises, elderly care homes and
office equipment. Leases are generally negotiated for terms
ranging from one to ten years.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$161.2 million (2010: HK$151.5 million). The property
held has committed tenants with lease terms and rentals
are fixed at two to four years.

At 31st December, 2011, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

KR A A AR AR B A = 2 -
RF I O RN E R 24
A Z I — ke b — ARG -

AEBEAHBAA

R BRI W S U 5 161.2 A B
T (T E—FLE 15150 BEEIT) o i
AzYECHMP AT > SR &
BAEIARE E B B DUAE o

WoFE—-—EF A=+ —H - ALED
3N 51 R A o AR AH 40 3K 0 B AH 5 AT LA
%) -

The Group
REHE

2011 2010
—g—-—-F “EFF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBT A #ETT
Within one year —4E R 115.2 114.1
In the second to fifth year inclusive BT (BEEREME) 99.2 65.2
214.4 179.3

The Company did not have any significant lease
commitments as a lessee or lessor under non-cancellable
operating leases at 31st December, 2011 and 2010.

R R AT A=
H > A8 S HE A R AE A R N sl AR AT
TS AT FR 48 45 FH 4 JE N B A B R
AR o
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53. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 53. BIREFIE

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group under provident funds managed by independent
trustees.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated
income statement represents contributions paid and
payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the schemes. Where there are employees who
leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
in accordance with the terms of the schemes, the
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeited employer’s contributions.

At 31st December, 2011 and 2010, there were no material
forfeited contributions which arose when employees left
the retirement benefit schemes before they were fully
vested in the contributions and which were available to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group in the
future years.

The schemes have been closed in 2000 to new employees
as a consequence of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance introduced by the Hong Kong
Government.

From Tst December, 2000 onwards, new staff in Hong
Kong joining the Group are required to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”). The Group
is required to contribute 5% of the employees’ salaries,
while the employees are required to contribute 5% of their
salaries to the MPF Scheme.

During the year, 1.8 million shares (2010: 1.2 million
shares) of SHK were awarded to selected employees or
directors of the SHK group (“Selected Grantees”) under
the employee ownership scheme of SHK (“EOS”). The
fair value of the services rendered as consideration of the
shares awarded during the year was HK$10.5 million
(2010: HK$8.3 million) which will be amortised to the
consolidated income statement during the vesting period.
The amount expensed during the year was HK$9.0 million
(2010: HK$9.2 million).

ARLET T T B S B AR R B B O E A A
FOBRARFIGH o 325551 H 2 B SR 4
W Y PR BSLAF IR SR RE A
PR B2 AR -

A7 A WAt BT R 2 3B PACRR 1 B S 2 A 4R
Pzt 0 ) i 46 7 EE S T 2 A5 B A 3t
A o i B 58 4l B = AR ARAE A ATR
Et# > AAREET B 2 MR > A Y
A SO IR R A 3 -

i T e e N
1 Sl 60 L 1 2 DR A
FRRIHIER th 2% 8B BOA K B2 B
065078 DL » 000 O
A S I 5 47 2 43 o

FH 7 7 9 SR AT 0 o 1 B 4 A
Bl > SOASE R R S
g B4R it ot wta -

H O BETEA T H—HHE » JURE B
TN SR A £ [ 2 B T e A ZE N A B
NEEFE ([EESFES ) o AREHE K E
B & H ZE [0 AR 4w Tl AR ME B
5% HEEK o

AAAERE > ARG RARE B B Ay HEA w1 #)
([ B B w1l 1) 43 Bl s s L 4 [
FREE B e EH ([ e AR A ) 884%1.8
HEB (A 1.2 H B Bt
Wt o ASAF BEAE 2y B84 B ARUAE 2 I 42t
MR 2 AN FEE A10.5 A B o (—F—
FAFE 8.3 H B TT) o HE A B N A 4
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54. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s
investment properties, hotel property, land and buildings
and properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$6,564.1 million (2010: HK$5,751.8 million),
bank deposit of HK$92.0 million (2010: HK$98.0 million),
listed investments belonging to the Group with fair values
of HK$125.9 million (2010: HK$1.4 million) and listed
investments belonging to margin clients with fair values of
HK$1,554.2 million* (2010: HK$1,941.5 million) together
with certain securities in respect of a listed subsidiary with
a carrying value of HK$1,524.0 million (2010: HK$1,506.5
million), were pledged to secure loans and general banking
facilities to the extent of HK$3,940.9 million (2010:
HK$3,438.4 million) granted to the Group. Facilities
amounting to HK$2,041.0 million (2010: HK$2,141.2
million) were utilised at the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, bank deposits of
HK$4.5 million (2010: HK$1.5 million) were pledged to
secure a guarantee facilities issued to third parties by a
bank to extent of HK$2.0 million (2010: HK$2.0 million)
and a letter of credit to extent of HK$3.0 million (2010:
Nil).

At 31st December, 2010, the share of a subsidiary was also
pledged for the bonds issued by the Group and held by a
fellow subsidiary (note 44).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had a
bank deposit of HK$80.0 million (2010: HK$98.0 million)
to secure a loan of HK$71.1 million (2010: HK$91.8
million) granted by a bank to a subsidiary.

* Based on the terms of its margin loan agreements, Sun Hung
Kai Investment Services Limited (“SHKIS”), a subsidiary of the
Group, is able to repledge clients’ securities for margin financing
arrangements with other financial institutions as provided by the
Securities and Future Ordinance. Securities belonging to clients
are assigned with specific margin ratios for calculating their margin
values. Additional funds or collateral are required if the amount of
accounts receivable outstanding exceeds the eligible margin value
of securities deposited. The fair value of the listed securities at
31st December, 2011 was HK$12,622.5 million (2010:
HK$19,601.5 million). The collateral held can be sold at SHKIS's
discretion to settle any outstanding amounts owed by the margin
clients. Margin clients receivables are repayable on demand and
bear interest at commercial rates.

BE=F A=t B
54. BRI
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55. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

WEF——F A=t H IR
55. BEATRZ R

During the year, the Group entered into following NI ST e NG WA A B N
significant transactions with related parties. 5
(@ Summary of transactions (@) RFYUE
(Income)/Expense
(BA),~
2011 2010
—F——fF —E T
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
BT BEBT A EH#ETT
A holding company —EER AT
Share of management service JRE A 5 R 75 2
expenses (note) (P E) 17.1 17.0
Share of administrative expenses  MEf5FTE 2 ]
(note) (FfH&E ) 0.9 0.9
Rent, property management and 4 ~ #)ZEE I
air-conditioning fee (note) 22 A (K E) (4.8) (4.7)
Insurance premiums received in the $2HLLR B LIRS
course of provision of insurance  #FE L ELZ
brokerage services TR (0.5) (0.6)
Fellow subsidiaries 2] 2 B 22 B
Consultancy fee income L B A (0.8) (1.2)
Bond and short-term loan interest &% % %8 11 €5 7R
expense B 37 (i) 24.6 30.6
Brokerage income FSERAN PN (0.9) (1.2)
Facility arrangement fee and il 02 P A I B
financial advisory fee R 2.6 2.0
Associates B N A
Facility arrangement fee and il 2 T A
underwriting fee Y (20.6) (39.7)
Interest income B A (12.2) (18.4)
Insurance premiums received in the H2 (AR AR
course of provision of insurance  #FE I Z
brokerage services TR (1.4) (2.9)
Rent, property management, 4 ~ Yl -
air-conditioning fee and other 22 2 LA N HAth
related service fee A B A 5 2 (0.4) (0.4)
Interest expense FLEBA 32 2.0 0.2
Service fee s 2 2.0 -
Facility arrangement fee Rl L T 0.5 0.9
Rent paid SEREiiE - 1.0
Jointly controlled entities HEZEH R
Administration, management, ATEL ~ 3R~ R R
consultancy and I
agency fee income A (12.8) (11.1)
Property management and air- W S5 T N e R
conditioning fee and PR HAm ) 5
other property related service A Bl A 5 2
fee income A (14.4) (14.0)
Administration and TH&ET
staff support fee SCiEE 0.6 0.6
Rent, property management and 4 ~ Y124 H K
air-conditioning fee 7 0 11.1 10.8
Note: Apart from the tenancy agreement entered into by a subsidiary BEFRE = BRAS 2> w] — [H] B 2 ) 5T 37 2 7H 6 T

of the Company and the Sharing of Administrative Services
and Management Services Agreement entered into by the
Company with the holding company, none of the above
related party transactions constitutes a discloseable connected
transaction as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

VA e A ) B 3 Rl T S0 2 A7 B PS
Lo 8 B o Bt e S0 > LA R BN
B8 oy Wi A G A 7 U W 5 28 5 T AT R
g%iﬁ%ﬂﬂﬂ@?ﬁ%ZﬁE%&ﬁ%Eﬁﬁi
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55. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(CONT’D)

(b) Key management personnel compensation

Short term benefits AR A
Post-employment benefits IRARAEF

Certain key management personnel of the Group
received remuneration from the Company’s holding
company or its wholly-owned subsidiary. The
holding company provided management services to
the Group and charged the Group a fee, which has
been included in the share of management service
expenses as disclosed above in part (a) of this note,
for services provided by those personnel as well as
others who are not key management personnel of the
Group.

The management service fee is calculated by
reference to the time devoted by the management
personnel on the affairs of the Group and can be
apportioned to the above key management personnel.
The total of such apportioned amounts, which has
been included in the key management personnel
compensation above for 2011, is HK$14.2 million
(2010: HK$11.5 million).

WE_E——4FE+ - H=1—HILER
55. BEATRZREHRE)

b) FEEEEASHE

2011 2010
—E——F TR LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT ER:R
31.2 34.1

0.5 0.4

31.7 34.5

AME AT R BREAR A Al #E
e 2 ) B 2 R 2 R AL 5
PRI ) i A4 B (A WS R T R
ARG %8 T C PR TELL I T (a) 7B
or Z REAGE BRI e v M R R
B ez F 2 B K HAL I A4
LIRS 32 PN =YL

=A% ) DA BN B AN 4R [ =R
b R EE B 2% Kol LA
NEEZEETEETHMAR o %550
Bo AR A T —— 142 5 BT
(R4 115AHET) » O
FEA UL E FEE A B4 -
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55. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 55. BEA TR 3 K& (E)
(CONT’D)
(c) At the end of the reporting period, the Group and () RIMEHR  XEERAKRADFEREE
the Company had the following material balances ATEUTEREER :
with related parties:
The Group The Company
AEH ERF
2011 2010 2011 2010

—E——-F TR EUE
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT HEBIT

—E2——%F TR R
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT EE- Y55

A holding company — [ HERL N ) (3.9 (24.9) 3.1 (22.1)
Associates k- /N 392.0 53.9 - =
Jointly controlled entities [ #E il {3 (41.5) 7.6 - -
Fellow subsidiaries [R] & [fit B /A ) (1,254.5) (1,255.7) - =
(907.9) (1,219.1) 3.1 (22.1)
The above amounts are included in the statement of Al A T AT 51 O A A 4 1 R AR
financial position of the Group and the Company in N Z BABSIR IR AR
the following ways:
The Group The Company
piN-C | VNG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F ZEF-FF  ZB--F ZEFFF
Notes HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
fi ot BEER A& BERR AEBT
Trade and other B 5 J At
receivables IR 1.1 2.0 - =
Amounts due from k=GN
associates R (ii) 4249 114.6 - -
Amounts due from jointly L[l {3
controlled entities UG« v) 8.6 7.7 - -
Trade and other payables %5} % J Al i 208 (0.5) (0.1) - -
Amount due to a holding X — I/ A
company A (v) 3.9 (24.9) 3.1 (22.1)
Amounts due to associates K/ ) E (iii) (32.7) (61.2) - =
Amounts due to jointly KLl
controlled entities FIH (v) (50.1) 0.1 - =
Amounts due to fellow GEY 7N
subsidiaries IR (iv) (1,255.3) (757.1) - -
Bonds held by afellow — —[Hi[Fl & Mt B/ 4
subsidiary A2 fik (i) - (500.0) - -
(907.9) (1,219.1) (3.1 (22.1)
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55. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(CONT’D)

(d) During the year, (i) short-term loans of HK$565.0

(e)

®

(®

million were advanced from fellow subsidiaries and
HK$65.0 million was repaid to fellow subsidiaries;
and (ii) a bond of HK$500.0 million was repaid to a
fellow subsidiary.

During the year, short-term loans of HK$318.2 million
were advanced to associates and HK$22.5 million
was repaid to associates.

During the year, both the Group and a joint venture
partner, each having a 50% interest in a jointly
controlled entity, received a non-interest bearing loan
of HK$50.0 million respectively from such jointly
controlled entity. The loan was outstanding at 31st
December, 2011 which was unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

At 31st December, 2011, guarantees for banking
facilities of HK$5.8 million (2010: HK$1,661.0
million) was granted to a jointly controlled entity.

Notes:

(D)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Details of the bonds are disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.

These amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand, except for (i) a secured short-
term loan to an associate of HK$336.7 million drawn under the loan
facilities of HK$356.7 million, which bears interest at 6% per annum
and is due for repayment on 30th June, 2012 and (ii) an unsecured
short-term loan to an associate of HK$22.5 million, which bears
interest at 4.5% per annum and is due for repayment on 27th July,
2012.

The amounts due to associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand, except for an unsecured loan due to an
associate of HK$24.7 million, which bears interest at 4.25% per
annum and is repayable in November 2012.

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries included loans of
HK$1,250.0 million drawn under a revolving loan facility of
HK$1,750.0 million granted by a fellow subsidiary to the Group.
The facility will expire on 2nd March, 2012. The loans drawn under
the facility carry interest at 2% above HIBOR per annum. In March
2012, the loan facility was extended for a further two years to 3rd
March, 2014. The facility was reduced to HK$600.0 million and the
interest rate was changed to 2.9% above HIBOR per annum.

The amounts due from (to) jointly controlled entities and a holding
company are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

WE_E——4FE+ - H=1—HILER
55. BEATRZREHRE)

(d

(e)

®

(g

W 5E

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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56. MATURITY PROFILE OF TERM ASSETS AND 56. B S ERABETHSH

LIABILITIES
At 31st December, 2011
RZE-——F+ZF=1-H
Within 3 months 1 year to After
Ondemand 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
REREE AR Z@RE-&£ -EZAE nE#% @t
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT HEBT HEERn  HERRT  HEBRT  HEER
Assets EE
Fixed deposits with banks RITEBIENL - 1,743.0 7410 - - 2,484.0
Loans and advances to consumer A AMEZF
finance customers (before BRI
impairment) (3B {EF) 798.5 1,045.9 2,975.0 2,392.1 750.3 7,961.8
Bonds included in financial AT AB R i R
assets at fair value through NFEEEEL
profit or loss SRR B - - - 169.3 2525 421.8
Term loans due from associates  MENTEE /A 74 HIEK - - 359.2 - - 359.2
Term loans (before impairment) A BI85 (AR 502.6 221.2 297.6 - - 1,021.4
Liabilities =l
Bank and other borrowings BT R A 12,0 2,026.4 710.1 3,755.2 - 6,503.7
Bonds &% - - - 555.8 - 555.8
Amount due to an associate Sl =N - - 24.7 - - 24.7
Short-term loan due to a fellow Xl &M B AT Z
subsidiary R - 1,252.4 - - - 1,252.4
At 31st December, 2010
RoZ—ZHE+=H=+—H
Within 3 months 1 year to After
Ondemand 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
WEKERE  ZMAR SEAEE —E£FZ0E HFER At
HKS Million  HKS Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HET  EEBC EEbc EEBC EEbc AR
Assets EE
Fixed deposits with banks RITEMR - 17675 2824 - - 2,049.9
Loans and advances to consumer ~ AAMEZ
finance customers (before Y&
impairment) (B {AAD 452.6 7873 2,1765 2,2465 260.3 5,923.2
Bonds included in financial ATAB R & A
assets at fair value through WFEEREZ
profit or loss SRR - - - 103.4 255 1289
Treasury bills B e = 7.8 = = = 7.8
Term loan due from an Fed— e A
associate HHER - - 41.0 - - 41.0
Term loans (before impairment) 7 #1853k (W77 317.6 46.2 3414 = = 705.2
Liabilities 8k
Bank and other borrowings BT RAEMEE 12.0 1,758.5 858.4 2,936.3 - 5,565.2
Mandatory convertible notes BRI AT R R R - - 326 45.9 - 78.5
Bonds & - - - 500.0 - 500.0
Amount due to an associate Gl =N - - - 47.1 - 47.1
Short-term loan due to a fellow  R—HIF BB A Z
subsidiary FHE - 7500 - - - 750.0
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56.

57.

MATURITY PROFILE OF TERM ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The above tables list out assets and liabilities based on
the contractual maturity and the assumption that the
repayment on demand clause will not be exercised. Loans
and receivables are stated before impairment allowances.
Overdue assets are reported as on demand.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 16th March, 2012, Attractive Gain Limited (“Attractive
Gain”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of AOL entered into
an agreement (“Agreement”) with Action Best Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of COL Capital Limited. Pursuant
to the Agreement, Attractive Gain had conditionally agreed
to purchase the 8% guaranteed convertible notes due
2016 in a principal amount of A$21 million issued by FKP
Limited, a company incorporated in Australia and whose
shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange
(“FKP Note”) at a total consideration of A$18.9 million
together with interest accrued on the FKP Note from the
last interest payment date until completion (“Acquisition”).

Further details of the Acquisition are set out in the
announcement of AOL dated 16th March, 2012.

BE=F A=t B

56.

57.
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 58. FEMBATER

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31st December, 2011 which have their principal place of

operations in Hong Kong are set out below:

B

Proportion of nominal value of issued capital

W_F——F+ZA=1+—H  ARHEE
ZEEH LML il 2 E B 2~ 7] &

Paid up HERITRAEEZ LA
issued held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital Subsidiaries attributable
Subsidiaries HROBT xAR/ to the Group Principal activity
WA F ERRA WELAREE FEEES IREK
2011 2010 2011 2010
“g--F —3-34H —¥--F 2%
HK$ % % % %
T
Alaston Development Limited US§$1 100 100 100 100 Property holding
(B SR R/ES
Allied Overseas Limited ** 20,696,260 72 70 72 70 Investment holding
Allied Real Estate Agency 2 100 100 100 100 Real estate agency
Limited HuE U3
WA s A A PR A )
AP Administration Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Provision of management
and consultancy services
A3t T I P R
AP Corporate Services Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Provision of corporate
services
SR R
AP Development Limited 2 100* 100* 100 100 Investment holding
BratE s RARAF REHR
AP Diamond Limited US§1 100 100 100 100 Property trading and
[ holding
ESSE YL ES
AP Emerald Limited US§$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
(ESTH BRTER
AP Finance Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Money lending
fr &
AP Property Management 2 100 100 100 100 Building management
Limited e
Attractive Gain Limited 100 100 100 72 70 Investment holding

e el
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

BBt A S I
58. TEMBATEN(H)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of nominal value of issued capital
Paid up (EERFRAEEZ A
issued held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital Subsidiaries attributable
Subsidiaries BRERST YN to the Group Principal activity
WELE ERRA WELAREE rEEES IREK
2011 2010 2011 2010
g% “ZBF —%--&F “ZIF
HK$ % % % %
T
Best Melody Development 5,000 100 100 100 100 Property holding
Limited RERIES
FRERARA
Conrad Services Limited 1 100 100 100 100 Building maintenance and
RIS A IR A A cleaning services
L ERIS Yl
First Asian Holdings Limited 2 100 100 31 36 Asset holding
SRR ARAR HHEERE
Florich Development Limited 10,000 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
RERRHRAA BERR
Front Sail Limited 5,000 100 100 100 100 Property holding
LA R A R R/ES
Gilmore Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Property holding
SR /ES
Gloxin Limited 2 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
R
Hillcrest Development Limited 20 100 100 100 100 Property holding
FrhE
Hi-Link Limited 200 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
BRI
Hong Kong Dementia Services US$1 100 100 72 70 Provision of elderly care
Limited (E services
B SR AE B A R A 7 i 2ol
Integrated Custodian Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Property holding
ERRERIIE S
Itso Limited 2 100 100 53 63 Securities trading
HrEE
Jaffe Development Limited US$1 100 100 100 100 Property holding
(EH ERRR/ES
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

58. TEMBEAREFR (F&)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of nominal value of issued capital
Paid up (EERFRAEEZ A
issued held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital Subsidiaries attributable
Subsidiaries RO xAR/ to the Group Principal activity
i) N EBERA WEAREE AEBER FEER
2011 2010 2011 2010
“g--F T-TF —®-—%F —FTh
HK$ % % % %
iy
Kalix Investment Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Property holding
A
King Policy Development 2 100 100 100 100 Property holding
Limited HEHYIE
SeEE A PR A R
Lexshan Nominees Limited 2 100 100 53 63 Nominee services
JEIARHEAA FRA A eLUNITo7S
LYNX Technology Limited 1,000,000 100 - 72 - Medical equipment
RERHARAT distribution
Rk 8
Mainford Investment Limited 1 100 100 100 100 Property holding
R E A PRA A A%
Maxplan Investment Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Securities trading
HIEHE A RA A BAAE
Mightyton Limited 10,000 100 100 100 100 Property holding
FAE
Oakfame Investment Limited 2 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
HEREA A A BB
Ontone Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Hotel operations and
LA R property holding
GRS R
Plentiwind Limited 2 100 100 53 63 Investment holding and
trading
BEER R EE
Polyking Services Limited 2 100 100 65 65 Building maintenance and
1A RS A PR A R cleaning services
TR MEIR
Protech Property Management 5,000 100 100 65 65 Building management
Limited HEER
B EE A RAF
Ranbridge Finance Limited 20,000,000 100 100 53 63 Firlancial services
B IA R AT &R
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 58. S EMBATER (&)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of nominal value of issued capital
Paid up (EERFRAEEZ A
issued held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital Subsidiaries attributable
Subsidiaries BRERST KxAR/ to the Group Principal activity
WEAF EERE WELAREE rEEES IREK
2011 2010 2011 2010
“g--% —3-34 —¥--F 2%
HK$ % % % %
T
San Pack Properties Limited 10 100 100 100 100 Property holding
I B R AR SR R/ES
Scienter Investments Limited 20 100 100 53 63 Share trading
5 H E
Senior Care Elderly Limited US$1 100 100 72 70 Provision of elderly care
[ services
TRAGEE R
Senior Care Limited 1,000 100 100 72 70 Provision of elderly care
EHEREARA R services
SRt M
Senior Care Nursing Home 1,000 100 100 72 70 Provision of elderly care
Limited services
EELARAR BeAt A s
SHK Finance Limited 150,000,000 100 100 31 36 Money lending
FBH A RN A fE 8
SHK Financial Data Limited 100 51 51 27 32 Financial information
BRI ARG A R A services
iy ailliies
SHK Fund Management 67,000,000 100 100 53 63 Funds marketing and
Limited investment advising
B AL R EHARA R Hep i R B A
SHK Investment Services 1,000,000 100 100 53 63 Asset holding and leasing
Limited RERERIHER
SHK Online (Securities) 40,000,000 100 100 53 63 Online securities broking
Limited and margin financing
HBEERHA GE7) AR ) 4 bR REHHGK
SHK Online Limited 20,000,000 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
B AR A IR ] BRI
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual Report 20
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

BBt A S B
58. TEMBEAREN(E)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of nominal value of issued capital
Paid up (EERFRAEEZ A
issued held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital Subsidiaries attributable
Subsidiaries HMROBT xAR/ to the Group Principal activity
WEAF EERE WELAREE TEEES IREK
2011 2010 2011 2010
“g--F —3-3hF -$--F 2%
HK$ % % % %
T
SHK Pearl River Delta 75,000,000 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Investment Company Limited BEHER
HBATRIL = f 4
AR
SHK Private Limited (formerly 100,000 100 100 53 63 Business marketing and
known as Sun Hung Kai promotion
Research Limited) CEiRys V&
AR 0 A BR8] (RITRE BT
EREHITRARA)
Shun Loong Forex Company 32,000,000 100 100 53 63 Leveraged foreign exchange
Limited dealing and broking
IE e SMHE A PR~ 7 FRANER B AR
Shun Loong Futures Limited 15,000,000 100 100 53 63 Futures and options
I S 57 B4 ] dealing
RN ERE
Shun Loong Holdings Limited 200,000,000 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
JIE G 4 P 47 BR /A BRI
Shun Loong Securities 50,000,000 100 100 53 63 Securities broking and
Company Limited share margin financing
e 7547 7 BR 2 [ W e &N
Sierra Joy Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Property holding
S R/ES
Splendid Gain Limited 2 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Sun Hing Bullion Company 5,000,000 100 100 53 63 Bullion trading
Limited HEHE
HBLEEA AR
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited** 421,882,889 53 63 53 63 Investment holding
FBAEA R A BB
Sun Hung Kai (Nominees) 200 100 100 53 63 Nominee services
Limited AR

AR (RN AR A A

199



200
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 58. S EMBATER (&)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of nominal value of issued capital
Paid up (EERFRATEZ A
issued held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital Subsidiaries attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT ARF,/ to the Group Principal activity
) NG EERA WELAREE rEEES IREK
2011 2010 2011 2010
-5 —3%F —®--% _F%F
HK$ % % % %
T
Sun Hung Kai Bullion 30,000,000 100 100 53 63 Bullion trading and
Company Limited investment holding
Wb S AR e RE AR
Sun Hung Kai Commodities 80,000,600 100 100 53 63 Commodities broking
Limited fi A
HB R A R
Sun Hung Kai Financial 124,898,589 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Limited (formerly known REHR
as Sun Hung Kai Securities
Limited)
HERAATIA A (TR
IEHALIR A R A
Sun Hung Kai Insurance 1,000,000 100 100 53 63 Insurance broking and
Consultants Limited consultancy services
FBEAR B A TR A DRBR A A2 B P AR 5
Sun Hung Kai International 10,000,000 100 100 53 63 Corporate finance services
Limited R R
i A BR A
Sun Hung Kai International 25,000,000 100 100 53 63 Securities, futures and
Commodities Limited options trading
w5 ERHERE
Sun Hung Kai Investment 450,000,000 100 100 53 63 Investment holding, share
Services Limited broking and margin
R R AR A financing
PGP - BHEAR
R A K
Sun Hung Kai Securities 60,000 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
(Overseas) Limited G
FB RS (50 AR A
Sun Hung Kai Securities 3,000,000 100 100 53 63 Provision of trustee services
(Trustees) Limited {5 st
HE R I (5 5E) A PR 7]
Sun Hung Kai Strategic 2 100 100 53 63 Investment holding and

Capital Limited

securities trading

FBAE R E A AR A REBRREREE
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual Report 20
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 58. S EMBATER (&)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of nominal value of issued capital
Paid up HERTRAEEZ LA
issued held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital Subsidiaries attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT ARF,/ to the Group Principal activity
WEAF ERERE WELAREE FEEES ITREK
2011 2010 2011 2010
- —3%F %% "33
HK$ % % % %
o
Sun Hung Kai Structured 137,500,000 100 100 53 63 Provision of loan finance
Finance Limited REEERME

FBELE MM EARAR
Sun Hung Kai Structured 2 100 100 53 63 lssuing structured notes

Products Limited BATAE R

HEEEE A RAR

Sun Hung Kai Venture Capital 2 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Limited BRI

Sun Hung Kai Wealth 5,000,000 100 100 53 63 Financial planning and
Management Limited wealth management

B B A A R W R B T A AL

Sun Tai Cheung Finance 25,000,000 100 100 53 63 Financial services
Company Limited SRR

W BB A R AR

Sun Yi Company Limited 15,000,000 100 100 53 63 Futures trading

A FRZA R MERY

Texgulf Limited 20 100 100 53 63 Property holding

e

To Wan Development 10,000 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Company Limited BB

FEEFEARA A

Tung Wo Investment 10,000 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Company, Limited TR

AR G A R

United Asia Finance Limited 137,500,000 58 58 31 36 Consumer financing

SR & A PR A A FANIH

Wah Cheong Development 25,100,000 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Company, Limited BRI

HEEEARAF

Wineur Secretaries Limited 2 100 100 53 63 Secretarial services

ERRERRAT RS

Yee Li Ko Investment Limited 58,330,000 100 100 53 63 Property holding

AR A

SR /ES

FAlaston Development Limited * AP Diamond
Limited * AP Emerald Limited ~ F s &4
FERIE RS A PR H] ~ Jaffe Development
Limited % Senior Care Elderly LimitedJi 3%
J& B R B E M R SE o DL R Allied
Overseas Limitediit A 52 s it B2 51 >
DL _E BT W T8 2 w2978 7 o A o

With the exception of Alaston Development Limited,
AP Diamond Limited, AP Emerald Limited, Hong Kong
Dementia Services Limited, Jaffe Development Limited
and Senior Care Elderly Limited, which were incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, and Allied Overseas Limited,
which was incorporated in Bermuda, all the above
subsidiaries were incorporated in Hong Kong.
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’D)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31st December, 2011 which were incorporated and have
their principal place of operations outside Hong Kong are
set out below:

L e e e

58.

FEWEAREN(E)

BBt A= —H AL
Al LN R S S
HUISE 1 DA A 2 5% A )
i

Place of Paid up issued Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ ordinary share value of issued capital
operation capital HERTREEE LA
Subsidiaries AL/ WRERMT  held by the Company/subsidiaries attributable to the Group Principal activity
HEAR SRS BERA KA/ HEAARE AREEG IZRE
2011 2010 2011 2010
e S S . o T o
% % % %
Allied Properties China Limited ~ Cayman Islands US$1,000 100* 100* 100 100 Investment holding
R 1,000%7E BRI
Boneast Assets Limited British Virgin Uss1 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Islands £ Bk
EBEAHE
Cautious Base Limited British Virgin HK$10,000 100 100 7 70 Investment holding
Islands 10,0008 Rt
ERELHS
Champstar Investments Limited ~ Briish Virgin Us$t 100 - 53 - Assets holding
Islands 17 PG
ERELHE
Constable Development SA. ~ Panama Us$5 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
GEA SETL BRER
Dynamic Force Investments  British Virgin Uss!1 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Limited Islands 17 Bt
EREAHE
Hing Yip Holdings Limited British Virgin Uss1 100 100 53 63 Property holding
FERRATRAR Islands 1571 BEE
ERELHE
I-Market Limited British Virgin USs1 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Islands B3 Rtk
ERELHE
Kenworld Corporation Republic of Liberia Us$t 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
itk B EAHIE 1% &R
Lakewood Development United States of US$1,000 100 100 100 100 Property held for sale
Corporation America 1,000£ ¢ AT
L
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

203

BBt A S B
58. TEMBEATREN(E)

(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of nominal
incorporation/  ordinary share value of issued capital
operation capital HERTREEE LA
Subsidiaries REAYE BRERT  held by the Company/subsidiaries attributable to the Group Principal activity
HELE RS EERE K07/ HBLTRE ARG IEXH
2011 2010 2011 2010
S
% % % %
LHY Limited British Virgin Uss1 100 100 72 70 Investment holding
lslands 1£7 Bk
EEELHE
Onspeed Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Uss1 100 100 3 36 Investment holding
lslands 1% Bt
ERELHS
Senior Care Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Usst 100 100 72 70 Investment holding
Islands 17 Btk
FRELHE
Shipshape Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Us$t 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
lslands 1£7 Bk
FEELHE
SHK Absolute Return Managers  Cayman Islands Us$10 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Ltd HEHE 107 BEHR
SHK Alpha Managers Ltd. Cayman Islands US$10 100 100 53 63 Funds management
RS 10%7T AEEH
SHK Alternative Managers Cayman lslands Us$1 100 100 53 63 Funds management
Limited REHE 1%7 EEHR
SHK Capital Management Cayman Islands US$10 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Limited AEHE 10£7E BEH
SHK Dynamic Managers Ltd. ~ Cayman Islands Us$10 100 100 53 63 Funds management
HEHE 107 EeER
SHK Global Managers Limited  British Virgin US$5,000 100 100 53 63 Funds management
Islands 5,000% ¢ EGER
ERELHE
SHK Income Fund Manager ~ Cayman Islands US$100 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Gl 100572 fEiR
SHK Private Equity Managers  Cayman Islands Uss10 100 100 53 63 Funds management
Ltd. REHE 10£70 REEN
SHK Quant Managers Ltd Cayman Islands Uss10 100 100 53 63 Funds management
REHE 10£70 R
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for the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—_EFE -—Et+"H=+—HIEF
58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 58. XEHEAREHR (&)
(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ ordinary share value of issued capital
operation capital HERTREEE LA
Subsidiaries RaEAYE BRERT  held by the Company/subsidiaries attributable to the Group Principal activity
HELF S i EERE A0E/HRAARE ARG IEXH
2011 2010 2011 2010
“g—&  CEEE CR-§  CE%E
% % % %
Sing Hing Investment Limited ~ British Virgin Uss1 100 100 53 63 Property holding
HRSEAR A Islands %7 RIS
EBEAHE
Sun Hung Kai (China) People’s Republic  RMB50,000,000 100 100 53 63 Corporate marketing and
Investment Management of China N investment consultancy
Company Limited fEARLAE  50,000000% iR B R
W (B R EER
ARAH
Sun Hung Kai Financial British Virgin US$50,000 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Group Limited Islands 50,000%C sk
EBEAHE
Sun Hung Kai International Brunei SGD10,000,000 100 100 53 63 International banking
Bank [Brunei] Limited Darussalam 10,000,000 business
ok M RRRTEH
Sun Hung Kai International British Virgin US$50,000 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Investment Management Islands 50,0007 Bk
Limited FRRARE
Sun Hung Kai Investment Macau MOP 48,900,000 100 100 53 63 Property holding
Services (Macau) Limited ~~ #F 48,900,000 GRIRIES
B
Sun Hung Kai Securities Bermuda US$12,000 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
(Bermuda) Limited [if 3 12,000%7% BEt
Swan Islands Limited British Virgin -~ US§503,000,001 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Islands 503,000,001 ¢ Rt
EREAHE
UA Finance (BVI) Limited British Virgin Us$t 100 - 31 - Financing
Islands %7 i
EBEANE
UAF Holdings Limited British Virgin Us$t 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Islands 17 Bt
EREAHE
A PRITESIERTS Angal Reep 204
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

WE = F A A= B

58. TEMBAREFR (F&)

(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of nominal
incorporation/  ordinary share value of issued capital
operation capital HERTRAEE LA
Subsidiaries REAYE BRERT  held by the Company/subsidiaries attributable to the Group Principal activity
HEAT FHAfES EERA ADE/HRATSE AEEEE ELE
2011 2010 2011 2010
&8 TF-TF Z%--F  C%%F
% % % %
Upper Selection Investments  British Virgin Us$t 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Limited Islands B3 i
EBEAHE
Wah Cheong Development British Virgin US$2,675,400 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
(B.V.1) Limited lsands 2,675 400% 7L e
ERELHS
Zeal Goal International Limited  British Virgin Uss1 100 100 53 63 Investment holding
Islands 17 Btk
ERELHE
KEHBREREMERS  People’s Republic - US$20,000,000 100 100 3 36 Money lending
fRAA of China 20,000,000% ¢ 5
i AR
KETE VBT ARAT  People’s Republic HK$100,000,000 100 100 31 36 Money lending
of China 100,000,000t [A
A REAE
T EBE MESHAERAT  People's Republic RMB500,000,000 80 - I - Money lending
of China ARH (A%
FEEARAHE 500,000,007
AR NEEAHRAT  People's Republic HK$350,000,000 100 100 31 36 Money lending
of China 350,000,000 7 ik
i A RAAIE
SR B () People’s Republic - RMB25,000,000 100 100 3 36 Financial consultancy
ARAT of China N BHRY
FEARLHME 250000007
B ERERMRER  People’s Republic  US$50,000,000 100 100 3 36 Moneylending
HRFIEA of China 50,000,000% 72 i
(& INie il
IR VB EAHRAT People’s Republic RMB600,000,000 100 100 3 36 Moneylending
of China Nt [
FEARAHME 600,000,007
IR AIRAR  People's Republic  RMB10,000,000 100 100 3 36 Money lending
of China N (1
PEEARSEAE  10,000,000%
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BBt A S I

58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 58. XEHEAREHR (&)
(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ ordinary share value of issued capital
operation capital HERTREEE LA
Subsidiaries RaEAYE BRERT  held by the Company/subsidiaries attributable to the Group Principal activity
HEAT FHRAES EERA A0E/WRLIEE AEEES IEEH
201 2010 2011 2010
8- “I-TE &F-F IR
% % % %
ZHETHE VIS ERAR People’s Republic HK$350,000,000 100 100 3 36 Money lending
of China 350,000,000 70 i
A RFEHE
SR SOEBRARAR People's Republic  HK$22,300,000 100 100 53 63 Investment advisory and
of China 22,300,0007% consultancy
(E NS Bk R
R (K fEEH People’s Republic - RMBS0,000,000 100 100 53 63 Asset management
AR of China N BEEn
FEARAHME 500000007
BN SR ERMARART People’s Republic HKS6,000,000 100 100 53 63 Corporate marketing and
of China 6,000,000¥ 7 investment consultancy
FEARAEAE Sk R
BIEARMEMSERETRY  People's Republic RMB150,000,000 100 100 3 36 Money lending
NEEARA of China ARE [
PEEARSERE  150,000,0007
S These shareholdings represent the proportion of nominal value of * W% SRR R AR A W B R B B AT IR T

issued share capital held directly by the Company.

**  These subsidiaries are listed in Hong Kong and further details about
them are available in their published accounts.

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Z bl

o AR A AN BT A B E MR A
Z HABFERE RO H A Z MR E A o

ERPTI o F) I E R AR A
OB > SO AR S B R )
AN M E 2 R o SR B AR
J& A RIFE > G ERIRINITR -
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59. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at

BE - F——F+_H=1+—HIFHF
59. FEHREQNTER
W oF——FEt+ H=+—H2ZAEHE

31st December, 2011 are set out below: EE AR ERNT -
Place of Proportion of nominal value of issued capital
incorporation/ HERITRAEEZ LA
operation held by attributable
Associates R A subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
NG| XK WEAREE AE@ES FEEK
2011 2010 2011 2010
—2-—-5 X% ZB--F ZLZ-LF
0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
China Xin Yongan Futures ~ Hong Kong 25 25 13 16 Futures dealing
Company Limited Hits WERL
H K T B R 7
Chronicle Gain Limited Hong Kong 45 45 24 28 Property holding
TS BRAT ] RME
Drinkwater Investment Hong Kong 22 22 12 14 Property holding
Limited ¥ A
HREERRAF
Eurogold Limited* Australia 36 36 36 36 Investment holding
TR Eva-ecdive
Omicron International British Virgin 44 44 24 28 Investment holding
Limited Islands TR
HRE LS
Real Estate Investments Hong Kong 40 40 21 25 Property development
(N.T.) Limited } B
Silver York Development Hong Kong 42 42 22 26 Investment holding
Limited i REEMK
IR B AR A
Start Hold Limited Hong Kong 33 33 18 21 Investment holding
IRFEE B A FRA A i3 BEE
Tanami Gold NL* Australia 24 24 24 24 Gold mining operations
M and mineral exploration
R REERS R R
Tian An China Investments ~ Hong Kong 47 39 47 39 Investment holding
Company Limited** &k REHR
R E B EHR A A **
Tribridge Capital Management Cayman 20 31 1 19 Funds management
(Cayman) Limited Islands HEEEH
FEHE
& These associates are listed in Australia and further details about * LI A R BT - A BRZAE A F 2

them are available in their published accounts.

**  This associate is listed in Hong Kong and further details are available
in its published accounts.

Kk

— BRI A M 2 I 7 -

A A FTERE T AR A R 2 E—
e EL A Z MR E A o

207



208

for the year ended 31st December, 2011

59. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

60.

(CONT’D)

WEF -t A S I

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars

of excessive length.

PARTICULARS OF JOINTLY CONTROLLED 60.

ENTITIES

Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entities at

59. TEREQTRER ()

ERPTIN N R T E R A A

EAYE

B R AR 4 [ R Ay

AR N T o EHGR L H AR
BAFIRN - &S ERRRITE -

HEESEEES

RoFE——FET A=+ H AL

31st December, 2011 are set out below: IR S BRI T -
Proportion of nominal
Place of value of issued capital and voting rights
incorporation/ HERTRAEERRRRZ LA
Form of business  operation held attributable
Jointly controlled entities structure HREL/ by subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
LEEHER FHRREEA  REBAEM WEATEE AREES TERH
201 2010 2011 2010
$-¢  EEE 8% 33k
% % % %
Allied Kajima Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong 50 50 50 50  Property and investment
FEMAGE i holding
WERBERER
Fast Track Holdings Limited ~ Incorporated ~ Hong Kong 49 49 26 31 Investment holding
at A ik Bt
Look's Holding Limited Incorporated ~ Cayman lslands 30 30 16 19  Investment holding
kA HEHE REHR
Shenzhen Oriental Venture ~Incorporated ~ People’s Republic 49 49 26 31 Venture capital investment
Capital Management Co., Ltd  sftAE of China management
IR B AR R eI LS
AR
Sun Hung Kai Forex Limited* ~ Incorporated ~ Hong Kong 51 51 27 32 Foreign exchange dealing
EENEARA R at A i HERE
PUTEREEAAIAT  Incoporated  People’s Republic 34 34 18 21 Corporate investment,
st of China providing management
AR and product marketing
consultancy services
RERE - RUERRER
e P
S Although the proportion of the nominal value of issued capital * Bl SR A A1 B R A s i AN A PR W) 2 B

and shareholders’ voting rights of Sun Hung Kai Forex Limited
held by the Group are 51% and 81% respectively, the company is
classified as a jointly controlled entity because the Group and other
shareholder appoint pre-determined number of board representatives
to jointly control the company in accordance with the Shareholders’

Deed.

AT JBEAS T L B B R 8 552 b 232 00 il 2 51 % S
81% > Hy i AN 4 [ K% 27 — FC SO 482 B Sf T
T RIREERH 238 e AR DAL B A
Al o B AR U SRR A2 o



Financial year ended 31st December,

BET-A=T-HLMEEE

2007 20086 2009 2010 2011
e = e =N “EENE ZE-FE —B-—-f
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$MHW@ HK$MHM@ HKS$ Million
2L o HEET H#ETT HEBTT BEET
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(Kt3E) (it 3E) (Ht3E) (Mt 3E)
Results 4
Revenue* N 4,451.0 3,963.6 4251.2 4,461.0 4,047.9
Operating profit (loss) Al (B1R) 3,405.8 (71.2) 2,292.3 2,646.1 2,574.7
Finance costs WA (542.3) (203.1) (86.1) (72.1) (77.7)
Share of results of associates JEfE R R 24K 264.2 295.9 4451 612.4 337.1
Share of results of jointly JE A SE[R] P2 4 3
controlled entities ES 131.1 (6.9) 102.5 135.9 166.7
Profit before taxation BRI A 3,258.8 14.7 2,753.8 33223 3,000.8
Taxation G (220.2) 25.2 (320.9) (312.7) (398.0)
Profit for the year from A B R S
continuing operations AR 3,038.6 39.9 2,432.9 3,009.6 2,602.8
Profit (loss) for the year A H B AR
from discontinued B2 R
operations Wi (1) 20.2 46.1 50.6 1,102.2 (1.5)
Profit for the year ARG A 3,058.8 86.0 2,483.5 4111.8 2,601.3
Attributable to: JEAG T
Owners of the Company AN B R 2,253.7 (144.4) 1,840.3 3,003.1 1,888.3
Non-controlling interests TR e £ 805.1 230.4 643.2 1,108.7 713.0
3,058.8 86.0 2,483.5 4111.8 2,601.3
Basic earnings (loss) TIREALR 4135 (2.56) 31.20 45.11 26.26
per share () HK cents #fll  HK cents #1ll  HK cents #fll  HK cents #1ll  HK cents 1l
At 31st December,
R+=B=+-H
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
“EELE “FENE ZEFNE FFF —B-—-F
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HKS$ Million
HEHTT HETT H T EF: Yo BEBT
Assets and liabilities BEREHE
Total assets B 27,740.9 25,6206 28,213.0 34,255.9 38,436.1
Total liabilities AR (9,658.1) (9,311.4) (8,857.3) (9,259.4) (10,418.2)
18,082.8 16,309.2 19,355.7 24,996.5 28,017.9
& Included revenue from both continuing and discontinued operations. o AR B R R B A R S 2 IR
Note: The comparative figures of revenue in 2007 to 2010 have been restated to  Fffiik : ~ %% L4F & =T AEAT B AR LRy

conform to the reclassification of net gain on financial instruments from 51
revenue to a separate item in the consolidated income statement taken

place in 2011.

ST 0 2 A WA i MR PR 28 7 I ) B e

LIRS % **@ﬂ%%mﬂﬁ L 4 38 4 WA
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Particulars of major properties held by the subsidiaries and
jointly controlled entities of the Group at 31st December, 2011

are as set out below:

AR T 2 W0 o ) [ 2 il 4 S
FrZH=t— B EEYEER AT

Effective %

Gross floor held by

Lease area (S.M.) the Group Stage of
Name/location expiry Type BEmE NEE completion
E18, B 9% £ 1 5| (FF3K) BHEE% ST B
Hong Kong
Park Place 2056+ R 3,475 100.00 Existing
7 Tai Tam Reservoir Road HHEYE
Hong Kong
HEAFISE
i
R IKYEE 7595
Allied Cargo Centre 2047 G 46,594 100.00 Existing
150-164 Texaco Road BAaYZE
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
Bt B AL
G
FELHE150 - 16455
60 Plantation Road 2066 R 639 100.00 Existing
The Peak, Hong Kong WHEY2E
AL TH
REEE60%E
Orchid Court 2049 R 1,011 100.00 Existing
38 Tung On Street BAaYZE
Mongkok, Kowloon C 201 100.00 Existing
22 T ] bR ERYES
JURERE M
WAL
The Redhill Peninsula 2056+ R 596 100.00 Existing
18 Pak Pat Shan Road BAYZE
Tai Tam, Hong Kong CP 79844 100.00 Existing
AL (Phase 1V)
EE PN B
EEIFEREL (55 I 38)
China Online Centre 2026++ C 15,680 100.00 Existing
333 Lockhart Road BA Y
Wanchai, Hong Kong
o B 4 4 v L
BT
B i 3335
St. George Apartments 2081 R 8,764 100.00 Existing
No. 81 Waterloo Road BAYZE
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon CP 69##H 100.00 Existing
RPN BAYE
JUBEfTSCH
BITEES1 9%

A

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA



Name/location

£/ A

Lease

expiry
% F 58

Type
k2|

Gross floor
area (S.M.)
EEEE
(FHK)

Effective %
held by

the Group
REE
BHEE%

Stage of
completion

5T AP B

Hong Kong (Cont’d)
&8 (&)

Ibis North Point

138 Java Road

North Point, Hong Kong
{4 #F

Fsdu A

B HEIE 13858

Century Court

239 Jaffe Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
LA

A AT
23998

No. 9 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong
B R 5 KB

Allied Kajima Building
138 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
W e R
AT
HEATE138%E

Novotel Century Hong Kong
238 Jaffe Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong
AT A S

A AT

w2 23858

Tregunter Tower 3
14 Tregunter Path
Hong Kong
R R 55 3
s

Mo FIRRTEAE 1458

Admiralty Centre
18 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong
WAL

T BIE 185

J Residence

60 Johnston Road
Hong Kong
PR

s

HE L FE609E

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED

BAHwE(FER) AR

»

G

2083

2027 ++

2854

2047

2047

2051

2053+

2054

6,825

2,592

1,311

1,277

20,442

27,364

745

3,042

50

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

50.00*

50.00*

100.00

53.49

100.00

Existing
BAY=

Existing
BAYE
Existing
BAYE

Existing
AW

Existing
BAY=

Existing
BRI

Existing
AW

Existing
BAEYE

Existing
RAEYE
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Lease
Name/location expiry Type

8 HE #m F H8 5

Effective %
Gross floor held by
area (S.M.) the Group Stage of
EEER AEH completion
(FT72K) EREE% 52 AX PR BR

Outside Hong Kong
HELS

FM 2100 Road and Freehold R
Diamond Head Boulevard TK A SERE

Harris County

Texas

U.S.A.

3 [B8) 72 )

Sofitel Philippine Plaza Manila 2014+++ H
Cultural Centre of the

Philippines Complex

Roxas Boulevard

Pasay City

Manila, Philippines

FEHREE B

Shop E on G/F 2013 C
Macau Chamber of Commerce

Building

No. 165 Rua De Xangai

Macau

R E¥E 16555

R R P KR

H T L EEE

Tian An Centre 2044 C
No. 338 Nanjing Road West

Huangpu District

Shanghai

People’s Republic of China

KA

g N RILAEY |

P PG B 3385

Tian An Cyber Park 2052 I
Futian District

Shenzhen

People’s Republic of China

R AL BRI

FEE N\ R AL

el

A 1

13,888,933 ## 100.00 Existing
BAEYE

73,866 50.00%  Existing
SRR E S

1954 53.49 Existing
BAHYE

1,873 53.49 Existing
BAY

3,812 53.49 Existing
BAW¥E

Notes:

Types of properties: R-Residential, C-Commercial, G-Godown,
H-Hotel, I-Industrial, CP-Car Parking Spaces

* Indicates properties held through a jointly controlled entity
+ With option to renew for a further term of 75 years

++  With option to renew for a further term of 99 years

+++ With option to renew for a further term of 25 years

# Saleable area

##  Site area

### Number of car parking spaces

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

YRR R—FE>C—H¥%>G-E8 -
H— )% - |— L% > CP—Hifi;

3 7 — AL R e A R 2
+ Al A b AR
++ AR LR
+++ AT R

¢ BEEERL
MR A
#a HAIEH



ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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